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Mission

Randgold Rescurces' focus is on the
creation of vaiue through the discovery
and development of world class gold
projects.

Corporate profile

Randgold Rescurces is an African focused gold mining and
explorabion business incorporated in Jarsey in the Channel
Islands in 1995 and listed on the London Stock Exchange in
1987 and on Nasdag in 2002.

ils discoveries to date include the 7.5 milion ounce Morila deposi
in southem Mali, the +6 mition ounce Yalea deposit at Lowio in
wastemn Mali and the 3 million ounce Tongon deposit in the Cote
'lvaire.

The company financed and devaloped the Moriia mine which
was brought into production n Cctober 2000 and to date has
produced more than 4 milkon cunces of gold. It also financed
and developed the Loulo mine, which was officially opened in
Novernber 2005, Loulo's gold production 1s planned to average
250 000 cunces per year unti 2009, when Yalea underground
will start contributing.  The underground development will
significantty extend the mine's production and life and is expeciad
10 average above 350 000 cunces per year during the seven
year period from 2003 to 2015.

At the Tongon project n Cote d'hvaire, the compary is progressing
with & .30 000 metre dnlling prograrnme which will form the basis
for & leasibility study cn the devalopment of a mine.

Randgold Resources’ focus is on the craation of value through
the discovery and davelopmeani of world class gold projects.
This is supported by exploration projecis in the major gold regions
of Mali, Senegal, Burkina Faso, Cole d'voire, Ghana and Tanzania
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2006
Highlights

—~  Profit before tax up 54%: net profit of US$S1 million aiso

up despite first full-year tax charge of Us$H23 millicn
—  Loulo mine delivers robust results in first full year of
production; work starts on Yalea underground development
and planning updated on Gara
Morila maintains its record as a solid cash generaior

—  Tongon moves into the bankable feasinility study phase

Exploration expands reserves and resources in Nalt and
delivers promising results from Burkina FFaso

262 717 151 502

Gold sales#
132 540 659397

Total cash costs’

Profit from mining activity” 130177 85 5637
Profit before incorme 1ax 73973 480267
Net profit 50876 47 8567
Net profit (88 previously repored) r/a 40887
Net profit aitriputable 10 equity sharehelders 47 5864 45565077
Net cash generated from operations 70410 25 736
Cash and cash gquivalents 143 3%6 152 452
Agributable procuction§ (0z) 448 242 328 428
Group total cash Costs per ounca” § (USH) 296 201~
Group cash operating costs per ounce” § (USH 258 169~

o
Gold sales daes not inchide the non-cash proﬁt/(loss) on the roif forward of hedges.
Refer to explanation of non-GAAP measures provided in note 23 on pages 84 and 85.
Randgold Resources consciidates 100% of Loulo and 40% of Morila.

Restated due to change in accounting policy Jelating to stripping costs. See note 51
on change in accounting policy on pages 73 and 74.

n/a Not appiicabfe.
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Even by the hectic standards of
recent times, 2006 was a
momentous year for the gokd market
and for Randgold Resources. The
bull run continued into its seventh
year - and is now the longest in the
industry’s history - while Randgold
Resources advanced on all fronts
as its profitable growth strategy
continued to deliver positive results.

In 2006, Randgold Resources
increased its profit before tax by
more than 50% to US$74 million
and its net profit by 6% to

US$51 million after a LUS$23 million
tax charge at Morila. The company
ended the year with cash of
US$143 million after spending more
than US$100 million on the
completion of the Loulo plant, the
repayment of the first third of the
Loulo project finance, the first stage
of the Yalea underground
development and its ongoing
exploration programmes.
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Chairman’s statement

Given the robust balance sheet and the continued strong cash
flows expected from the cperations, the board decided that
it was appropriate to start dividend payments and declared a
dividend of 10 cents per share. This s, of course, not our first
distribution to shareholders: In 2002, the company returnad
some USES1 miflion to investors through a share buyback,

Operationally, it was also a successful year for Randgold
Resources, with gold production increasing by 36%. The
delays and difficuities caused by a defaulting contractor at
L.oulo were overcome arxd in its first full vear of production, the
mine has lived up to our expectations. With the plant and the
openpit operations settled at the rated (evel, work started on
the development of the Yalga underground mine and the
planning of the Gara underground mine was completed, These
higher grade mines wil significantly enhance Loulo's proctuction
profie and extend its life to 2024.

The company's Morila joint venture again continued to make
a solid contribution. Unhedged and debt free, it remains a
major cash generator. In Céte d'voire, the Tongon project has
progressed to the bankable feasibility stage; a developrnent
decision will be made within two years, Elsewhere In the
company’s prospect portfolio, a number of advanced targels
are retuming promising results. )

During the review period, as before, Randgold Resources’
management has been guided by a simple philosophy: 10
invest our financial and intellectual capital in exploration to find
successiul operations capable of generating profits which we
can reinvest in our future to create sustainability. The growth
strategy based on this belief is a long term one, and while we
regulary review its implermnentation, we do not allow ourselves
to become distracted from our course by transient market
trends. Itis this consistency, | believe, that has given Randgeld
Resources a record of value creation that has very few peers
in tha gold industry.

This is particularty important in the curent market, where the
excitement of a rising gold price seems to have shifted the
industry's emphasis from buikding profitable businesses o
pursuing short term trading opportunities.  Similarly, some
investors appear to be more interested in prociuction and short
ternn share price performance than in real value creation and
sustainable profitability.

The industry’s market capitalisation has grown substantially
but this growth has been driven by merger and acquisition
activity and a flumy of new listings, rather than by the discovery




and development of new gold reserves. Indeed, the new goid
supply remains flat at best, This suggests that the market is
being buoved up by short term speculative sentiment rather
than the development of new resources and the creation of
real value.

We do not know how long the bull un in the gold price wilt
continue. However, as far as Randgold Resources is concemed,
our overriding priority is to continue finding and developing
good gold prospects and building a business that will be
profitable not only at the present gold prices but also at the
much lower price levels at which the metal has traded in the
past,

This is why we maintain our focus on organic growth through
discovery and development, and why we continue (o invest
and 1o re-invest in our future, thus strengthening and enhancing
the quality of our assets. And it is important to note that in our
pursuit of growth, we place quality far above size. As the
philoscpher Voltaire observed: "Dieu r'est pas pour les gros
bataillons, mais pour ceux qui tirent le mieux (God is not on
the side of the heavy battafions, but of the best shots)".

Chief among these assets are Randgold Resources' people.
In the challenging spheres of African mining and intemational
markets, @ company's success is directly linked to the skils
and motivation of its personnel and their ability to work as a
team. The Randgold Resources team is acknowledged as
one of the best In the business. Indeed, a recent analyst's
report from Arbuthnot Securities puts it even morg strongly:
"Managerment with a solid understanding of production and
exploration is key to the success of a mining company.
Randgold has in our opinion the foremost team of any in the
industry. They have demonstrated their abifity, initiatly through
the discovery and construction of Morila, followed by the
development of the Loulo cperation”.

Randgold Resources has since its establishment had
exceptionally competent executive and exploration teams.
Qver time, the company has also developed first clags skills
in evaluaticn, design and development of capital projects,
operational management, corporate firance, procurerent and
logistics. 1t has also invested a great daal of ffort in nurturing
local managers in host countries, to considerable effect. For
example, the general manager and the financial controfler for
Mali as well as the general manager of Loulo are all Malian
nationals.

Uy

In the challenging sphares of Alrican
mining and intemational markets, a
COMPAaNY's success is diectly inked o
ine skills and mativation of its personnel
and their abilty tc work as a team.”

Philippe Ligtard
Chairman

The fine results of the past year, and the compary’s distinguished
record of delivery, stand as a tribute to the wide ranging abiliies,
depth of experience and seamless coaperation of its corporate,
regional and operational teams.

As part of the continuing expansion of the company’s
intellectual base, two eminent international businessmen
joined our board as non-executive directors last year. They
are Norbome P Cole, Jr and Kar Voltaire,

Norb, a US national, is a former chief executive of the second-
largest Coca-Cola botiler in the world while Kar, a French
national, oversaw the development of a number of major mirdng
projects in Africa during more than 20 years with the Worid
Bank and the Intemational Finance Corporation. Both of them
have extensive board level experience and they have signiicantly
broadened the Randgold Resources board's international
dimensions and enhanced its capacity to deal with an
increasingly complex legal and commercial environment.

Jean-Anteing Cramer retired as a non-executive director. We
thank him for almost 10 years of service to the company. |
should alsc like 1o express my gratitude to my collsagues on
the board for the sure guidance they again supplied at the
stralegic 'evel and in matlers of govemance. A special word
of appreciation is due to Mark Bristow for his dedication and
the inspiraticnal leadership he continues to provide.

We also thank the many other people, including our business
partners, advisors and suppliers, who in one way or another
again contributed to the company’s success last year.

QOver the past 10 years, Randgold Resources has invested
more than US$1 bilion in Afdca. The mines it has developed
have paid more than US$550 milion in taxes, dividends and
royalties to their host countries and provided skilis and careers
for more than 3 Q00 people. By working in partnership with
these countries, we aim to create not only short term prosperity
but economic welfare capable of outliving the mines on which
it was built, ‘We also seek to be a responsible corporate citizen
and a good neighbour in the countries where we operate, wilh
concerted actions to improve the quality of life and protect the
environment.

We have sustained our efforts to explain the company and its
intentions clearly to investors wordwide. We are gratified by
the level of investor interest and support Randgold Resources
enjoys and which are reflected not only in the performance of
its share price but in the breadth and quality of its shareholder
base. We thank our shareholders for their support and look
forward to delivering on their expectations in years 1o come.
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Directors

Philippe Liétard

Chairman-

Managing director of the Global Natural Resources Fund from
2000 to 2003. Prior to July 2000, he was director of the Oil,
Gas and Mining Departiment of the International Finance
Corporation. His experience in corporate and project finance
with UBS, IFC and the World Bank exiends over 30 vears,
most of them in the minerals business and in Africa. Now an
independent consultant and a promoter of mining and energy
investments. Appointed a director in February 1998 and
chairman in November 2004,

D Mark Bristow

Chief executive officer

Mark is a geclogist with more than 20 years' experience in the
mining industry and holds a PhD in Geology from Natal University,
In August 1985, he was appointed a director and subsequently
chief executive of Randgold Resources where he has been
instrumental in developing the company into a gold-focused
mining and exploration business with a market cap of more
than US$1 bilion and a strong investor folowing. He has also
played a significant role in encouraging the emergence of the
mining sector in the West African sub region where Randgold
Resources has found and developed world class assets and
forged productive parinerships. He is currently a non-executive
director of Rockwell Resources International and previously
held board positicns at African Platinum, Harmony Gold Mining
Company, Durban Roodepoon Deep and Randgeld &
Exploration.

Mark Bslow

viv

Roger A Williams

Group finance director

Roger Williams is a chartered accountant with 19 years'
experience in finance including ten years in the gold mining
industry. He joined Randgold Resourcas in January 1997
when it was still a private company and he hag been part of
the management team that has overseen the company's growth
into a billion dollar market cap FTSE 250 company. He was
appointed group finance director in April 2002.

Bernard H Asher

Senior independent non-executive e

From 1986 to 1998, he was an executive director of HSBC
Holdings plc and chairman of the HSBC Holdings' subsidiary,
HSBC nvestmient Bank plc. Was chairman of Lonrho Africa
pte, vice chaiman of the Gourt of Gevernors of the London
Schoot of Econornics and of the Legal & General Group plc
and a director of Morgan Sindall pic. He is chairman of Lion
Trust Asset Management and senior independent director of
Morgan Sindall. Was appointed director of Randgold Resources
in 1997 and senior independent director in 2003,
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Norborne P Cole, Jr

inclependent non-executivete

Norb Cole started working for the Coca-Cola Company as a
field representative in the USA in 1966 and advanced steadily
through the organisation, becoming chief executive of Coca-
Cola Amatll in Australia in 1994, a position he held urtil 1998.

Under his leadership, Coca-Cola Amalil was built into the
second largest Coca-Cola botller in the world. Now based in
San Antonio, Texas, he serves on the boards of a number of
US companies.

Robert | Israel

independent non-executive§

Until April 2000, a managing director of Schroder & Co Inc of
New York and head of its energy department. Is now partner
at Compass Achvisers, LLP, His experience in comporate finance,
especially the natural resources sector, extends over 26 years.
Was appointed a director in 1997,

Chairnan of ihe augit committee and mermber of the remuneration
COmniee

Member of the audit comimittee

Chairman of the remuneration commifiee

Member of the remuneration committee

Chaiman of the governance and Nomination commities
Mermber of the governance and naminaiion Commitice

O 4 4w
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Aubrey L Paverd

Independent non-executive™”

Dr Aubrey Paverd was appointed to the board in 1985, He
holds a MSc degree from RBhodes University, South Africa and
& PhD from James Cook tUniversity, Queensland, Australia and
krings more than 40 yvears of intemational geclogical experience
to the board. Served as vice presidant of exploration for
Newrnont in USA and from 1984 1o 1989, was the group
axecutive [exploration) at North Limited In Australia. 15 now an
independert consultant and a non-executive director of
Compania de Minas Buenaventura.

Karl Voltaire

independent non-executive*”

Dr Kad Voltaire is a graduate in mineral resources engineering
from the Ecole des Mines in Paris and holds an MBA and a
PrD in Economics and Finance from the University of Chicago.
He started his career as a mining engineer in Haiti and
subseguently spent 23 years in the World Bank Group in
Washington DC, the bulk of it at the Intemational Finance
Corporation (IFC) where his last position was that of director
of global financial markets. Subsequenily, was director of the
Office of the President al the African Development Bank, Since
early 2005, has been CEO of the Nelson Mandsla Institution.
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Tania de Welzim

Group financial controller

Tania is a chartered accountant with nine years' experience in
finance including seven years in the mining industry. Prior to
joining Randgeld Resources in April 2004, she was an audit
manager with PricewaterhouseCoaopers in the UK and South
Africa,

David Haddon

General counsel and secratary

Qualified as an attorney in 1984, He has overseen the
administrative obfigations of Randgold Resources since its
incorporation and assumed secretariat responsibility when it
listed on the London Stock Exchange in July 1997. Heis a
director of Seven Bridges Trading.

Paul Harbidge

Expioration manager

Geclogist with over 14 years’ experience, mainly in West Africa,
having previously worked for Rio Tinto, Anglo American and
Ashanti.  Joined Randgold Resources in 2000 and was
appointed expleration manager in 2004,

Bill Houston

General manager - human resources

Has a masters degree in human resources managerment and
25 years' experience in human resources and organisational
development. Joined Randgold in 1992 as group training and
development manager. and headed the group human resources
function from 1996. He is a directer of Morila SA and Seven
Bridges Trading.
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Amadou Konta

General manager - Loulo

Has a degree in civil engineering as wel as several management
and project management qualifications, Was appointed mine
foreman and superintendent at Syama ming by BHP and
served as mining manager from 1897 In 2001, was promoted
to construction manager for Randgold Resources in Mali and
1o Loulo general manager in 2004.

Victor Matfield

Corporate finance manager

A chartered accountant, he was appeintad corporaie finance
manager in 2001. Prior to that, served as financial manager
of the Syama mine and as financial manager of the Morila
project. He is a director of Seven Bridges Trading.

Chris Prinsloo

Group financial and commercial manager

Qualified as a chartered secratary and has 34 years' experience
in the mining industry including finance, capital projects,
administration and supply chain management. Appointed as
commercial manager for the Randgold Group in 1943,
financial director of Somisy SA in 2000 and group financial
and commercial manager in 2002 responsible for group
accounting, supply chain management plus the risk
management and insurance portfolio. Currently serves on
the boards of Morila SA, Somilo SA and Kankou Moussa
SARL.

WViclor Mattold
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Rod Quick

New business development manager

A geologist with 13 years’ experence intNe goid mining industry.
he joined Randgoid Rasources in 1596, Rod hasbeen involved
in the exploration, avaluation and production phases of the
Morila, Louto and Tongan deposits and was appointed Somilo
resource manager in 2004, He now heads the newly jformed
'adrican hunting weam’ searching for further opgorlunlﬁes in
African countiies not currently in 1he Randgold Resources
portichio.

Adrian Reynolds

General manager - aexploration and evaluation

Has 25 years’ expenence in the mining industry and was part of
the team that deveioped the Randgold Resources' stratedy.
Manages the evaluation function and compiies technical audts,
due diigences and feasibility studies as well as relaining
executive oversight of exploration. He s a director of Morla SA
and Somilo SA.

Mahamadou Samaké

General rnanager - Mali

A professor of company law at the Universiey of Mall, Sam was
instrumental in writing the Malian iabour legisiation. He is the
general manager of the Bamaio cifice i
companies.
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N'golo Sanogo

Financial controler - Mal
HasamastersdegreeineoonomicsfromtheNaﬂonaISchoolof
Administration of Bamako as well as several management,
apcounting and financial quaifications. (nalified as an audior in
1992beiore§oinh'»gBHPMaﬁm1995. irtec! mmaterial manager
in 1968 and managemant accountant in 2001 at the Syama
mine. Following the sale of Sommisy SAN 2004 was appointed
Randgoki Resources Nl financial controler.

John Steele

General manager - capital projects

Gained exensive metallurgical and managemant expenence
in 17 years with Rand Minas and Randgold & Expioration.
Upon acauisition of Syama in 1996, was appointed 8@ director
of the Malian company, Sormisy SA, and general manager of
the mine. 1 1998, assumed position of goup general manager
capital projects, oversesing canstructicn of the Maria and
|L.oulo mines.

Lois Wark

Corporate commurications and cartegraphy manager

A member of the Randgold Resources tearn snce its inception,
Lots’ responsibilities include the coordination of the group's
Communication and Fvestor relations PIogramime, {he: production
of materials and presentaﬂons 1o the market, 83 well as the
rmanagament and integration of data captured in (IS, databases
and various other software packages.
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Randgold Resources’ progress is
systematic and strategy-directed
but it is also fast. The year under
review clearly reflected this process
of building rapidly on solid
foundations.

LOULO LIFE OF MINE FORECAST:
OUNCES RECOVERED BY SOURCE
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Chief executive’s report

Al the Loulo complex, a herculean effort by our capitat projects
team got the final phase of the plant up and running in the
face of some very considerable challenges inberited from the
construction contractor. In spite of the inevitable delay in the
commissioning of the hard-rock circuit, and the curmbersome
interim measures we had {0 take, we gradually caught up with
our original production targeis in the course of the year,
maintaining plant throughput above design capacity in the latter
half. Cutput for the year was a highly creditable 241 575
ounces at cash operating costs of US$294 per ounce.

With the open pit operation nunning well, we were abie lo shift
our tocus to the development of the two high grade
underground mines at Loulo. The construclion of the boxcut
for Yakea made good progress and the sinking of the decline
shafts got under way on 22 December with the first blast into
bedrock. in the meantime, doubling the Yalea underground
reserve, produced by continued deep driling, has resulted In
significant upgrades of the mine's design and its production
parameters. Essentially, the proposed production rate has
been stepped up from 50 000 tonnes per month to 80 000
tonnes on the back of an increase in the reserve base
from 1.87 million ounces to 3.63 million ounces.

Yalea's sister operation Gara (lhe former Loulo O) saw a similar
improverment, with underground gold reserves mere than
doubling to 1.65 millon ounces. Accordingly we have also
increased the proposed preduction rate there, from 50 000
tonnes per month to 100 000 tonnes. In redesigning Gara,
we opted for a conveyor belt system to transport are and
waste, similar to the one that will be used at Yalga. This wil
support the higher production rate more effectively than the
conventional tnuck transport system.

As shown in the accompanying graph, the two underground
mines will have a very substantial impact on Loule's Life of
Mine production profile. We erwisage a steady 250 000
ounces per year until 2009, when Yalea will start contributing.
We expect production to average above 350 000 ounces per
year from 2009 to 2015 and excead 400 000 in 2011/2112.




The challenge will be to rnaintain production at or above the
350 DOD cunce per year lever. To achieve {his, we have been

exploring around the wo main orebodies, where we have
added significant reserves over the past two years. We are
now also locking for naw orebodies in the area. Five Clear
target areas have peen deiinad, wiih Babeto and Faraba
already producing encouraging resuits.

CO8T CONTROL A KEY PRIORITY

Qur joint venture Morila operation produced 5416 /67 ounces
tor the year at cash operating costs of USB21 5 per ounce and
\olal cash costs of LUS$258 per ounce. Praduction was down
on the previous yean mainiy as & result of the move o lower
grade areas of the pit. L was also affected by fleet availzbiity
Trmitations and throughput slippages In the second and third
quarters, but these problems were addressed and BY the year
and the plant was operating at s full expanded capacity. The
drive to find more resarves within the lease area continued but
has so far not produced a significant giscovery. There has,
however, been a slight improvernent in reserves, which stood
at 2.15 mifion ounceas after depletion of 562 000 ounces at
the end of 2006, against 2 37 milion OUNGCBS at the end ¢f
2005.

At both Louto and Monla, cost controt wilt continue obea
maijor prorty for management in the year ahead. Industry wide
cost pressures are still mounting as a result of the weak dotiar
and the higher prices of diesel, steel anc other inputs. Qur
mines are in remote iocations and have 1o produce their own
power from diesel fired generators. In addition, they iun large
diese) powered mining fleets. Consequenty, diesel now makes
up some 5% of our total production costs. In general, our
costs were well cantralied i 0006, Total cash costs for the
group were USE296 per Ounce, up onthe previcus year due
1o grace decreases at both operations, but well betow the
industry average of USEIH0 per ounce. It should be noted,
incidentally, that ours are true gold production costs, uriainted
by by-product credit accourting.

“Sven Our commitment 10 organic
growih hased on disCovery and
development, expioration remans
Randgold Regources endine room.”

-,

wark Bristow
Chief execuine

MANAGING FOR THE LONG TERM

We manage our pusiness for the 1ong term, which means that
we constanty nave 10 gearch beyond our axisting orders for
fresh, profitable growih cpportunities., and never alow ourseives
the huxury of selting down inlo 8 comiort zone. Exciting and
demanding &s ihe Yalea and Gara developments are, we aeg
already locking past them at further prospects. Wa can do
{his because, as o record shows, Our management teams
are more than capable of unning oNe operation while huilding
another and advancing a third.

We are therefore setting our Sights en the Tongon project in
Céte dvoire, which could well have the rnakings of our third
major mine. Tongon hag been in our portiolio since 1997 but
we backed off from it when the civil unrest started in Cote
d'voire. With a rasource base of more than 3 milficn CUNCES,
however, it remained a key asset in our portichic. While the
political situation has not stabilised yet, we were sufficiently
ercouraged by he progress hat rad been made 10 re-estabish
3 team at Tongon \ast year. Senior officials fom the govemment
ministies as well as {he opposition have gince visited the site
and we have been impressed by their support for he project
and the leve! of cooperation they have provided. AN 8 hole
1992 metre diamond driling exercise was undertaken and s
results used toplana detaled driling prograsmime which is now
under way. This programme, along with the enginesring.
infrastructure, impact assassment and capiial estimale studies,
will be combined in @ final bankable feasibiity study which
should e ready &l the end of 2008, when a development
decision will e made. \nspite of its problems, Cate divoire
compares well 10 other African countries that have recently
pecome the targets for gold mine developrment, net least
pecause of it excellent infrastructure and great geologica'u
progpectivity.

CONTINUED EXPLORATION SUCCESS

Given our commitmant to organic growtn pased on discovery
and development, exploraticn remains Randgold Resources’
driver, The highlights of the past year have been the continued
SUCCESS N identifying and adding new resources and reserves
at Loulo, and the emergence of the Kiaka target in Burkina
Faspasa signiicant mineraiised gold gystem. :
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The Burkina Fasc leam has also completed a first pass
evaluation of our other permits in that country, identifying four
anomalies wilh strike lengths in excess of three kiometres,

In the Céte d'voire, we are not confining curselves 1 Tongon
but are pursuing cpportunities in our own name as well as in
cooperation with the state mining company with a view to
acquiring as much prospective ground as possitle before the
anticipated nomalisation of the political situation,

In Senegal, we are evaluating three il targets and a RAB
drilling procgramme has started on 12 advanced targets to
select candidates for inclusion in a new diamond drilling
campaign planned for later this year, The Ghana leam has
complated a thorough evaluation of the portfolio we have
accumulated in that country. This has enabled us to discard
unpromising holdings to concentrate on a well defined structure
showing significant large scale anomalism.  Following our
decision to scrap the Kiabakari project, our team in Tanzania
has embarked on a naw generative phase, coupled with a
review of some of the junior projects.

We ended the vear with a total of 128 promising targsts on
aimost 20 000km? in six countries in Wast and East Africa. In
linez with our policy of constantly seeking to widen our horizons,
we have recently put together a dedicated "African hunting
team’, whose brief is to find and evaluate opportunities in
prospective countries where we do net already have a presence.

CONTINUING ASSESSMENT OF CORPCQRATE
OPPORTUNITIES

As the gold price continues to rise and the new gold supply
remains static, the market pressure on producers to buy growih
at almost any cost is increasing.

We reguiarly review our corporate strategy and investment
criteria against this trend but nothing that we have seen so far
has persuaded us that the Randgoid Resources way of building
value cn a solid base of organic growth can easlly be bettered.
Inceed, every time we test i, our resohve to stick to our strategy
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is reinforced.  During ry roacishows last year { canvassed our
major shareholders on this point and, to a fund, they were
supportive of our approach.

The commitment to organic growth is not a blinkerad one,
however, and we continug to watch the market closely for
corporate growth oppertunities that are capable of adding real
value instead of amounting to just another consolidation.

THE NEXT BIG THING

The year ghead will see Randgold Resources building again,
with the focus areas being the Loulo underground mines and
the Tongon feasibility study.  Production from our operations
is expected to be in line with the past year's output, with Morila
scheduled t¢ produce 500 000 ounces and Loulo set to
exceed 250 000. |f the gold price performs according to
market expectations, Randgold Rescurces should therefore
again produce robust profits for 2007,

The secorid graph on page 8 of this report shows our production
profile for the past three years and the forecast for the next
five. The impact of Louto is obvious and its planned growth
should mere than make up for the tapering off of Morila.
Should Tongon get the go-ahead, the picture improves even
further,

Randgold Resources’ efforts have eamed it some exceptional
laurels but we have no intention of resting on them. Our aim
is to hunt down that real profitable growth opportunity, sither
organic or external. There are no guarantees in this business,
but given our performance record and ihe proven capability
of our team, t am positive about our prospects of achieving
this objective.

A GREAT TEAM EFFORT

On that nots, | would like to take this opportunity of placing on
record my admiration for the great work that our managements
and people have done and continue to do. It is their dauntiess
spirit that has enabled us to conquer the challenges and seize
the opportunities. | would aiso like to thank our chairman,
Philippe Ligtard, and the other members of the board for the
support, direction and perspective they provide,




Review of operations

Embedded deep in our culture is the drive
to discover world class deposits and
develop them into profitable cperations.
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The results for the year reflect the
successful progression of the
company’s profitable growth
strategy. Profit before tax was up
from LUS$48 miflion to US$74 million
for the year.

Financial review

This was the first full year of corperate tax at Morila and the
group incurred an income tax charge of US$23.1 million for
the vear (2005: US$0.2 milion). Net profit for the year of
US$20.9 milion was up by 6% compared to the previous vear,
The main factors in the improved profit were the first full year
of procduction at Loulo and higher gold prices. These elements
were partially offset by lower grades resulting in lower producton
at Morila and increased costs. Gold prices averaged US$604/02
compared to US$445/0z7 in 2005. Attributable production
was up for the third successive year at 448 242 ounces
assuming 100% of Loulo's production (399 927 ounces
assuming 80% of Loulo's production) as compared to
314 831 ounces in 2005 and 204 184 ocunces in 2004,
Eamings per share of 70 cents were in line with the 74 cents
of 2005 {restated) and up on 32 cents in 2004,

Cash cperating costs for the group were US$258/0z, up from
USE169/cz in 2005 (restated). After rovalties, total cash costs
for the group were US$296/cz for the year compared to
USE201/0z in 2005 (restated). This compares 1o an average
for the industry which is now over US$350/0z. Industry wide
cost pressures have continued this year resulting from the
waak dollar, high diesel, steel and contract mining costs.
Diesel comprised approximately 26% of the preduction costs
in the year. Contract mining costs make up over 30% of
production costs. Despite these cost pressures, costs have
been well controlled at both locations and the lower grade
processed is the main factor in the increased cost per ounce.
Grades at Morila decreased from 5.9g/t in 2005 to 4 2g/t this
year, and at Loule from 4.5g/ to 3.2g/t as per the respective
Life of Mine plans. However on a cost per tonne basis, Morila
performed well by keeping cosis steady at just over
US$33/onne and Loulo’s increase year-on-year of 10% to
just over USE30/onne is explained by the introduction of hard
rock mining and crushing.

Expenditure_ on exploration and corporate costs continues to
be an impertant investment with US$29 milllion being spent in
the year compared to last year's US$24 million. Extensive
driling programmes were undertaken in all countries in which
the company operates except for Ghana.




Marlla's five year Mali corporate profit tax holiday ended in
November 2005 and the accounts include a charge of
1US%23 million for tax payable compared to USH0.2 million the
previous year, Loulo benefits from excreration from corporate
profit tax for five years from the date of first commercial
production which was 8 November 2005.

The company's cash position remains very healthy with
U$143 million of cash and cash equivalents on the balance
sheet and borowings of USE53 million. Net cash has improved
from last year despite the signilicant expenditure on exploration
and corporate costs: US$32 milion was spent on completion
of the Loulo capital project and US$18 milion on underground
equipment and the commencement of the decline shait sinking
at Loulo. Funds are only invested in fixed deposits and monay
market instruments with superior credit ratings. US$19 million
of the USEB0 million project financing was paid back during
the year.

in view of the strong cash flows from operations and the
company's strong balance sheet, the board decided to declare
an annug! dividend of 10 cents per share, totalling a payout
of US$8.9 miion, This is the company’s first dividend and is
a reflection of the profitable evolution of the business.
Sharehclders have also enjoyed substartial capital retums in
the year with the share price rising 45% from US$16.13 0
1USE23.46 at year end. This follows a 41% increase in 2005.

The main balance sheet movernents in the year include a
significant increase in property, plant and equipment. This is
mainly due to the completicn of the Loulo capital project and
funds being spent on underground equipment and the decline
shaft sinking at Loddo.

The increase in long term stockpiles relates to Morila where
the cument Life of Mine plan ervisages a build up of stockples
until mining of the pit stops in 2008, After this, the lower grade
stockpiles will be processed.

Ciher significant balances include advances to the main
contractor at Louto, MOM Ferroman (Pty) Ltd (in liquidation}
{"MDM"). Significant uncertainties exist as to the recoverability
of the amounts due by MDM to the company. White the
directors believe that the group wilt be able to recover in {ull

the US$12.1 million included in receivables, the amount
recavered will be in part dependent on how much can be
recovered from performance bonds, personal guarantees and
other assets provided as secunty and, if these amounts prove
insufficient, the outcome of the liquidation of MDM. In addiition,
the group has a further claim of US$B47.2 million representing
al' amounts paid in excass of the ump sum contract and
damages arising from the delayed completion of the project,
which the direciors believe the group is entitled to recover from
MOM. This armount is not included in the finarcial statements.
Fut detads are given in note 24 to the annual financial staterments.
As in the previous vear, this significant uncertainty is the subject
of an emphasis of matier in the audit report.

Receivables also inchude USTF20.3 million relating to reimbursable
fuel duties and TVA owing by the govemmenit of Mali to Morila
and Loulo. An additional provision of US$1.3 million based
on an estimate of the time value of money given the slow
moving nature of these items has been raised this year.

Accounts payable has increased significantly in the year due
to the build up of stores to a normat operating level at Loulo.

Work is unclerway on the Yalea underground mine at Loulo.
The initial capital programme for the next four years is estimated
to cost approxdmately US$H100 million, of which US$18 milion
has already been spent. After this capital phase, the Yalea
underground will be fully cperational. The Gara undergreund
development is planned o start in 2009 with first ore fed to
the plant in 201 0.

Lite of Mine (*LOM’) scheduling at Morila anticipates
production for 2007 to be approximately 500 000 ounces
{200 0Q0 attributable). Loulo's 2007 production is scheduled
10 exceed 250 000 ounces. Total cash costs for the group
are estimated to increase year on year between 10% and 15%
depending on diesel price assumptions and the gold price
which impacts on Mali government royalties paid. Randgold
Resaurcas will continue o invest extensively in its prospective
exploration portiolio and the company is well funded to finance
its development plans.



Loulo Gold Mine ("Somilo”) is
located in the west of Mali,
bordering Senegal, adjacent to
the Falémé River. It is situated
350 kilometres west of Bamako
and 220 kilometres south of Kayes,
The mine is located within the
Kedougou-Kenieba inlier of Birimian
rocks, which hosts several major
gold deposits in Mali namely Gara,
Yalea, Sadiola, Segala, Tabakoto
and Sabodala, across the border in
Senegal.
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Operations and projects

LOULO MINE

The Gara orebody, previcusly known as Loulo Q, was first
discovered on the lease by the Syndicat Or (a joint venture
between the BRGM and DNGM) in 1981, In June 1682, BHP
acquired the shares of BRGM (in Syndicat Or}, and entered
the Somilo joint venture togeiher with the Malian govermnment,
BHF Minerals Mali Inc was subsequently acquired by Randgold
Resources, in Ociober 1996.

At that time, the total project gold resources were estimated
by BHP to be 1.25 milion ounces. Randgold Resources then
undertook detatled exploration which resutted in the discovery
of the Yalea deposit. Following the acceptance of a bankable
feasibility study in 1898, by the board of directors of Somilo,
Randgold Resources exercised its option to increase s
participation in the project to 51%. However, the project was
put on hold with the subsequent drop in the gold price to
US$250/0z. In 2001, Randgold Rescurces also acquired the
29% La Source share in Somilo, raising its stake to 80%,
with the govemment of Mali holding the remaining 20%.

As a resuit of a gold price recovery in 2003 and the completion
of a successful exploration drilling campaign (which added
significant confidence 1o Randgold Resources' knowledge of
the orebodies and highlighted the potential of significantly more
reserve ounces at depth with respect (o both Yalea and Gara),
a revised feasibility study was conducted and demonstrated
that the project met the company's investment retum guidelines.
The Randgeld Resources board then approved the investment
in Sorio, which facilitated the development of the Loulo mine.

The Loulo rmine was officially opened con 12 November 2005.
On 30 Lecember 2005, notice was given to the main
construction contractor and Randgold Resources' capital
projects team took over completing the hard rock crushing
and related phase | ¢ircuits, which had fallen behind schedule. *
Despite delays caused by the late commissioning of the hard
rock: crushing circuit, throughput in 2006 was maintained at
levels ghove the design specification. This resulted in production
of 241 575 ounces for the year, only marginally below
expectations, mainly as a result of not being in a position to
feed as much of the criginally planned higher grade hard cre.




The higher average spot gold price received of USE601/cz
was offset by the eftects of delivering 66 825 ounces into the
hedge at an average US$434/0z and resuited in gold sales
of US$136.8 million for the year. This excludes the accounting
impact of hedge conlracts rolled forward, which resulted in
gold revenue under IFRS of US$H132.4 milion. Cash cperating
costs of LUSE294/0z for the year are up from the pravious year
which reflected only two months of oxide operations. This
resulted in profit from rnining of USE57.5 million for the first full
vear of operation at Louto and a net profit of US$25.3 milion
after deducting depreciation, financing costs and exploration
and losses on hedge contracts roled forward.

Loulo production has reached steady state and consequentty
the focus in 2007 will be on process optimisation and improving
cost contral given the cost pressures impacting the industry,

particutarty with respect to grinding media, reagents and dieset
for power generation.

Despite loading equipment difficulties, the mining contractor
moved a total of 18.4 million tonnes at a strip ratio of 6.2:1
wasle to ore, As part of an exercise to curtail the effect of
rising contractor costs, all ise and fall formulae will be reviewed
to take into account inflationary amounts and not contractor
inefficiencies.

The Loulo mine has proved to be Randgold Besources' second
successiul ming development, The focus s now on ensuring
that thae operation becomes one of Africa’s more efficient gold
mines and the underground development is carried out cost
effectively and on time.

Hard rock crusher at Loufo.
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ISUMMARYS

Z  Mining
Tonnes mined (million tonnes) 18.36 12.10
Cre tonnes mined {milicn tonnes) 2.55 1.21

= Milling
Total ore milled {million tonnes) 2.60 053
Tonnage rate ffonnes per hour) 337 304
Mill avallabiliy/utilisation (%) 87.90 47.30
Head grade - reconciled (gh) 3.15 4,46
QOverall gold recovery (%) 93.54 94.30
Gravity (%) 5.79 6.08
Cyanidation (%) 88.15 89.78
Gold produced and shipped {0z} 241 575 67 984

= Total ming
Average price received (USHoz)” 556 499
Cash gperating costs (US$/oz)* 294 137
Total cash costs (US$oz)” 328 165
Profit from mining {(US$ million)* 575 185
Gold sales (USS milion)* 136.7 30.7
Net profit (USS million) 25.3 12.0

Refer to explanation of non GAAP measures provided in
note 23 on page 84 and 85.

MINE FACILITIES

Loulo mine consists of two main open pits (Yalea and Gara)
as well as other smaller sateliite pits. The mine is currentty
developing the first of iis underground sections at Yalea. The
second underground mine will foliow in two years' time at Gara.

The plant is designed to process an average of 320 tonnes
per hour, 2.5 million tonnes per annum using the following
cirouits: (1) crushing - a three-stage crushing circuit for the
hard rock sulphide ores and a single stage rol toothed crusher
for the soft weathered cxide ores, (2} miling - the miling circuit
comprises two parallel single stage ball mills in closed circuit
with a dedicated cluster of hydro-cyclones, (3) gravity - two
XD 48 Knelson centrifugal primary concentrators followed by
a shaking table for re-dressing of primary concentrates, {4) CIL
recovery process, (5) Zadra elution process and gold recovery.

MINERAL RESOURCES
Despite the mining deplation, 1otal resources increased by
1.42 millien cunces to 11.35 milion ounces.

During the year, a total of 2.5 million tonnes at 3.35g/t was
mined from four pits: Yalea, Gara, P125 and P129. The softer
oxide ore was Initially fed to the plant, with hard ore being

stackpiled while the hard rock crusher was completed. On
commissioning the hard rock crusher the plant wag fed with
ex-pit and stockpile material.

Al the end of December 2006, total material on stockpile was
673 579 tornes at 2.44g/t. Of this, 25 461 tennes at 3.95a/
was on the plant cone, 45 431 tonnes at 3.58¢/t on the
Run of Mine (*ROM" pad and 602 687 tonnes at 2.29g/t on
rehandle stockpiles behind the ROM pad.

Grade control versus plant check out reconciliations were
acceptable for most of the vear, leading up to the hard rock
crusher commissioning, when reconciliation was poor as a
result of cre being fed frem unplanned sources. Cnce the
feed was stabilised during the last quarter of the vear,
recenciliations were back within 3% on tonnage and 2% on
grade, Infill RC drifing over P129 and Gara West has allowed
us 1o improve our confidence in these resources and transfer
them into the reserve category with pit designs.

Driling concentrated on Gara Deeps during 2006, with definition
driling also continuing at Yalea. Incorporation of the Gara holes
has allowed the extension of the resource to 600 metres below
surface. Infill driling has allowed for the conversion of resources
to reserves with the completion of the latest underground mine
dasign. Driling at Faraba has allowed for additional resources
to be added, while tolal resources have increased by 15%
inciusive of mining depletion for the year. This takes the total
resource number over the 11 millon cunce mark, Greenfields
exploration continued on the rernainder of the permit with
drilling at the P84 1arget and Gara Scuth showing promising
results.

ORE RESERVES

After mining depletion of 262 804 cunces, the overall reserve
increased substantially from 5.7 million ounces to 6.8 milion
ounces. Most of the increase has taken place at Gara, but
a small increase also occumred at Yalea, For more detail see
the Rescurce and Reserve table on page 18.

The Lodlo mine is a dynamic environment and consequently
the planning depariment continually updates the mine plans.
Due 1o the number of deposits and targets, mine plans are
developed individually for parts of the operation as new
information becomes available. When significant changes
have been made to any part of the project, the LOM plan is
updated.

2006 was the first year of continuous operations and the
resulting costs, mining rates and plant throughput realised
have been used in updating the mine plans and have had a
consaquent effect on those plans.  Pit optimisation was camied
out at a gold price of US$475/0z with actual 2006 costs for
mining, procassing, general and administration applied.




\onpes! el (Gold] jtable]
My M @G @ e e
MINERARRESOURECES] 2006 2005) 2006} 606 PH05) )
Z  Stockpiles Measured 0.67 0.66 2.44 2.4 0.05 0.06
Gara (was Louio () Measured 8.15 9.40 3.86 3.84 .01 1.16
Indicated  15.86 9.93 4.10 4.34 2.09 1.39
inferred 1.32 0.31 3.25 6.28 014 0.06
Z  Yalea {incl P125) Measured 6,15 8.80 4.07 4.02 0.80 0.88
Indicated  29.37 32.75 5.44 5.08 513 5.36
Inferred 8.76 3.18 3.84 4.65 1.08 0.47
I Satellites (129, Gara
West, Loulo 3, Baboto) Indicated 1.67 232 2.46 228 0.13 017
Inferred 591 6.33 1.82 1.75 0.35 0.33
Faraba Inferred 8.78 - 2.60 - 057 -
Z  TOTAL MEASURED AND INDICATED 61,77 61.86 4,64 4.54 9.22 9.03 7.37
= TOTAL INFERRED 22.77 9.82 2.91 2.87 213 0.90 1.70
Attribu
honnes) (Grade] ' Golah jtablel
IOUIE: (L) (M) : (Mozh (Maz)
2006] 2005] 2006, 2005 2005 E(Moz)
= Stockpiles Proved 0.67 0.66 2.44 294 0.05 0.06
— Gara {was Loulo 0} Proved 6.12 7.29 3.19 3.29 0.63 0.77
Probable Q.74 Q.24 3.11 3.00 0.07 0.02
Sub-total 6.87 7.53 3.18 3.28 0.70 0.79
T~ Yalea - shallow pit Proved 3.29 4.72 3.80 3.56 0.40 0.54
Probable 0., (.04 2.49 2.87 0.001 0.004
Sub-total 3.30 4,76 3.80 3.55 0.40 0.54
T Yalea - deep pit Proved 1.08 1.07 4.79 4.79 0.7 0.17
Probable 0.68 0.68 571 572 0.13 0.12
Sub-iotal 1,77 1.75 5.15 515 0.28 0.29
= P125 Proved 0.05 - 4.68 - 0.01 -
Probable 0.001 0.51 3.5 3.63 (.0001 0.06
Sub-lotat 0.05 0.5 4.66 3.53 0.01 Q.06
- P129 Probable 0.15 0.24 2.70 267 0.01 0.02
= Gara West Probable 0.56 - 2.10 - 0.04 -
= Total surface sources 13.37 15.48 351 3.56 1.52 1.77
= Garajfwas Loulo 0} UG Probable 1314 5.14 3.91 4.00 1.65 0.66
= Yalea UG Probable  22.64 17.98 4,99 5.46 3.63 3.15
Z Total UG sources 35.78 23.12 4.59 5.13 5.28 3.82
=~ TOTAL PROVED 11.21 13.75 3.47 3.48 1.26 1.54 1.01
< TOTAL PROBABLE 37.63 24.82 4.54 5.07 5.54 4.05 4,43
T TOTAL MINE 49,14 38.57 4.30 4.51 6.80 5.59 5.44

* See glossary of terms on websile at www.randgoldresources.com.




The underground operation at Yalea, which had its inaugural
blast on 17 October 2006, has seen significant reworking of
the mine plans. The increased conficence in understanding
the underground cost prefile has had an effect on cptimising
the open pit to underground interface leading to more ore
being planned to be mined from underground. The deaper
pit reserves in the south of Yalea allract a stripping ratio of
approximately 13:1 indicating it might be more efficient to
exploit this cre from underground.  These have conseguently
been separated from those shallower reserves pending
completion of an undergreund mine design and plan, at which
stage they might report to the underground reserve.

Tha 2006 mining operation at Yalea led to the depletion of
1.08 milion tonnes at a grade of 3. 15g/t for 108 782 ounces.

The open pit design at Gara has also been updated based
on the latest resource model and updated costs. An update
to the open pitYunderground interface is curmently undarway.
The higher operating costs have been offset by the higher gold
price indicating a similar size pit to that previously reportad.
During the year, 1.28 million tonnes at a grade of 3.47gA for
142 851 ounces were mined from the Gara pit,

During the year mining also took place in the two smaller pits,
P125 and P12, where a combined total of 18 252 ounces
was minad.

Underground reserves were increased during the year as a
result of an increase in the resource model due to extra drilling,
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This translated into an increase in underground resarves at
Gara of approximately 720 000 cunces which was reported
at the end of the fourth quarter of 2006. Subsequent to that
a further refinement in the underground mine design has led
to the reserve being increased to 13.14 million tonnes at a
grade of 3.91g/ for 1.85 million ounces (2005: 5.14 million
tonnes at a grade of 4.00g4 for 0,66 million ocunces). While
this has almest tripled the Gara reserve, early indications from
driling to the south of the cument reserves, is that additional
high grade mineralisation is present in this area. This could
lead 1¢ a re-planning and scheduling of the Gara underground
where mining is due t¢ commence in 2009,

MINING

Mining operations at Loulo are carmied out under contract by
BCM Mali SA, a subsidiary of BCM Intemational Ltd. BCM
operates a fleet of two Liebherr 994B excavators and
14 Caterpillar 777D dump trucks, assisted by various ancillary
equipment. Apart from mining the main Gara and Yalea pits,
this year alsc saw the mining of two satellite pits, 2129 and
P125. BCM also provides the drill and blast services with bulk
explosive products and accessories being supplied by MAXAM
Mali SARL, a subsidiary of MAXAM Intemational.

LOULO: YALEA UNDERGROUND MINE SCHEDULE
— Yalea openpit

2007
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The average production volume for the mining fleet during
2006 was 700 kbem per month, which was ramped up o
800 kibem per month towards the end of the year.

LEILER

WMININGIRESUINS] 2006
2 Ore tonnes mined (milion tonnes) 2.55 1.21
= Cre grade {g/) 3.35 4.50
Z  Waste mined (milion tonnes) 15.82 10.88
= Stripping ratio 6.2:1 10:1
= Tetal tonnes mined (million tonnes) ~ 18.36 12.09
ORE PROCESSING
Production

The year commenced with milled production rates of 370 to
395 tonnes per hour being achieved, higher than the
300 tennes per hour target originally planned. Soft ore from
upper levels, predominantly from Yalea, made this feasible.
Tornage throughput ramped wp and peaked at 257 377 tonnes
in March 2006 and thereafter graciually cecreased to an annual
low of 180311 tonnes in June 2006. Several factors contributed
1o this decrease in monthly tonnage throughput, with the main
issues being the increased throughput of Yalea transitional ore,
the introduction of harder Gara pit ore and the commissioning

of the hard rock crusher. The last quarter saw monthly lonnage
throughput rates back to the 220 000 tonnes per month
planned, as the total process plant achieved steady state.

A total of 2.6 million tonnes was milled during the year with a
head grade of 3.15g/t. An overall year lo date gold recovery
of 83.9% was achieved resulting in 241 575 gold ounces
produced and shipped. Gold recoveries have gererally been
affected by the mineralogy of the ore. Deeper transitional and
fresh ore from the Yalea pit have resulted in lower recoveries
in the range of 89.5 to 92.5% (as per plan), whereas the
treatment of Gara pit oxide cre resutted in significantly higher
than expected gold recoveries of 97.0% plus. The mill availability
varied through the year but averaged $1% during the fina!
quarter as steady state conditions were attained.

Tailing storage facility

Somilo recognises the importance of sound tailings disposal
practices for safety and erwironmental reasons. It has formed
partnerships with tailings disposal specialist Fraser Alexander
Tallings and mine residue and environmental engineering
consuitant Epoch Resources, to develop the Tailings Storage
Facility {"TSF" at Loulo. Fraser Alexander Tailings mobilised
to site in March 2006, The main starter wall is being mechanically
raised to the 147 metre level and thereafter cycloning will
cOMMENGS to raise the TSF walls.
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UNDERGROUND

Mine design

Buring the course of the year furiher progress was made re-
assessing the designs for both the Yalea and the Gara mines.

Yalea underground mine

Whils the criginal SRK feasibility study on the rmining of the
Yalea deposit from underground erwvisaged a single truck
decling, a re-design with increased production via a twin decline
system incorporating the use of conveyor belts 1o transport
ore to surface was adopted at the end of 2005. The main
reason for the change was the increase in the resource and
reserve base which allows for higher production levels,
Additional benefits relate to safety and access aspacts of
mining. This design also has the advantage of accessing the
higher grade payshoot earlier in the schedule allowing a much
faster buildup in forecast gold producticn.

During 2008, tne design was refined further: while the LOM
rermaing almost the same, Total ore raserves for the Yalea
undgrground now amount 1o 3.63 milion cunces {from
1.87 million ounces previously quoted in the SRK teasibility
study} and the production rate has been increased to
80 000 tonnes per menth from 50 000 tannes per month with
the possibility of even higher ates vet to be examined,

Gara underground mine
During the third quarter of the year, a deep underground driling
programme was completed at the Gara deposit demonstrating

considgrable extensions to the orebody. An updated resource
estimate was published of 25 million tonnes at a grade of
4.11g for a total of 3.3 million ounces, an increase over the
2005 year end of 800 000 ounces.

Based on this increased resource base, a mine re-design was
completed and scheduled. Total underground ore reserve for
Gara al the end of the fourth quarter 2006 armounted to 1.38
million ounces, an increase of 720 000 ounces over the
previous reserve. The production rate has been increased 1o
100 GO0 tonnes per rmonth {previously 60 000 tonnes per
month).  Subseauent to this, additional design has increased
the reserve to 1.65 million ounces.

The main feaiures of the design for Gara are as follows:

= The design has been based on the Yalea design with the
exception that the two declines will both be developed
from the open pit instead of a boxcut.

The twin declines will form part of a twin ramp system,
one towards the north and the other towards the south,
diding the underground ming in two separate mining and
ventilation districts,

A conveyer belt system will be used to transport ore and
waste cut of the mine rather than the conventionat truck
transport,

= Waste passes will be developed from inside the pit to
facilitate backfill,

The reverse Avoca mining method is planned to reduce
ore lock up in pillars.

L1
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This design has also been tested by comparing the enlarged
resource to the modification of original design. Comparison
of the forecast gold production by the conveyor option over
the trucking option shows a much faster build-up of production
as well as a higher level of production, improved safety and
ventitation conditions.

Curently the Gara decling is planned to start in 2008 with full
production being achieved in 2014.

The foliowing table lists the sallent features of the underground
mine designs:

DESTEN AN,

Life of Mine 13 years 18 vears
Cre resenve 1.38 Mozs  3.21 Mozs
Production rate 100 000 tpm 80 000 tprm
Capital expenditure first

four years

Ongoing capital expenditure
{development, flest and
infrastruciure) per year

= Average total cash

cost per ounce

BN IR

USB45m UsSEsim

USES.5m  USE3.8m

US$277/07 USE199/0z

Operational progress

The excavation work of the Yalea boxcut, carmed out by G&S
Contraciors with technical assistance from mining contractor
Snaft Sinkers, made good progress. Bedrock was exposed
during November and the final soft excavation work was
completed mid December, some 60 000m? in total having
been removed. The first blast inta solid rock was taken on
22 December 2006,

The delivery of the underground heavy vehicle fleet from
JA Delmias is amost completed, A senvice contract has been
concluded with Manutention Africaine.

Construction of the mine offices, workshops and other site
infrastructure including electrical supply, has commenced and
is expected to be complsted by the end of the first quarter of
2007.

Exploration
Exploration is reported on in the exploration review on
page 34.

ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Montnly menitoring programmes continued through the year,
incorporating dust fallout levels as well as physiochemical,
cyanide. ofl, grease and bacteriological levels of surface and
ground water points covering the site and the main water
courses surounding the mine. No poliution was detected in
this testwork. Bi-annual audits were completed by independent
ervironmental consuttantss, as well as by a National Ervironmental
Delegalion from the government 1o verify results and audit
ervironmeanta! management procedures. With the completion
of tha main capital construction, rehabilitation programmes
were initiated which included the landscaping and re-vegetation
of bomow pit and construction sites with vegetation gamminated
in the mina nursery.

The waste recycling system continued with mine waste being
separated into steel, wood, glass, plastic, aluminium, organic
and other waste. Glass, plastic, auminium, wood and steel
is sold off to kocal contractors and the funds channefled back
to the communily development budget.

1SO14001 training was initiated and it is the ming's intention
to move towards compliance with this code. Revised closure
and environmental management systems are being designed
incorporating LOM changes as a result of the underground
projects.

Community lisison meetings were held monihly between the
mine and village representatives to address issues raised by
both parties. t is Randgoid Resources' commilment 10 address
basic health, education and access 10 potable water and wil
suppert inltiatives to create employment and income for the
community, In this light four new borehcles were driled in the
surounding vilages and local artisans were trained in the repair
of the purmnps; a malaria spraying programme was expanded
to include the vilages of Louto and Dijidian-Kenieba, resulting
in a 55% reduction in malaria cases treated compared 10 2005,
HiV awareness campaigns were supponed in conjunction with
NGOs; a foot bridge was built across (he Gara River to aliow
farmers to access land adjscent to the new pemanent water
supply of the Gara Dam; a beakeeping test farm was initiated;
school furniture was donated to the local schools; and the
Bolibanta Women's marketl gardens were supported with
donations of seed.

The construction of 2 new school at Louo and a Mayoral Office
at Sitakily were other projects initiated during the year.
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CONSTRUCTION REPORT

Having taken the construction project back from the primary
contractor, MDM, in December 2005, the balance of the work
has been completed by our in-house project team. The overall
process facility s performing well with tonnage throughput
averaging 16% above the design capacity for the year.

The hard ore crushing facility, comprising three stages of
crushing, was built during the first half of 2006 and
commissioned in June. Crushing cperations have progressed
well and the plant is now exceeding its onginal specified duty.
Construction of the 40 000 tonne (live) crushed ore stockpile
has recently bean completed and commissioned.

Construction of the first of Loule’s underground secticns, the
Yalea decling, commenced in July with the excavation of the
boxcut, with access 10 the twin portals. The boxcut excavation
has been completed and work on the decline tunnels is in
progress.  The underground construction contract was awarded
to Shaft Sinkers.

The remaining work to completa the fuel farms at the plant site
and at the mining area was camed out during 2006 and these
facilities are now fully operational.

The raw water pumping station, at the Falémé River, is now
fully operational. Construction of the Gara sicrage dam pump
station is complete and commissionad.

The CIL expansion project ian additional 4 CIL tanks) is nearing
completion, with commissioning scheduled for the second
quarter of 2007. This plant expansion will increase circuit
residence time, improving recoveries, but will later facilitate a
future expansion in plant throughput.

The first phase of the cyanide destruciion system is in
construction with the introduction of a taiings thickener and
retum water tank to the circuit. This will reduce the guantity
of cyanide in the taifings stream. Wash water will be retumed
to the process water circuil. This is scheduled for commissioning
in the third quarter of 2007. The circuit is baing constructed
as an add-on in parallel with the existing circuit, The tie-in 1o
the existing circuit will be completed during nomal maintenance
downtime. The circuit may be bypassed. which will ensure
no disruption to the existing process. A further cyanide
destruciion phase using Degussa technology is scheduled for
commigsioning in early 2008.

In conjunction with Randgold Resources' power supply
contractor, Africa Power Systerns {a division of Calerpillar), the
power station is being expanded by a further TMW, This
additional power will cover the needs of the underground
development at Yalea, Twe medium speed diesel generators
will be installed to meet this demand. The new facility is being
engineered {0 house four units and depending on fulure
demand a further two units may be acquired later. 1t is
anticipated that the medium speed engines will supply bass
load and the remaining high speead units would supply the
additional power up to the demand. The medium speed
machines are slightty cheaper o operate on diesel and they
are capable of conversion 1o run on heavy fuel oil, which will
allow the comgany to reduce its processing cost. Construction
has commenced on the concrete bases for the engines. The
first engine is expectad 1o be operational in the third quarter
of 2007 and the second unit will be commissioned in the first
quarter of 2008.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Manpower

Overall manpower tevels, including contracters, at Loulo
Increased during 2008 as the project progressed and mining
and processing commenced,

Z  Mine labour 327 519
= Capital projects 375 499
2 Mine contractors 843 184
S TOTAL 1345 i202




Training

Three tearn effectiveness workshops were held at Louio during
2008. These were altended by the CEQ, the Randgeld
Resources' capial projects team, the general manager of the
mine and all his departmental managers and superiniendents.

Amadou Famanta obiained an MBA from the University of
Quebec and Rodney Quick, Chiaka Berthe and Abdoulaye
Cisse eamed ranagement diplomas from the Graduate School
of Business Leadership of the University of Cape Town in
South Africa.

A five-day managerial and supervisory skills course held at
Loulo in July 2006 was attended by 35 managers and
supervisors. Twenty employees, including 14 from local vilages,
successfully completed a crusher operator course at Morila
mine. Structured engineering maintenance and metallurgical
on-the-job action leaming training was ongoing at the processing
- plant througheut the year, This training has enabled those
employees recruited from the local villages to successfully
transter to their jobs the information and skills leamed at the
initial job training programme they attended at Morila in 2005.

All Somilo and contractor employees recruited during the ysar
ware required to attend the mine's induction and safety training
course, before commencing work. In addition, &'l production
employees attend workplace toolbox safety talks at the stan
of each shift. A series of first aid and safety courses were
attended by 47 engineering anct metallurgical smployees during
the year. Seventeen senior managers attended an 15014001
executive brigfing and five line managers and four environmentat
and safety staff attended the four-day 1ISC14001 audi course
during the last guarter of 2006.

" Industrial relations

Industrial relations remained positive throughout the year,
Following the successful union election at the start of the year
and the subsequent establishment of union structures at Loulo
in February 2008, regular monihly meetings were instituted
between the union and management. Agreement was reached
with the union in November regarding the ming's rules and
regulations. These were implemented in December 2008
foliowing authorisation from the Regional Labour Inspectorate.

In addition, an innovative transpont allowance scheme tied to
a hire purchase amangement between Somilc and s employees,
was successiully negotiated with the union. The scheme
consists of moltor cycles being purchased by the company
on behalf of employaes who repay the company over a pericd
of 36 months, using their monthly transport allowance. The
schemea overcomes a total lack of public transport in this
remote area, supports the sustainable development objectives
of encouraging empioyeas to remain in their home villages to
support the economies of the villages (such as assisting with
harvests and getting produce to local markets) and creates
job opportunities cutside of the mine in the supply of fuel and
maintenance of the motorcycles.

Somilo, together with other large miring companies in Malli, is
represented at the talks conceming a proposed new National
Mining Industry Collective Agreement taking place between
mining industry employers, SYNACOM (Mining Union
Confederation), the Directorate of Labour and the National
Employers’ Association. Two meetings were held dudng 2006
and further meetings are scheduled in 2007.

Community development :

Relations with the community remained positive throughout
the year and community liaison committee meetings were held
monthly. The focus areas of the commitiee remain on
employment of local villagers by the mine and the three pillars
of the mine's sccial programme, which are basic education,
food security and basic health (which includes potable water
provision).

During the vear, the following community development activities
were undertaken:

= Employment of local vilagers - Leaming ability and other
psychometric testing was carried out in all the villages
sumounding the mine to select young people to work on
the newly installed crushing circuit.  Fourleen of the
20 successiul applicants were from the local vilages. In
addition, Loulo and its contractors continued throughout
the yvear to apply a selection process that gives precedence
to local villagers over other job seekers, with a view to
maximising the empioyment of people from the villages
most affected by the mine.

Education - The opering of the new school built by the
ming in Djidian-Kenieba and the building of a new primary
school at Loulo (70% completed at December 2006). The
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repair and refurbishing of schools at Sakola and Baboto
and the provision of teaching resources and aids to all
schools in the loca area. Furthesrnore under the supanision
of the Malian Department of Education there was the
subvention of leaching staff at Sakoia vilage school in
terms of the mine funding one teacher for each one funded
by the community. Schoo! fumiture and leaming resources
and equipment were donated by the mine to village primary
schools.

Food security - Farming land was prepared as
compensation for those farmers who had lost fields due
ta the building of a security fence and the installation of
acomveyor belt, in addiion 1o the establishment of vegetable
gardens, the setting up of crop production training
programmes and the provision of seeds and fertiliser to
35 fammers in seven local villages surounding the mine.
The mine's agricultural educaticn programme for local
farmers established a model beekeeping enterprise which
farrners are invited to visit. The test apiary aims to educate
people about beskeeping and encourage them to take
up beekeeping in the area.

Basic health - The mine's medical officer treated and
provided medicines to 9 600 patients from the local
community. The mine evacuated several serfously
ill vilagers to hospitals in Bamako and Kayes.

Malaria control and HNV/AIDS awareness - Educationat
and awareness campaigns were undertaken, with
assistance from NGOs, to sensitise people in the ‘ocal
villages about malaria and HIV/AIDS, how to avoid
contracting the diseases and the necessity of testing and
treatment. Malaria control programmes were introduced
in ling with the recommendations from malaria vector
surveys carried out in 2005 and 2006 oy Prof Richard
Hunt of the school of Animal, Plant & Environmental
Sciences, University of the Witwatersrand, South Africa.
Repeat spraying of the dwallings in local vilages was
undertaken prior to the start of the rainy season. In addition,
mosquito nets were distributed 10 households in Diidian-
Kenieba and Kenieba, as part of a mine inspired best kept
village competition.

Walter provision - The mine installed a further two Indian
pumps in the Loulo and Djidian-Kenigba villages., In
addition, all defective indian purnps were overhauled using
mine supplied spares and a new access road was prepared

030

sC that the cattle from Loulo vilage could be watered at
the Falémé River, The aim of the waler provision exercise
15 10 ensure a continuous and reliable supply of potable
water to all the local vilages.

Local government support - The mine, with agreement
from the community development committes, financed
the construction of an office for the Mayor of the Commune
at Sitikity vilage.

REOMMUNIRDEVEIORMEN]]

= Community ligison

committee meetings 2495
= Potable water supply {bore-

holes and Indian pumps) 58 564
3 Education 42 438
= Vegetable programme 1069
2 Com programme (SETRA) 5644
S Hesith care evacuations 3933
= Malaria control {purchase

of mesquito nets) 240
2 Hygiene/sanitation at toulo

village school 460
= Building capacity 42 425
= Support revenue

generation activities 16 188
a  TOTAL 175196

Note: Mot reflected Is the cost fo the mine of providing medical
treatment, medical evacuations, medicines, vaccinations,
creating disease awareness and education lraining.




Randgold Resources’ major gold
producing asset since October 2000
has been the Morila Gold Mine.
Morila, which was discovered by
the company in 1996, is now owned
by a Malian company, Morila SA
which in turn is owned 80% by
Morila Limited and 20% by the
State of Mali. Morila Limited is
jointly owned by Randgold
Resources and AngloGold Ashanti,

Operations and projects

MORILA MINE

The mine is controlled by a 50:50 joint venture management
committee with day to day aperations being the responsibility
of AngloGold Services Mali SA ("Anser’), a Malian
subsidiary of AngleGold Ashanti Limited, under an cperating
agreement,

From the start of production in October 2000 through
December 2006, Morila has produced approximately
4.3 million ounces of gold at a total cash cost of USE142/02,
and Mcrila SA has paid tota! dividends to its sharshclders of
USE505 milion. As forecasted, Morila produced in excess of
500 000 ounces for the year, finally totaling 516 667 ounces
of gold for the year, down from 2005's production as a result
of lower grades from the pit.

The year started well with both the mining and plant
operating at design capacity. However, towards the middle
of the vear, plant production dropped and in the third
quarter plant throughput was not reaching the expanded
plant design capacity. Tegether with its pariners, Randgold
Resources addressed the various issues with the goal
of achieving consistent sustainable production. The increased
attention had the desired effect and in the last quarter the
mine exceedsd expanded design capacity in each of the
three months.

Mining performance suffered particularty in the second half
of the year but steps are being taken to catch up the
backlog.

Cosls were reasonably well contained given pravailing
increases in input costs.  Cash operating costs, before
adjustment for cne-off costs relating to provisions and
indirect taxes, were US$215/o0z, up from last year's costs of
US$178/0z. Total cash costs were USE258/07 for the year
after adjustments.




: R2fionthstending!

= lotalmined tonnes [million tonnes) . 21.5 246
= Ore tonnes mined frmillion tonnes) 5.2 7.0
-~ Mined grade (g/t) 3.2 4.3
= Oretonnes milled {million tornes) 4.1 3.8
= Head grade [g/) 4.2 5.9
S Hecovery (%) 91.9 91.7
= Qunees produced [oz) 516667 651110
= Average gold price received

{USHoz) 8509 449

Cash operating cost

{excluding royalty) (US$cz)” 215 178~
= TJotal cash cost (US$/0z}" 258 2107
= Profit from mining activity

(USE million)* 181.6 166.2~

Aftributable {(40%

proportionately consolidated)
=~ Gold sales (USE millior)” 125.95 120.8
= Qunces produced (0z2) 206667 260 444
= Frofit from mining activity

{USS millign)” 72.6 66.1~
S Net profit {US3 millicn) 368 56.3

Refer to explanation of non-GAAP measures provided in
note 23 on pages 84 and 85.

Restated due to change in accounting policy related to
Stripping costs. Refer to note 6 on page 73.

MINERAL RESOURCES

The mineral resource base estimated for the mine using
the results from infill driling programmes as well as
resource extension driling, depleted to the end of 2008, is
2.85 milicn ounces.

ORE RESERVES

The ore reserve estimate for Morila, depleted for mining to
31 December 2008 and based on the current orebody mode,
18 2.15 millicn ounces.

it is currently estimated that mining activities will cease
during 2009 with the processing of stockpiles continuing until
2013.

Remaining reserves are slightly lower than last year after
depletion has been taken into account as a result of changes
in the orebody model. Howaver due to the increased gold
price more of the marginal stockpile material can now be
treated economically so ore reserves have been partially
replaced, albeit at lower grade,

MINING

Mining operations are caried out under contract by Somadex,
which is a subsidiary of DTP Temassement, the mining amm of
the French censtruction company, Bouygues. A parinership
agreement which incorporates the principle of sharing the

MORILA: TONNES MINED
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potential savings achieved by the contractor using agreed
productivity assumptions and allowing for an agreed return is

mobile plant, As & result mining production dropped below
bugget. Action was taken by the partnership to restcre

in effect.

procuctivity and the situation had started improving by year
end, Sormadex have also committed 1 bringing extra mining
fleet to site at their own risk in order to maintain the desired
levels of production.

While Somadex were able to maintain production in the earty
part of the year by the mid-year a lack of experienced
maintenance personngl led 1o increasing breakdowns of the

AiTaner

fonnes! Gold] tablel

@y (D) (O] o) ilerd) (Mo

IMINERARRESOUREES] 2006 D005] =S (Moz)]
-~ Measured 20.54 20.06 2.27 2.73 1.50 1.76
Z  Indicated 9,50 14.01 3.34 3.00 1.02 1.35

Z  Sub-total Measured and Indicated 30.04 34.07 2.61 2.84 2.52 3.11 1.01

Z  Inferred 3.08 3.78 3.31 3.19 0.33 0.39 013

Cut-off gradie for resources = 1g/t.
Rescurces arg repcried within the US3650/0z pit shell.

ORI m MW e . R 0% 0
B000C O ()05 2006 2005 2006 12005] [(Moz)]
= Proved 15.36 15.95 2.50 321 1.23 1,65
= Probable 11.35 6.19 2.47 3.63 0. 0.72
—  Sub-total Proved and Frobable 28.71 22.14 2.49 3.33 2.15 2.37 0.86

2006 reserves reporied are economic at a gold price of US$475/cz.

Diition of 10% and ore loss of 5% are incorporated into the calculation of reserves.
Cut-off grade of 1.4g/1.

Stockpiled ore included.

See comments and US disclaimer on page 31.

* See glossary of terms on website at wwwi.randgoldresources.com.




ORE PROCESSING

The year started well with regards 1o plant throughput but in
the second and third quarters, operaticnal problems lead {o
lower than budgeted throughput, A raview team comprising
Randgold Rescurces, Loulo mine and AngloGold Ashanti
personnel worked on site with Morila employess to identify the
underlying causes and institute corective action, By the fourth
quanter, corrective action had yielded the desired effect and
throughput was again exceeding the dasign capacity of the
expanded plant. In fact, in October a record 372 463 tornes
was processed.

EXPLORATION

Morila focused its exploration activities on extending the existing
orebody and discovering new deposits for processing using
the Morila plant. Driling has concentrated on extensions to
the known orebady, chiefly in the south (Tonalite axtension)
and in the west (Morila Shear Zone west exlension) as well as
in the eastem margin.

Drifing at the Samacline target, approximately 500 metres 1o
the wast of the pit and scme 400 metres below surface has
also continued during the year. Further close spaced
intersections have been effected through deflections from
several drilihcles in order to assess short scale variability, On
completion of the current driling programme, a scoping study

MORILA: PLANT THROUGHPUT
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dosigned to test amenability of the deposit to a small
underground mining operation will be assessed.

The 40 000 metre regional exploration programme of the
200k rrine lease area is now almost complete. Compnising
tactical and strategic targets, the programme is guided by a
recently completed structural analysis that has emphasised
the unique and discerdant architecture of the Marila structural
domain.

Results from the regional programme have not resulted in
another ‘Morila’ but continue to define an anomoicus
footprint around the deposit. During the year structural and
metallogenic consultants have been contracted to assist with
the slucication of a genetic modeal by integraiing the geological,
structural and mineraiogical components of the deposit.
Exploration is reported mare fully in the exploration review on
page 36.

ENVIRONMENTAL

During the vear, implementation of the Intemational Standard
Organisation 1SO14001) programme cemmenced at Moarila.
An on-site conformity assessment of the implementation of
tne mine's environmantal management systermn was carried
out in November and Morila achieved a compliance rating
score of 94% with no major non-conformances.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Manpower

Manning levels related to permanent and temporary Marila and
contractor employees on the ming were as follows:

= Morila employees

MNational permanent 468 458
Temporary 63 -
Expatriate 40 33
Sub-total 571 489
= Contractor employees
National permanent 972 995
Expatriata 44 40
Sub-total 1016 1035
3 TOTAL 1 587 1524




Training and development

During the year, 19 of the mine's employees attended safety
induction training, 195 attended cyanide awareness training
and 150 attended First Aid courses, 39 employees consisting
of management, safety representatives and trainers, attended
a two week safety hazard identification course. The ming's
training centre also provided training for Loule, Siguir, Yatela
and Sadiola trainees during 2006.

Two Malian electrical students, one geology student and one
mining student studying at the University of Pretoria in South
Africa, on Malian mining industry bursaries sponscred by Morila
SA, passed their second ysar examinations with distinction
and qualified to progress to therr third and penultimate year of
study.

Industrial relations

The industrial retations climate durirg 2006 was salistactory
_ and no industrial action tock place. The Marila Mine Level
Agreement, concluded in October 2005 between management
and tha Morila union, was implemented in January 2006
following its approval by the Direclorate of Labour and the
Labour Couri. The contractors on site also experienced
healthy industrial refations throughout the year.

The training of union representatives carried cut by an
independent consultant during the year has contributed to the
constructive industrial relations climate at Monia.

Community development

A partnership entered into with US AID and the focal authority
of the commune of Sanso becarme increasingly £flective dunng
2006, thanks 1o the appeintment by US AID of a locally based
project co-ordinatar, This followed a visit to the Morila area by
senior US AID personnel from the heelth, education and
governance secticns of the agency. The partnership has
increased the money avallable for community development
projects from US$150 000 io LUS$275 000 per year for each
of the next three years,

The other big success story of the year has been the rice
proiects at Fingola and Morila, financed and set up by the
mine and run by the women of the two vilages. The women
procuced and soid 10 691 kilogrammes of rice and after
purchasing planing aids for the next growing season divided
up the profits made betwean the families involved.

Educalion 63 211
Community healthcare 45 562
Environment and agriculture 27 269
General community development 10 058
Arts, culture and heritage 18187
TOTAL 164 287
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The Tongon project is located in
northern Céte d'lvoire,

628 kilometres north of Abidjan
within the 671km?2 Nielle permit,
The total resource base exceads
3 million ounces.
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Operations and projects

TONGON PROJECT

A prefeasibility Type 2 study was completed in June 2002
which demensirated that the Tongoen project could meet the
company's critera for investment and a Type 3 feasthility study
was initigted. ARer an initial 16 drillnole programime, further
driling and on-site feasibility study work was put on hold due
to the political condlict in the Cote d'ivoire.

In 2005 all aspects of the Tongen project were raviewed, the
financial parameters used in the Jure 2002 prefeasibilty study
were updated to reflect December 2005 market conditions.
The total resource base was confirmed at more than 3 million
ounces,

UPDATED PARAMETERS

= Potentially mineable material of 13.05 million tonnes at a
grade of 3.54g/t for only the southem zone, assuming
dilution of 15% and ore loss of 2%.

Strip ratic of 4.38:1 and cost of US$1.51/tonne mined
over the LOM.

Recoveries of 97.4% for oxides and 82.1% for sulphides.
Production rates of 240 000 tonnes per month in oxides
and 200 000 tonnes per month in suphides.

LOM unit cost of approximately US$22/tonne milled and
US$260/0z cash cost.

Total LOM capital costs of USE111 million.

Gold price of US$400/0z flat.

Cote d'lvoire royalty of 3% on gold sales,

Five year tax holiday.

LI L1
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On the basis of this updated aconomic assessment ankd even
taking into account the recent inflation pressures in the industry,
the project continues to meat the company's hurdie rates for
further investrnent,

The project had teen slalled at feasibility stage for the past
couple of years while the country has been dealing with political
instability and confiict, but with the relative calm that has
returned, the team has recommenced its work programme.

Randgeld Resources believes that the peace process in the
country is now on track. Presidential elections scheduled for
Octéber 2006 have been postponed due to a defay in
preparation untit October 2007, after an agreement was reached
among he rival parties.  Officials of both the government
ministries and the opposition have shown commitment to
making the project work,
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* See glossary of terms on website at wwwv.ran0goldresources. corm.

During 2006, an eight hole 1 992 metre taciical diamond driling
programme was caried out and the resulls were used 1o plan
a 30 000 metre feasibility driing prograrme scheduled for
the first nalf of 2007. The diiling programme was designed
1o aliow the completion of a final feasibility study and for a
production decision within two years of full recommencement
of driling activities.

The next phase of driling will heip the company understand
the relativaly complex geology of the southem zone, as well
as add additional resources to the northern zone.  The biggest
risk seen by Randgolg Resources in the project is timing -
the company is confident the people and governing structures
of Céte d'voire are committed to peace. The completion of
a successiul final feasibility study would allow a production
decision and financing amangemenits to be made.

Subject to a posilive outcome of the bankable feasitility and
the cuent political process, the company befieves development
of the Tongon deposit is likety as the Clte d'voire has favourable
infrastructure 1o support a mining venture., Power, water and
road access are avalable close to the site. The Tongon project
will also allow Randgoid Resources te maintain and expand
its production profile, as the Loulo mine grows arxd production
at its Morila mine tails off,

i 2007 | 2008 : 2009 ; 2010 }
| Feasiilty ' ; '
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TONGON PROSPECT: BANKABLE FEASIBILITY KICKS
OFF WITH A 30 000 METRE DRILLING PROGRAMME

Southern Zone

Length: 1.6km
+760DH: 15 500m, 50mx50m
Average depth below surface: 200m

Northern Zone

Lengih: 2.7km
34 DDH: 4 050m, 50mx100m
38 DDH: 3 700m, 50mx50m

Average depth below surface: 150m
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Annual resource and reserve declaration

al 31 Decemher 2005
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MEASURED, INDICATED AND
INFERRED MINERAL RESQURCES

Morila 40%
Measured 20.54 20.06 227 2.73 1.50 1.76
Inclicated 9.50 14.01 3.34 3.00 1.02 1.35
Sub-total Measured and Indicated 30.04 34.07 2.61 284 2.52 314 1.01
Inferred 3.09 3.78 33 319 0.33 0.38 013
- Loulo 80%
Measured 14.98 16.86 3.88 3.88 1.87 2.10
Indicated 46.79 45.00 4.88 4,78 7.35 6.92
Sub-total Measured and Indicated 61.77 61.86 4.64 4,54 9.22 9.03 7.37
Inferred 2277 2.82 2.3 2.87 2.13 0.90 1.70
Tongon 75%
Measured
Indicated
Sub-total Measured and Indicated -
Inferred 35.96 35.98 2.69 2.69 311 3.1 2.33
= TOTAL RESOQURCES
Measured and Indicated 91.81 95.93 3.98 3.e3 11.74 1214 8.38
Inferred 61.81 49.56 2.80 2.78 557 4.40 417
* PROVED AND PROBABLE CORE RESERVES
Z  Morila
Praved 15.36 15.95 2.50 3.21 1.23 1.65
Probable 11.35 6.19 2.47 3.63 0.20 Q.72
Sub-total Proved and probable 26.71 22.14 2.49 3.33 2.13 2.37 (.85
-~ Loulo
Proved 11.21 13.75 3.47 3.48 1.26 1.54
Probable 37.93 24.82 4.54 5.07 5.54 4.05
Sub-total Proved and probable 49.14 38.57 4.30 4.50 6.80 559 5.44
~ TOTAL RESERVES Proved and probable 75.85 60.71 3.66 4.08 8.93 7.95 6.29

Randgold Resources reports its Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves in accordance with the JORC code. The reporting of Ore
Reserves is also in accordance with industry Guide 7.

Pit optimisation is camad out at a goid price of LIS$475/0z: underground reserves are also based on a gokd price of (US$475/0z.

Ditution and ore foss are incorporated into the calculation of reserves.

Cautionary note to US investors: The United States Secunities and Exchange Commission { the "SEC" ) permits mining companies, 4
in thewr fiings with the SEC, to disclose only those mineral deposits that & company can economically and jegally extract or produce. '
Randgold Resources uses certain termns in this annual repart, such as ‘resources” that the SEC guidalines stractly prohibit the cormpany

frorn includling in its fings with the SEC.

" See glossary of terms on website at www. randgoldresources. com.
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Table of mineral rights

at 21 December 2006

MINERAE
(FETS

- Mali Z Tanzania
Louic EP 372 144 80 Nyabigena South PL 18 7 100
Morila EEP 288 112 80 Kajimbura PL 23 9 100
Marila EP 200 77 40 Simba Siron South PL 26 10 100
Selou EEP 25 10 52 Nyamakubi PL 21 8 100
Keba EEP 58 22 85 Kiabakari East PL 62 24 100
Tiorola EEP 257 9% 70 Mcbrama East PL 16 B 50
Diokelebougou EEP 393 162 70 Mobrama East Extn PL 18 7 50
Dionkola EEP 122 47 70 Mobrama East Extin - PL 21 8 50
Bena EEP 13 5 80 Kiabakari L 27 10 100
Korona AE 257 99 80 Buhemba South PL 145 56 100
Nahali AE 230 88 80 Dodoma South PL 148 56 *

Z Burkina Faso Dodoma South BExtin PL 113 44 -
Danfora EEP 45 17 S0 Dodoma North PL 100 39 i
Kiaka EEP 245 95 S0 ~ Cote d’lvoire
Basgana EEP 250 97 90 Nialle EEF 671 259 75
Bouroy EEP 122 47 a0 Boundigli EEP 1314 507 75
Tanema EEP 247 g5 90 Dabakala EEP 191 - 74 75
Kaibo EEP 250 g7 20 Dignago EEP 1000 386 100
Kampala EEP 233 90 S0 Apouasso EEP 1000 386 100
YiDogo EEP 247 a5 90 Mankono RrRP 704 272 75
Nakomgo EEP 235 a1 a0 Z  Senegal

* Gogo EEP 250 97 9O Kanoumering EEP 405 156 90

Tiakane EEP 196 76 90 Kounemba EEP 408 158 90

Z  Ghana Makana EEP 110 42 63
Bui Belt AL 5969 2 305 0 Miko EEP 85 37
Bole NE RL 866 334 Q0 Tomboronkoto EEFP 403 156 a0
Nangod West RL 119 468 a0 = TOTAL AREA 18 526 7153

ER Exploitation pemrmit
EEP  Exclusive exploration permit

AE HReconnaissance ficence
RL Reconnaissance ficence
PL Prospecting kcence

RP Reconnatssance permit
- Joint venture in which the company is curently eaming an interest




In 20086, exploration activities
concentrated on the extension of
known crebodies and the discovery
of new orebodies both at producing
mines and exploration sites. In
addition, the company continued
with its expansion of the African
Footprint strategy within the most
prospective gold belts of both West
and East Africa and has operations
in six African countries boasting a
portfolic of 128 targets on

18 526km? of groundholding.

EAST AFRICA

W God mines

E Existing Randgckd Resources
prospecting licences

040

D’'IVOIRE
. |
d Abidjan

T Randgold Resources' operations and projects
BB Randgold Resources’ exploration pemmits




= At Loulo, the company continues to build its resource
base, which is now over 10 million ounces. As well as
the resource conversion work, exploration is focused on
the next discovery by systematically evaluating a porticlio
of targets within the lease area. Of these, the Faraba and
Babotc districts are showing the most promise.

T AbMorila, the next discovery continues 1o evade detection
as plus 40 000 metres of regional driling have been
completed. However, the law grade footprint continues
10 be defined. Research points towards an intrusive related
ore genesis to the deposit.

= In south Mali, a regional gravity survey is enabling the
identification of targets for driling in 2007.

T inSenegdl, a 10 000 metre Rotary Air Blast {RAB") driling

prograrmme has commenced to evaluate 12 targels. This

will help in priositising additional targets to Delya, Bambaraya
and Sofia for diamond drlling later in the year.

In Burkina Faso, drilling is defining a broad, low grade

mineralised system over a three kilometre strike at Kiaka,

Elsewhere in the company's permit portfolio, regional

programmes are identifying targets for follow-up work in

the coming year.

= inGhana, explkration actiities recommenced on a portiolio
of four permits. First pass regional exploration programimes
have been completed and returned positive results from
one of these, Bole, which will see follow-up programmes
in 2007.

= In Tanzania, generative work is the driver to build a new
portiolio of projects after Kiabakari did not meet the
company's critena for further invesirment.

= In the Cote d'lvoire, exploration activities successfully
recomimenced with a tactical diamond driling programme
at the Tongon prospect, situated within the Niglle permil,
in the north of the country.  Preparations are now almost
complete to start a ~30 000 metre feasibility diamond
dritling programme in 2007.

Z  Agenerative team has been established 1o re-assess the

African countries within which Randgold Resources is noi

currently operational, to identify potential value adding

projecis that would be of interest to the company.

In summary, the company has a quality portiolio of exploration
projects in both West and East Africa. This reflects the
company's business strategy of organic growth through

exploration and its primary objeciive to build sustainable mining
projects with significant retums. This strategy is attested to
by its discovery and development track record, which includes
the Morila and Loulo mines, both in Mali, and the plus three
million ounce Tongen project, cumently at the feasibility stage
in the Cote d'Ivaire.

MALI

LOULO

In additicn to the resource conversion work and the deep
driling at both the Yalea and Gara crebodies, exploration has
concentrated on the next discovery by evaluating a quality
portiolio of targets within the 372km? permit area.

At the Gara deposit, new information from the continual
excavation of the deposit and re-logging and re-interpretation
of diamond drill core estatyished that high grade mineralisation
is associated with the 030°7/040° trending axial planes of quartz
tourmaline folds and is concentrataed in the hinge zone of a
large overtumed antiform.

Six diamond drill holes for a total of 3 809 metres have
confirmed the geclogical model and intersected strong
quartz fourmaline alteration and mingralisation up
to 500 metres south of the existing wireframe;
LOCP117: 5.80 metres at 3.18g/ from 333 metres and

LOULO: GRADE MODEL OF GARA OREBODY WITH
DIAMOND DRILL HOLES TO THE SOUTH OF THE
EXISTING WIREFRAME

6.15m @ 11.22g1




LOCP118; 4.76 metres at 0.84g/t from 409 metres and
6.15 metres at 1.39g/ (including 1.20 metres at 3.70g/1) from
45¢ metres; LOCP120: 5.80 metres at 8.16g/ {inciuding
2.90 metres at 16.68g/) from 757.4 metres; LOCP124:
7 metres at 17.95g/t from 551.75 metres (including
1.80 metres at 59.36g/). LOCP126: 9.20 metres at 1.02g4
from 578.60 metres and 6.40 metres at 10.37g/t from
£91.80 metres; LOCP125: 6.15 matres at 11.22g/t from
820.35 metres. Follow-up diamond driling will further evaluate
the potential of this target down plunge.

The Baboto structure is part of a plus 5 kilometre minaralised
structure which hosts the known targets of Baboto South,
Central and North. At Baboto South a 23 hole, 2 368 metre
RC driling pregramme was completed over a strike length of
1.3 Kilometres. The results retumed a continuous zone of
mineralisation over the entire strike length with an average
width of 15.63 metres and grade of 1.82g/ 1o vertical depihs
of 856 melres.

Gold mineralisation is associated with boln massive and
disseminated pyrite and is hosted mainly in sifica-carbonate
altered sandstones between hangingwall and footwall shears.

At Faraba, 48 RC holes for 5 573 metres and eight diamend
holes for 2 248 melres have been completed during the year
testing a three kilometre strike length of an overall ten kilometre
anomalous comidor. The drilling has currently identified two

042

pods of gold mineralisation; the north zone and the main zone.
These two zones are connecled by zones of narow alteration
and mineralisation which have been dissected and offset by
complex fauling and are not fully understood at this stage.
e north zone has a strike length of 800 meves, an average
widlh of 12 metres, an average grade of 2.20g/t and has bean
tested to vertical depths of 230 metres.

The main zone is a 100 metre wide anomalous structure which
currently measures 400 metres in strike length and has been
tested to a vertical depth of 180 metres. Atils core is a
350 metre long mineralised zone with an average intersection
widih of 43 metres and an average grade of 2.60g/t resulting
in an inferred resource of 567 000 ocunces.

LOULO PERMIT. PORTFOLIO OF GOLD TARGETS

Baboto District

High potential areas  FRERY
to be further tasted

Continugtion of 10km
anomalous trend

e | FARABA TARGET

FARCO52 i

42m @ 2.31g1 * )
S A S arT
FARCO06 o

46m @ 2,55/t " I 4o
el 6m @ 11,137

Tobe ‘,332‘8875”’ FAB S8 350 metre strke length 43m @ 2.8g/
L average intersection. Open 1o the south,

terminated by faulting in the north
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This zone contains a high grade unit whose width and grade
averages 5.50 metres at 8.70g/t over the 350 metre strike
fength, Driling within this zore has confirmed the presence of
extensive silica-carbonate alteration within coarse sediments
and grits.

Trenching and driling programmes will be completed 1o test
the 10 kilometre regional Faraba target, where 14 additional
dilation zones have been mapped, as well as to further define
the narih and main zones of mineralisation during 2007 .

At PB4, a 1.5 kilometre plus 100ppb north-northwest soil
anornaly characterises the target. To date only 300 metres of
strike has been drill 1ested with seven RC hcles for
1 097 metres and five diamond core holes for 1 396 metres.
The results highlight a 200 metre strike of mineralisation which
includes: PBARCO3: 7 metres at 1.47g/t and & metres at
1,03/, PBARCO4: 29 metres at 1.03g/4, PB4RCO7: 5 metres
at 2.31g4, PGADHO1: 28 metres at 1.72g/t, 16.2 metres at
4.41g/t and 11.80 metres at 1.44g/t and PEADHO2:
5.80 metres at 3.43g/t and 8.20 metres at 6.519/L.
Mineralisation is associated with chiorite and magnetite rich
sediments plus localised bands of quartz tourmaling and is
bounded by a hanging wall and footwall shear which trend
north-gouth and dip sub-verticaly.

To incraase the company's knowledge and understanding of
ihe Loulo mineralised district, & three year PhD research thesis
is being undertaken in conjunction with Kingston University,
London, England.

SELOU

The Selou area consists of three permits directly south of the
Loulo exploitation lease and work to date has identified two
main 1argets; Singinko and Boulandissow.

The Sinsinko target is underlain by a 1.75 kiomatre north-
south trending plus 30ppb gold soil anomaly; follow-up trench
and RAB drilling have confirmed a bedrock source to
mineratisation. One diamond hole SNDOC1 drilled below trench
BETOS: 76 metres &t $.83g/ retumed 5.70 metres at 1.71g/4,
4 metres at 3.11g/t, 1.80 metres at 2.77g/t and 4.20 metres
at 7.10g7, all within a 21 metre mineralised envelope. The
mineralisation is associated with tourrmaline-sericite-carbonate-
haematite-siica alteration of a greywacke hest. Further driling
is planned in 2007.

Boulandissou is an 8 kilomeatre anomalous shear camdor. A
reconnaissance diamond hole BNDCH drilled beneath trench
BNTQ2: 28 metres at 3.31g/t retumed 6.60 melres &t 1.28g/t

Gold anomailism and mineralisation in the diamond hole is
hostad in altered quartzite and associated with weak
disseminated pyrite and arsenopyrite. The alteration patiems
are dominated by brecciation in association with sifca, toumaline
and weak sericile. Additional trenching and diilling
will be completed during 2007 1o evaluate this target.

MORILA EXPLOITATION LEASE

An exploration strategy was developed with the primary aim
of providing an assessment of the ful resource potential within
the greater Morila lease area, The flat geometry of a Morifa
style orebody, espacially as a "olind or buried” exploration
target, prevents the use of conventional exploration geochermicat
or geophysical target generation techniques. In the search for
a bured 'Morilz” the only known viable, primary targeting tool
avalable is a regularly spaced deep diamond dnifing programime,
to date o total of 88 holes for 44 045 metres have been driled,
to an average depth of 500 metres. The results, although
failing to identify an additional deposit have so far intersected
the low grade (plus 0.10g/) footprint to the deposit, This data
will be used as a vecter for follow-up holes to target for higher
grade mingralisation. ’

A six month post doctoral research project has been set up
through the Geology Department of the Australian National
University and the Research School of Earth Sciences. The
aim of this study is 1o understand the relationship of gold
rmineralisation 1o high grade metamorphism and partial melting
of the surrounding sediments. Preliminary results indicate an
ore genesis related 1o the contact themma! aurecle of an ignecus
intrusive.

MORILA REGION AND SOUTHERN MALI

In the Morila region, Randgeld Resources has been exploring
on its permnits, immediatety adjacent to Morila mine, for several
years. The technigques used to date have been successiul in
locating mineralised structures such as Ntiola and Kona.
However, so far no economic mineralisation resembling the
Marila deposit has been locatad outside the mine-lease.
Despite the fack of success in the area, Randgold Resources
will continue exploring until all reasonable avenues of research
have been investigated. An indication of this cornmitment is
a 3 000 metre diamond driling programme which was
complaeted before the annual wet season in June.



As few gold targets at surface remain untested and rock
outcrop only accounts for 0.5 percent of the surface regolith,
this programme was designed to provide geologists with
geclogical and structural information to assist with interpretation
in this most difficult of terrains. This driling programme has
allowed the team to modify its geological madel for the area
iwhich was based on sparse information) with the aim of
identifying broad, favourable areas for the hosting of hlind,
Morila-type minergfisation. To complement the data from this
driling programme a 40 by 40 kilometre ground gravity survey
has been completed, centred over the Morila deposit. The
results retum an arcuate ancmaly immediately south of the
deposit and both 10 the northeast and northwast of the grid.
Modelling is attempting to estimate the depth and type of
geological body responsible for these resulls.

Randgold Resources' joint ventures with Japanese company
OMRD have been terminated following a full svaluation of the
Kekoro, Sagala, Diamou and Seriba-Sobara permits, which
did not meet the company's criteria for further investrment.
In Southem Mal, Randgold Resources' regional teams continue
to identify opportunities and apply for new ground. This is in
line with the long term strategy of tuming over ground to supply
the base of the resourcs triangle with quality targets.

SENEGAL

The Senegal portfaiio consists of five permits covering
1 421km?, Iocated within the Sabodala voleane-sedimentary
belt in the east of the country. The company has made
progress throughout the fiskd season in evaluating its portiolio
where the emphasis nas been on developing targets 1o the
drill stage. A 10 000 metre RAB diiling programme has
commenced to test 12 targets. This will help in pricritising
additional targets to Delya, Bambaraya and Scfia for diamond
driling later in the year. The year's field programmes also
resutted in the rejection of 14 targets.

Delya was a new target identified during 2006 and locates on
the Main Transcurrent Shear, This is a major terain boundary
structure between the greenstone bett and adiacent sedimentary
basin. The target was identified by soil geochemistry, which
defined a 6 kilometre by 100 metre plus 20pRb gold anomaty.
Ten follow-up trenches have identified two parallet zones of
gold mineralisation over a 1 kilomeatra strike, the best results
of which are; DLTO03: 11.15 metres at 8.60g/t; DLTO04:
4 metres at 1.60g/4; DLTOOS: 4.5 metres at 7.54g/4; DLTO06:
7.45 metres at 1.98g/t and 9.80 metres at 4.96g/t; DLTO08:
18 metres at ©.80gt; DLTO09: 2 metres at 5.39¢/t and DLTOO:
2.5 metres at 0.80g/t. The trench resuiis have been tested
at depth by five diamond core drillholes (1 000 matres);
DLDDCO1: 9.81 rmetres at 1.80g/t; DLDDOOZ: 12.40 melres
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at 5.10g/t; DLDDOO3: 3 metres at 1.80g/t: DLDDOO4:
3.80 metres at 4.80g/1 and DLDDOOS retumed no mineralised
intersection. Gold mineralisation is hosted within a package
of schists, strongly sheared, aifected by silica-sericitg-iron-
graphite alterations. Sulphides are preseni as disseminated
pyrite and arsenopyrite,

At Sofla, work was concentrated in collating all the previous
exploration data, as no driling was completed in 2006. Sofia
is part of a seven kilometre anomalous north-south structural
comidor which also hosts the Mikona, Mativa and Matiba targets
wilhin ground held by Randgoid Resources. This system
continues to the north for an additional 10 kilometres and hosts
the Niakafin deposit and Sabodala deposit. BAB driling is
plannad in the gap areas to try and Ink all the Sofia, Mikona,
Mativa and Matiba targets. So far 3.4 kilometres of strike have
been tested by driling where results retum both broad low
grade (44 metres at 2.00g/4) mineralisation and narow high
grade (B metres at 9.50g/) intercepts. At present, the inter-
hoke spacing is 400 to 600 metres which will be infiled during
the next round of driling. In the meantime RAB drilling will test
the Mikona, Mativa and Matiba targets within the Sofia comidor
and the gaps in between.

Al Bambaraya, trenching and early stage driling has defined
two sub-parallel zones of mineralisation at surface, over a strike

length of 1 kilometre. The best trench intersections retumed
are; BBTROO1: 13.20 metres at 3.59g/t, BBTROOZ: 18 metres
at 2.93g/t. BBTROO3: 8 metres at 4.50g/t, BBTROO4:
12 metres at 4,089/ and 4 metres at 5.48g/t, BBTROOG:
14 metres at 2.01g/1 and 9.5 metres at 1.13g/t. BBTRO10:
16 matres at 1.70g/t and BBTRCOT: 18 metres at 2.26g/,
To data only three diamond drill heles have tested this zone,
with BBDDHCOZ retuming the best intersection: 12 metres at
317gi

Mineralisation is hosted within northeast trending pillow basatts
and is associated with silica-sencite-toumaline-iron carbonate-
pyrite alteration. Exploration work has been completed 1o the
rortheast of the known mineralisation where a felsic intrusive
has intruded the structure.

BURKINA FASO

In Burkina Faso the company made excellent progress over
the last year:

The deveiopment of a regional geclogical model.

The consolidation of a phss 2 000km? permit portfolio in
the south of the country, covering the southem extension
of the Markoye fault and associated splays.

The completion ¢f the first phase of regicnal exploration
across all the permits, which has identified a strong base
of targets to the resource tiangle.

BURKINA

FASO

DRILLUING THE KIAKA PERMIT
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= Theidentification of an advanced target, Kiaka, which has
broad zones of low grade mineralisation over a 3 kilometre
strike length.

= The development of an all Burkinabe exploration team,

On the Kiaka permit a & 040 metre, 549 hole RAB programme
was completed testing three targets within the Kiaka permit.
The most advanced of these targels is Kiaka which also saw
a 1125 metre, 11 hole RC drlling and a six hole, 1 371 matre
diamond core programme completed testing a three kilometre
long mineralised system.

Two stvles of mineralisation were identified from the driling at

Klaka

= Anavow high grade hangingwall zone; the mineralisation
15 associated with strongly altered, (sllica-biotite-chlorite)
sulphide rich (5-22% arsencpyrite} sediment.

Z A bread low grade main zone; the mineralisation is
associated with schists and quartzites and fine disseminated
sulphides {pyrite).

These mineralised zones locate within a northeast trending,
belt paralel, regional shear. Sinistral reactivation of north-south
bett discordant structures has created dilational openings along
the northeast regional shear and therefore preferential sites for
mineralisation.

The resutts of the driling at Kiaka have identified a 3 kilomeira
long mineralised systern, within which locates a 1.20 kilometre
continuous zone of gold mineralisation, 800 metres of which
is 100 to 200 metres wide grading 0.80 ¢ 1.60g/t and has
been drill tested to verical depths of 200 metres; it is open
in all directions. The best intercept returned 1o date is from
KDHGC5: 73 metres at 2.14g/t (from 41 metres) including
11 metres at 3.40g/t (from 44 metres) and 14 metres at 3.00g1
tfrom 58 metres). Infill and step out driling are planned to
commence in February 2007,

In addition, first pass regional 5ol geochemistry has been
completed over the portfolio of nine permits.  The results
delingated 11 regional, five identified and two follow-up targets.

GHANA

In Ghana, the company has made good progress with the
completicn of first pass regicnal exploration programmes over
our portfolio of four permits; three of these permits are in the
process of being refinguished following unprespective resulls
while one is progressing with positive results. New applications
are being made in discussions with the Minerals Cormmission.

On the Bole Northeast pamit, an 800 metre by 100 metre
regional soil sampling programme has retumed positive gold
resulls.
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A 25 kilometre long, northeast rending (080} anomalous
comdor has baen defined at the contact between granite and
volcaniclastic sediments within which locate two target areas.

- Zamsa congists of two sub paralel anomalies; the first is
a plus 20ppb gold in soil anomaly measwing 14 kiometres
long by up o 2.5 kilometres wide. This anomaly is
associated with the main regional Bole-Bolgatanga shear
and locates at the contact between granite and
volcanoclastic sediments, The second is a plus 10ppb
geid in scil anomaly measuring five kilometres long by one
kiometre wide and is concident with the axis of a regional
airbome magnatic and electro magnetic anomaly within
the volcaniclastic sedirments.

= Nawongo locates five Klometres to the northeast of Zamsa
aiong the same Bole-Bolgatanga shear. The 'gap’ relates
to a naticnal forest which cannot be permitted.

= Ground truthing of anomalies indicates a gentle undulating

topography with residual soils and poor outcrop. Test

pitting is in progress to understand the regolith profile and
mobile element dispersion prior to infill soll sampling.

COTE D'IVOIRE

Apart from continuing to add rescurce cunces at Loulo, the
big success story of 2006 was resuming exploration activilies
in the Cote d'lvoire, with the complation of an eight hale,

1 992 metre tactical diamond coring prograrmmie at the Tongon
prospect, which locates in the Niglle permit, in the north of the
country.

Geologically the Tongon area comprises a sub-vertical northeast
{0 east-northeast rending package of intercalated clastic and
mafic to intermediate volcano-sedimentary lithclogies, These
lithologies have been intruded in the central and northemn
regions by large oval shaped northeast trending grancdicrite
to quartz diorite igneous bodies. In the south, diorite dykes
and small micro-gabbro bodies have intruded along east
northeast 1o east trending structures. Mineralisation locates
in two zones; northem and southem.

Five hales were completed on the northem zone, further testing
a 1.5 kilometre strike length of the main shear.

Three holes were completed in the southem zone te confirm
the results of the prefeasibility study: the results are presented
below.

The overall geometry of the mineralised zones suggests a
significant component of dextral shear which is compatible
with previous interpretations, Dilation occurs along east
northeast orientated fault segments which appear 1o have
been reactivated during mineralisation. The main structural
direction is northeast, representing belt parallel shearing,

COTE D’'WOIRE: TONGON PROSPECT

8 HOLE 1 992 METRE TACTICAL DIAMOND CORING
PROGRAMME COMPLETED

TND 050
1m @ 12.70g/4
13m @ 1 2691

NORTHERN ZONE D05

SOUTHERN ZONE

TND 656
4m @ 1.77g/t indl 2m @ 2.87g/t
oM@ 2.28/t indl 4m @ 3 1801 e
2

* 3m@ 11804
4Am @ 1.07g4

. 1.25km




together with the presence of north-south belt discordant
structures. The interaction between these two structural trends,
in this case primary dextral movement along north-south
trending faults, causes reaction of the northeast belt parallel
structures and in tum creates dilation on the east-northeast
structures.

The 30 000 metre diamond coring feasibility driling has
commenced.

TANZANIA

In Tanzania, generative work is the driver to build a new portfclio
of projects; we are relooking at the Southern Lake Victoria
Goldfield, the Proterozoic mobile belts and new greenstons
belts within the Craton.

An evaluation of the old Kiabakari mine was completed,;
RC and diamond cora dirilling tested the immediats vicinity of
the okd mine and a 2 000 metre strike along the Kiabakar! fault.
Anomalous valuss were returned aiong a 1 800 metre segment
of the fault associated with three structures within a 300 metre
wide comdor. However the miain mineralisation is constrained
to & 500 metre long by 35 metre wide zone grading 2 to Bg/,
within which the high grade payshoot, measuring approximately
100 metre by 30 metre grading phus 69/t has been mined cut
10 350 metres below the surface and selectively to 500 metres
below the suface,

Randgold Resources has fully tested the Kiabakar target and
cencludes that there is no big mineralised system which fits
its criteria for further investment. This project has been handed
back to the govemment.

In the Mara Regicn, mapping and trenching have tested the
Mara fault comidor which has bean traced for 3 kilometres
within the Nyabigena South permit. This fault system hosts
the Nyabirama mine (1 milion cunce resource), the Komarera
deposit (400 000 cunces} in addiion to two old colonial mines
{Mara and Pontama).

The resuits are encouraging with two 15 to 30 metre anomalous
zones, within a 70 to 80 metre wide sast-west structural
comdor, locally mylonitic. Geologically the target is underlain
by granadiornite gneisses with highly deformed and carbonated

mafic dykes. The main alterations chserved are sericite-silica-
pyrite, Trench resulls from west to east include:

I NYTR17: 34 metres at 0.16g/ and 24 metres at 0.51g4,
including 14 metres at 0.82g/1.

NYTR21: 16 metres at 0.10g/t and 18 metres at 1.10g/1.
NYTR31: 22 metres at 0.61g/ and 20 metres at 0.10gA.
An RC drill programme will follow-up these results in 2007 .

[N

More regionally, three Barick permits in the Singida-Dodoma
region were incomporated inte the curent joint venture agreement
with Randgold Resources.,




The company has ¢ontinued to
assess new business and merger
and acquisition opportunities world
wide, retaining a specific focus on
organic growth within the African
continent.
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New business

Qrganic growth opporiunities continue to be evaluated in the
six countries the company is operational in and has also
commenced an initiative whereby an “African hunting team”
has been tasked to review countries which are equally
prospective for multi-million cunce gold deposiis but were
previously low on our ranking scale. These countries will be
selected on the basis that the political and fiscal conditions
could be changing for the better.

Distinct from the organic growth route we have alsg tested
growth oplions through possible M&A opportunities. As part
of this strategy we carriaed out due dillgence audits, both desk
top and on-site, during the year, within and outside Africa,
including one full corporate due diligence. Examination of
these projects confimmed none would fit our stated obiective
criteria that any corporate acguisition should either be
demonstrably strategle or value accrative for our sharehclders.

EXPLORATION AND
NEW BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT:

HUNTING THE NEXT
MULTI-MILLION
OUNCE DEPOSIT

Gold oocurences

+1 Moz gold deposits
Neoproterozoe
Mescproterozois
Pdlecprolerozoic
Archean
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Randgold Resources is committed
to the integration of environmental
and social impact management into
its business activities. The optimum
utilisation of mineral and other
resources encompasses the
protection and conservation of the
existing environment. Within this
framework, the company strives to
assist the communities most
affected by its operations to develop
in a sustainable way and to give all
its employees a high quality of work
life, including a safe workplace.

Social responsibility

POLICY STATEMENT

Its integrated social and environmental management process

identifies polentially significant negative and positive impacts.

The implementation of ervironmental and social responsibility

strategies ams to minimise negative impacts and maximise

the positive impacts of its activities, commensurate with its

business strategy and within national and World Bark standards.

The strategies it uses to achieve (his include the following:

= Encourage and reward the use of integrated environmental
rmanagemeant 1o ensure thal management decision making
processes include a sensitive and holistic consideration
of environmental issues. To facilitate this, all projects must
include a comprehensive environmental and social impact
assessment, Where appropriate, specialist consullants
are employed.

= Mainiain positive relationships with neighbouring

communities, local and national govermnment authorities,

NGOs and aid agencies and the public.

Respect and consult with the communities in the areas

affected by its operations so that these communities

receive fair treatment and where possible benefit from the

company’s activities.

= Budget a percentage of profit 1o be used for sustainable
community development projects. The projects are
selected and priorlised in consultation with communities
and camed out in cooperation with community members.

3 Aim o forge a pact with employees through having respect
for fundamental human rights, including workglacs rights,
employee development and the need for a healthy and
safe workplace.

= Strive for the highest guality of rehabilitation, waste
management ang environmenial protection in the most
cost effective manner.

= Strive fo optimise the consumiption of energy, water and
other natural resources.

= Through the introduction of new altemative erwvironmentally
friendty products and processes, as they become available,
avoid the use or release of substances which, by,
themselves or through their manufacturing process, may
damage the environment.

= Practice responsible environmental stewardship
to meet the demands of local communities, host country
government requirements and intemational standards and
strive for continuous improvement of environmental
performance.

1J




For details of the implementation of the social responsibility
palicy, refer ¢ the review of operations on pags 20 to 23 and
27 t0 28 and the human rescurces report beiow.

ENVIRONMENTAL REPORT

Randgeld Resources carries out its operations within the
guidelines outlined in its social responsibility policy and in
accordance with World Bank standards.

The Morila Mine obtained its 1IS014007 centification during
20086 whilst in the first year of production at the Loulo Mina,
1ISC14001 training proceduras were pul in place with the aim
of moving towards compliance.

At Loulo, the first phase of a cyanide detoxification process
has commenced. This comprises the introduction of a tailings
thickener, which aflows the retum of water back into the process
circuit. This facifily should be commissionea later in 2007.
The second phase due for implementation earty in 2008,
involves the desiruction of cyanide using Degussa technology.

Additional information relating 1o the environmental activities at
the mings is contained in the review of operations on pages
20 and 27.

HUMAN RESOQURCES REPORT
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY AND COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT

The sustainable development and social responsibility strategy
formis an integral part of the company's overall business strategy
and is imptemented throughout all offices, projects and
operations, including Morla, This strategy recognises that the
effectiveness of Randgold Resources’ community development
efforts can be increased through forming synergistic alliances
with professionals in the field, such as NGOs and aid agencies
that have solid track records.

During 2006, Morlla entered inte a new thres-way aliance with
the aid agency, US AID, and the Commune of Sanso. The
goal of this alliance s, through the three-way partnership, to
address poverty reduction and accelerate economic growth
in the communtties in the vilages arcund Marila ming, in support
of the Govemment of Mali's decentrafisation goals.

The parties have agreed, through joint funding, 10 address;

= The improvernent of govemnance, transparent planning.
and management of common resources at the commune
level.

Agricuttural development.

Improved commune managed communications.

Basic education through teacher training.

Improved commurity heaith.

oy n

This allance will increase the annual amount spent on comminity
development projects in the area from US$H150 000 1o
Us$275 000,

Other major successes in community development at Marila
this year have been the rice growing projects at Fingola and
Morila. These were financed and set up by the mine and run
by the women of the two vilages. Dunng the first season of
production, the wormen produced and sold 10 691 kilbgramimes
of rice. They made a healthy profit that enabled them 1o finance
their next season’s rice growing actvities.

At Morila in 2008, a total of US$164 287 was expended by
the mine on community development projects.

At Louko, the community liaison and developrent efforts, which
have been ongoing since 1996, have been stepped up in this
first full year of production. Lovlo, which Ike Morila follows the
Randgokd Resources’ sustainable development strategy, camies
out such activities in vilages surrounding the mine through a
represeniative local community liaison and development
comimittee. The committeg consists of traditional leaders from
all the villages within a 10 kilometre radius of the mine, the
mine's community development staff, the Mayor of Sitikity and
the Sous-Préfect of the Kenieba Cercle, who represents the
Central govermment. This year, co-operative projects between
Louto mine and villagers have seen more than US$175 196,
excluding the amounts spent on medical services to
communities, expended by the mine on its social programme.
The three pilars of this programme are basic education, food
security and basic community health, which includes access
o potable water.

Social programme activities have included:
= The buiding, maintenance, and eguipping of schecls, as
well as the sutvention of teacher salaries.




= The establishment of micro agri-enterprises such as

vegetable gardens, beekeeping in the vilages, the provision

of seeds, feriliser and farming equipment and education

and training in agricultural production and marketing.

Drifling of bore holes and installing indian pumps.

Provision of medical treatment, medicines, and inoculations

to local villagers.

= The evacuation of seriously ill vilagers to hospitals in
Bamako and Kayes.

= Malaria and HIV/AIDS educational and awareness
campaigns in focal villages.

Z  The introduction of malaria control programmes such as

spraying of the dwellings in local villages and distribution

of mosquito nets.

i il

Details of the above activities are referred 10 in the review of
operations section of this repon on pages 20 to 23. The
expenditure on the three pillars of our sustainable community
development social programime exceeded US$240 000 during
2006.

Spin-off development impacts from mining activity

The provisicn of secure and well paid employment enhances
the econemies of the vilages where the employees live and
the welfare of their families. Further, the experience of being
employed and the associated knowledge and skills gained
gives employees a sustainable competilive advantage over
others in the job market,

At a national level the Randgold Resources™ business model
faciitates development as it includes establishing and maintaining
effective local partnerships. in every country in which it operates,
the company has formed business partnerships with local
businesses, fostered close relationships with the authorities
and governments of the countries and where possible,
purchases goods and senvices locally.

The financial contribution that an investor such as Randgeld
Resources can make to a country such as Mali is significant,
The company, through its investments in Loulo, Morila and
axploration, contributes to the econcmies of the countries in
which it operates through payments of staff salaries, payments
1o government of payroll taxes, duties, royalties and to local
businesses for goods and services.

During 2006, Randgold Resources maintained its good relations
with governmenits by continuing to meset regularty with officials
of the authenties in Mali, Tanzania, Senegal, Ghana, Burkina
Faso and Céte d'ivoire.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The good industial relations experienced during this year
across the group, reflect the continuing success of the Randgold
Resources pact with labour policy.

During 2006, Loulo broke all records in Mali for the establishment
of a union, by holding union elections in co-operation with
SYNACOM, the mining union confederation, and establishing
a union at Loule, within a few months of the commencement
of operations thera.

Manpower

Hurman capital

As the company develops and expands, every eficrt is made
to employ excellent people. Through leadership, a sense of
ownership and interpersonal influence, these people are
metivated 1o contribute to Randgold Resources’ success.

What needs to be done in the company is defined by
congsultative strategic planning, which is refreshed at regular
intervals and is rolled down through the cperations.  This
strategy provides the foundation for the long term plan (including
manpower and succeassion plans), the fundamental principles
of its business, the ramework for effective decision making
and the actions required of ils employees, the initiating of
change and improvements and, most importantly, a rallying
point. It enables the business to organise its resources ang
optimise the application of its hurnan capital.

2006 has bheen a year of development, empowerment and
positioning of the company’s young intellectual talent, such as
Paui Harbidge, the manager of Randgold Resources’ highly
successiul exploration team, to succeed to the most senior
levels of the company and of its operations.

Further, the process has begun of appointing a second in
command 10 John Steele in capital projects anc of strengthening
the procurement and commercial functions.

At the mine level, Loulo’s manpower and management
succession plans were realised through the devalopment of

t
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Malizn professionals whe have either already replaced expensive
expatiates or will do so in the near future.

During 2006, national managers became responsible for the
posts of processing manager, maintenance manager, mining
superintendent, and underground geolegist. n addition,
individuals have besn earmarked and are completing final
development, 1o succeed the expatnate incumbents of senior
management posts.

The general manager of Loulo, Amadou Korita, is a Malfian
graduate who has been with the group since its inception, and
who has risen through the ranks o a mining foreman, thraugh
mining superintendent, to manager mining at Syama and who
was appointed as the first Malian general manager of a large
Malian gold mine in 2005. Together with Mahamadou Samaké,
who is a senior executive of the company and a director of
both Morila and Loulo, and Randgold Resources' other senior
managers, Amadou stands out as an excellent role model for
young nationals throughout the company.

Randgold Resources believes this comes through its partnership
philosophy of involving employees and other stakeholders
such as suppliers and contractors in the business. All are
kept fully informed about the business and how they can
contnbute to making & more successiul. The comparty believes
this manifests itself in many aspects of ils business and not
just production - for instance having maintained an enviable
safety and health record on its operations with both Syarma
and Morila having won the premier National Satety award in
Malian industry. In the more recent past Lovle has had a fine
record throughout the construction of the mine and the start-
up of operations.  On the health side, the company has
significantly reduced the incidence of diseases such as malaria
in the areas in which it operates.

Voluntary tumover of our staff continues 1o be below 1% per
annum.

Group training and developmeni

Randgold Resources continues its suppart of the Malian Mining
industry University Scholarship scheme. Of the 10 students
studying electrical engineering (4), geology (2}, mining {2) and
chemical engineering (2), eight are expecled to progress to

their third and penultimate year of study. In addition, the
company continues its support of the Randgolu Resources’
Scholarship Award scheme for earth sciences students at the
University of Senegal.

For further information on human resources and sustainable
community deveiopment see the Morila and Loulo operations
section of this report on pages 20 to 23 and pages 27 and
28.




Directors’ reports

Qur aim is to build a
sustainably profitable business,
capable of creating long term value
for all its stakeholders.
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This section of the annual report
provides a description of how the
company has applied the principles
set out in Section 1 of the 2003
Combined Code. Except as noted
below, the company has complied
with the provisions set out in
Section 1 of the Code throughout

the year ended 31 December 2006.

MEETINGS ATTENDED

Corporate governance

for the year ervied 31 December 2006

Every company should be headed by an effective board, which
is coflectively responsible for the success of the comparny.

The board is committed 1o guiding the strategic and
entrepreneurial development of the group and supports the
principle of callective responsivility for the success of the
company. The board has reserved, for its sole discretion, the
finalisation and adoption of the group's strategic plan, major
fiscal policies including treasury and hedging policies, approval
of the budget, approval of all mining development and any
merger and acquisition.

Curing the year, the board inroduced a format evaluation
system 10 measure its own performance as well as those of
its committees. During the year the board met six times.
Attendance at the meetings is shown at the botiorn of this
page. Where it is deemed appropriate, the chairman meets
with the non-executive directors without the presence cf the
executive directors. No formal meetings, however, were
deemed necessary during the year ended 31 December 2006,

Appropriate insurance cover for directors and officers has been
obtained by the company in respect of legat action against the
directors.

T PLétard Non-executive chaiman 4] 6
S DM Bristow Chief executive officer 6 6
= RA Wiliams Group finance director 6 6
C  BH Asher Senior independent director 5 6
= J-ACramer* Independent non-executive 6 &)
I NP Cole* Independent non-executive 2 2
= FRilsrael Independent non-executive 5 6
% AL Paverd Independent.non-executive 5 6

K Voltaire** Indgpendent non-executive 2 2

* Mr Cramer retired from the board with effect from 27 October 2006.
™ DrVoltaire and Mr Cole were appointed o the board on 3 May 2008.




CORPORATE GOVERNANGE (CONTINUED)

There should be a clear division of responsibiiies at the head
of the company between the running of the board and the
executive responsibility for the running of the company's
business. No one individual should have unfettered powers
of decision.

The nor-executive chaimnan, Mr Phiippe Ligtard, is responsible
for the leadership of the board and to ensure effective
communication exists between the executive and non-executive
directors.

The CEQ, Dr Mark Bristow, has been delegated execulive
respansibility for the group. A formal job description is in
existence and this is raviewed annually by the board and the
CEQ.

The board should include a balance of executive and non-
executive directors fand in particular independent non-executive
directors) such that no individual or small group of individuals
can dominate the board's decision taking.

Cursntly the board comprises gight members, two executive
and six non-exacutive diractars. During the year, the board
size was increased by one from the previous year with the
appeintment of two new non-executive directors and the
retirement of Mr J-A Cramer, a senior member of the board.
The board believas that mining is a long-gestation business
and as such justifies a longer period of senvice for non-executive
directors than many industrigs. Therefore reasonable perods
of service are required for the stability of the board but rew
appointments are nesded from time to time to add a fresh
perspective. Since listing in 1987, the company has had trvee
chaimmen and in tota seen the retirement of resignation of five
directors.

The board monitars compliance with the independence criteria
included in the United Kingdom Financial Services Authority's
2003 Combined Code ("Code”) and, save in certain instances
set out below for {a) periods of senice and () award of options
and “restricted” shares, all non-executive directors meet the
criteria. For the reasons set out below the board believes that
the non-executive directors are indepenrdent.

{2) Curmrently, Dr Paverd and Messrs Asher and lsragl
have all served as directors for more than nine years.
Tne board has considared their objectivity and
contributions and believas that these are still
independent in character and judgement.

(h) Messrs Asher and Israel continue to hold options in
terms of the comparny’s share options scheme. These
were awarded in 1998 and the board does not believe

that this interferas with their independence. With the

exception of the two directors appointad in 2008,
each of the non-executive drectors owned shares in
the company during the year. The non-executive
dreciors also received an award of “restricted” shares
in addition 1o their directors’ fees. The board believes
that this aligns their interests with those of other
shareholders without compromising inclependence.

Meetings of lhe board's commiitees wers held regularty. Where
appropriate, the chairman and the executive directars are
invited to be in attendance.

The company’s senior independent director is Mr BH Agher.

Sharehoiders are referred to the remuneration report on
page 57 for details of directors’ shareholdings.

There should be a formal, rigorous and fransparent procedure
for the appointment of new directors to the board.

During 2006, the board reviewead its previous palicy of retaining
responsibility for appointments of new directors. A govemance
and nomination commitiee was estabfished in Octobar 2006.
A charter for the effective organisation of the new committee
was approved and is published on the company's website.
Tre board approved the appointment of Mr Listard as chaiman
and Messrs Cole and Asher as mermbers. The new committee
met once in 2006.

During the year two new directors were appointad 1o the board.
Ahead of the appointmant of Mr Cole andt Dr Voltaire, and prior
10 the appointment of the new committee, the board set out
spacific ohjectives which any new candidaie should satisfy
ahead of formal consideration and appointment. The board
decided that the positions would net be advertised. After
carefully considering and interiewing a number of prospective
candidates, it was fell that both Mr Cole and Dr Voltaire met
these cbjectives. They were invitad to the May board mesting,
at which time the entire board had an opportunity to meet and
interact with the candidates before formalty considering and
approving their appoiniment.

Diuring the latter part of the year, the govemance and nomination
commitiee was requested 10 conskder recruitng a raplacement
for Mr Cramer. Mr Cramer's input as a Swiss banker had
provided a distinctly pan Eurapean contribution during his nine
year fenure and, given the overall shareholder profile of the
company, Ihis factor would be considered key in selecting a
new non-executive director,  In accordance with the provisions
of the company’s Memorandum of Association, the two new
non-executive directors will be subject to re-glection al the
May 2007 annual ganeral mesting.




In addition 1o the appeintment of diractors, the appointment
and removal of the company secrelary remains a matler for
consideration by the board as a whole.

The board should be supplied in a tmely manner with information
ina lorrn and of @ qualty approcriate o enable it to discharge
its duties. All directors should receive induction on joining ihe
board and should regulary uodate and refresh their skils and
knowledge.

The board operates in a field which is technically complex and
directors are provided with information which enables them to
fulfit their duties effectively, Visils to the mines, branch offices
and technical presenlations provided by management are
used to further their knowledge in various areas of specialisation.
Itis the duty of the company secrelary to ensure an effective
flow of informaticn between the board, its commitless and the
management of the comparty. The new directorns were provided
with a detalled induction into the group's activiies, with specific
site visits to assist in the process.

The board should undertake a formal and rigorous annual
avaluation of its own performance and that of its commitiees
and individual clirectors.

In a departure from previous practice, the board decided in
May 2006 10 adopt a formai evaluation procadure, which was
formulated taking cognisanice of other board systems and in
consultation with the group human rescurces executive. The
new procedure through a structured self assessment system
allows each direcier to rate the performance of the board and
its commitiees and focuses on a number of key areas. The
individual assessments are then scored and the results tabled
at & board meeting for discussion, Al the October 2006
meeting, the board undericok its first evaluation. The board
concluded that the exercise was beneficial and agreed to
address two of the issues which arose:
T Aboard succession plan needed to be adopted. The
board acknowledged that it shoukd consider infroducing
a limit on the length of service of non-exacutive
drectors, However, given that a majority of the non-
execulive directors were appointed at the time of the
initial IPO, in 1967, it was acknowledged that if all
such directors were 10 resign simuitaneously this could
be detrimental 10 the company's strategic direction.
The chaimar and the CEQ were requested to prepare
a succession plan for consideration.
= The board agreed that the govemance and nomination
commitiee be requested to consider and identify a
replacernent for Mr J-A Cramer, who retired at the
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end of the October meeting. The commitiee was
requested 1o seek a candidate who could match
Mr Cramer's pan European business experience.

A formal session of the non-executive directors assessed the
chairman’'s performance and based on his high level of
performance the members unanimously recommended his
re-election to the board,

All directors should be submitted for re-efection at requiar
intervals, subject to continued satisiactory performance. The
board should ensure planned and progressive refreshing of
the board.

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies (Jersey)
Law 1991 and the Articles of Association, directors are required
1o submil thermselves {o re-glection. Any newly appcinted
director is subject to election by shareholders after his/her
appointment. Thereafter, by rotation, the entire board is subject
10 re-election every three years.

The Articles of Association specify neither an age limit for
directors nor any restriction about the period of service, As
previously noted, a board succession plan will be formulated
during the 2007 financial year,

Levels of remuneration should be sufficient to atiract, retain
and motivate directors of the quality required to run the compary
succassiully, but a company should avoid payving more than
is necessary for this purpose. A significant proportion of
executive directors’ remuneration should ba struciured so as
to link rewards to corporate and individual performance,

This is dealt with in the report of the remuneration cormmittee.

There should be a formal and transparent procedura
for developing policy on executive remuneration and for fixing
the remuneration packages of individual directors. No director
shauld be involved in deciding his or her own remuneration,

This is dealt with in the report of the rermuneration cormmittes.

The hoard should present & balanced and understandable
assessment of the company’s position and prospects.

The Companies (Jersey) Law, 1991 and the Code require,
and the board acknowledges, that it is responsible for presenting
a balanced and understandable assessment of the company'’s
and the group’s pesition and prospects. This extends to the
preparation and publication of the annual repont and any cther
release of information, price sensitive or ctherwise.




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED;]

The financial statements set out in this report have been
prepared by management under the direction of the boarg in
accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards
and are based on accounting policies thal the board considars
appropriate, supported by reasonable and prudent judgernents
and estimates.

The diractors are of the opinion that the financial slatements
fairty present the financiat position of the company and group
as at 31 December 2006, and the consolidated results of
Opaaﬁmsandcamﬂonsofmegrwpformeyea:menended.
The directors have continued 1o adopt the going concem basis
in preparing the financial statements because ihe directors are
satisfied that the group and company have adequate financial
resources available to ensure their continued operational
existence for the foreseeable future.

The group has operated in accordance with a code of ethics

since its United Kingdom listing in July 1997. The code

includes specific reference to the company’s financial managers

and the chief executive officer. A copy of the code is available
- on the company's website at www.randgoldresources.com.

The company also believes that the following risk factors should
be carefuly considared as they could, efther individually or in
a combination, have a material adverse effect on its business:

2 The profitability of its operations, and the cash flows
genersled by its operations, are affected by changes
in the market price for gold which in the past nas
fluctuated widely.

The company may incur l0sses of loose opponunities

for gains as a result of its use of derivative instrurments

to protect it against low goid prices.

Because it depends on Morila, and its interest in Morila

Limited, for a substantial porticn ¢f its revenues and

cash flow, its husiness may be harmed if the

Govemment of Mali fails to repay fuet duties and TVA

owing to Morila.

Under its joint venture agreement with AngloGold

Ashanti Limited, the comparny jointly manages Morila

Limited, and any disputes with AngloGold Aghanti

over the management of Moriia Limited could actversaly

affect its business.

o The company's mining operations may vield less gold
under actual production conditions then indicated by
its gold reserve figures, which are estimates based
on a number of assumpticns, including mining anc
recovery factors, production costs and the price of
gold.

0 The company may be required to seek funding from

a
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third parties or enter inlo joint development
arrangements to finance the development of its
properties and the timely exploration of its mineral
rights. which funding or development arangements
may not be avalable on acceptable temms, or at all.

= The company conducts mining, development and
exploration activities in countries with developing
economies and are subject to the risks of political and
economic instability associated with these countries.

= |f the company is unable to atlract and retain key

personnel its business may be harmed.

The company's insurance coverage may prove

inacequate io satisfy future claims against it.

- |t may be difficuit to affect service of process
and enforce legal judgments against the company or
its affilates.

Full details relating to these risk factors as well as those
relating to the industry can be found in the annual report
on form 20-F for the year ended 31 Decermber 2005, a
copy of which is containgg on the company's website at
www.randgoldresources.com.

The board shauld maintain a sound systern of infernal control
to safequard sharehoiders’ investment and the company’s
assets.

The group mainlains a business control framawork that
documents the key business risks, together with the refated
cperationa!, financial and compliance controls, The business
contral framewark is regularly reviewed and updated by
managament, who report quarterty 10 the board on any issues
which might affect the risks and controls, The board
acknowledges thal it has responsiblity for the oNgoINgG review
and update of the business control framework and believes
that, through the procedures noled above and below, it has
complied with the requirements of the Code to review the
effectiveness of the group’s intemal controls at least annually.
Further, the board confimns that this process accords with the
2005 Turnbull Guidance and that no significant failings or
weaknesses have been identified from the review. Significant
focus has been given to Section 404 of the Sarbanes Oxley
Act which came into effect at the end of the year ended
31 December 2006 and in this regard the services of KPMG
were employed to assist management in ensuring that the
appropriate systemns and procedures are in place.

The company'’s auditors also act as auditors for Louio and
Morila and the findings from the audits are communicated to
the audit commitiee. AngloGold Ashanti's internal audit




department conducts regular audits of the Morila mine and
copies of these reports are submitted 1o the company’s audit
committeg for consideration. Management of the company
has since the start up of the Loulo mine undertaken regular
assessments 10 ensure that the appropriate procedures are
in place from the outsel. Given its size, the group does not
have & separate intemal audt department. However, executive
management undertake regular audils of varicus parts of the
Morila and the Loulo mines and details of their reports are
submitted to the audit commitiee and board for comment.
Financial and technical audits of the company's branch offices
and major assets are regularly conducted by group
management. The board notes that no cost effective system
will preclude all errors ang iregularities and so the group's
systermn of intemal controls provides reasonable, but not absolute
assurance, against material misstatement or loss.

The board shauld establish forrmal and transparent amangements
for considenng how they should apply the fnancial reporting
and internal contro! princicles and for maintaining an appropniate
relationship with the company’s auditors.

The company's zudit commitiee has been set up to review
the company's financial reports, intemal control principles and
risk management syslems, review significant financial reporting
Judgerments and for dealing with the appointment of the auditors
and monitoring their refationship with the company and its
management.

For part of the year, the audit committes comprised four
members {until the retirement of Mr Cramer in Ocicber), all of
whom were non-executive diractors. For reasons described
earligr, the board considers that the membars of the audit
commitiee are all independent:

—__BH Asher {Chairnan) 15 Jul 97
= J-ACramer 15 Jul §7 27 Oct 06
S AL Paverd 1 May 00
= KVoltaire 1 Aug 06

Two of the members {including Mr Cramer, who retired during
the year) have consideratle vears of experience in the financial
services sector, one has extensive experience in the mining
industry and the other has a PhD in finance. Tre board
believes that this level of experience is sufficient to meet the
slandards prescrioed by the Code, even though none of the
members has “recent and relevant financial experience”. if
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issues arose which were deemed outside the areas of expertise
of the memkbers, independent professional advice would be
sought,

Dring the year the commitiee met six times and attendance
was as follows:

= 8H Asher {Chalrman) 6/6
—_ J-ACramer* 5/6
= AL Paverd 4/6
= K\Molare* 1/1

* Mr Cramer retired on 27 October 2006.
Dr Voltaire joined the committee on T Augus! 2006.

In terms of the directors’ remuneration policy, Mr Asher receives
a fee as the senior independent director and no additionat
payment for services o the audit committee. Fees paid io
Cr Paverd and Mr Cramer for service to the audit committee
for the year were US$35 000 and to Or Voltaire US$17 500.
The commitiee makes recommendations to the board in relation
to the appointment, re-appaintment and removal of the extemal
auditors as well as the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the extemal auditors, The actual appointment of the extermnal
atiditors is subject to the approval of shareholders at the annual
general meeting.

During the year, the external auditors were paid US$0.4 milion
for their services including Sarbanes Oxley Audit work.
PricewaterhouseCoopers provided the following non-audit
senvices in the year within the audit commiltee’s pre-approved
auidelines:

= Compary secretanal services in Tarzania for Randgakd

Rescurces Tarizania (T) Lid,

= Taxadvice for Seven Bridges Trading 14 (Pty) Lig.

In both cases, the amounts were less than US$6 000.

The committee reviews and monitors the external auditor's
independence and the objectivity and effectivensss of the
audit process.  This is undertaken within the framework of a
detailed audit charter, A copy of the audit charter is available
on the company's wabsite at www. randgoldresources.com,

The committee reviews the company's published results, the
effectiveness of its systern of intemat conirol, legal and regulatory
compliance including the Sarbanes Oxley Act, and the cost
effectiveress of the senvices provided by the extemal suditors.




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

The audit committee has implemented a policy regarding the
provision, and pre-approval thereof, of non-audit senvices by
the external auditors and this mandate is reviewed annually.
The committee meets regularly and this includes quarterly
meetings which are used io consider and approve the
company's quadery results. The extemal auditors are regularty
invited to attend meetings 10 report on thelr activities. The
committee also mests with the extemal auditors, independent
of the executive directors or management, where this is deemed
necessary.

The Sarbanes Oxley Act requires companies to establish
“whistle-blower™ systems. The geographical spread ¢f the
group’s aciivities, panticularty in remote West Alrican locations,
rakes the system complex. The first point of contact is the
company's legal counsel who, upon receipt of such an issue
being raised, would empioy independent consultants and then
pass the findings onto the senior independent director {0
pursue any alleged imegularity. Quarterly repons are subimitted
to the audil commitlee concerning any instances where
complaints are submitted.

The audit committee has continued to oversee the group's
preparation for compliance with the requirements of Section
404 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act, which applies to the
31 December 2006 year end.

There should be a cialogue with sharehoiders based on the
mutual understanding of objectives. The board as a whole
has responsibilty for ensuring that a satisfactory dialogue with
shareholders takes place.

The board acknowledges responsibiity for maintaining effective
communication with a) shareholders. The CEQ, comorate
communications manager and the company's investor relations
consultants prepare a quarterty report for the board detaling
the activities and presentations given to shareholders. In
addition, since Septernber 2004 the company has employed
intermnational markat inteligence experts to provide a global
shareholder identification service which has greatly enhanced
the focus of the company's communication message.

Whilst in general corporate communication with shareholders
is conducted by the CEQ, Mr Ligtard, at least quarterty,
participates in an open forum with shareholders and
stakeholders. In addition, Mr Liétard leads a group of senior
executives 10 the African Mining lndaba, one of the premier
global mining conferences attended by a substantial number
of global players in the mining and related industries, and in

February 2007 Dr Paverd and Dr Voltaire were also in
aitendance.

Besides atterdance at various inustry conferences, a minimum
of two road shows during lhe year are undertaken to enable
company representatives to interact directly with shareholders
and interested pasties. The board continues to use the intemet
for publication of announcements and to file these on its
wehsite to assist with communication with sharenolders. In
addition, the board encourages shareholdars 10 access the
annual report from the website rather than having it sent by
post in printed form.

The board should use the AGM to communicate with investors
and to encourage their participation.

The board Delieves that the annual general meeting is an
appropriate forum for contact with shareholders and encourages
ther attendance and participation. In order 1o reflect the
sentiment of shareholders at the annual general meeting, itis
an unwiitten policy that all resolutions should be considered
by way of a ballot poll and the number of proxies received
disclosed to members in atiendance. At each annual general
meeting all committee chainmen as wel as ciher non-executive
directors are present to address any queries raised by
shareholders.

Institutional shareholders should enter into dialogua with
companies based upon the mutual understanding of chjectives.

it has been the policy of the company that, twice a year, lenginy
roadshows are conducted by the CEO and group finance
director whers meetings are held with most of the comparny’s
major institutional shareholders to brief them on the activities
of the company. In addition, after the publication of each set
of quarterty resulis, the CEQ follows up with meetings with
mary of the institutional shareholciers. These roadshows are
over and above the company's atiendance at several key
intemational gold mining conferences around the world. Inthe
tast year conferences attended included those held in New
York, San Francisco, Mew Oreans, Denver, London, Zurich,
Hong Kong and Cape Town.

inshitutional shareholders have a responsibility to make
considered use of their voles.

The company is pleased o see the increasing trend of
institutional shareholders now exercising their rights to vote at
general reetings. In the past two years the percentage cf
sharehoiders present and voling has increased dramatically.




The remuneration committee was
increased during the year with the
appointment of a new independent
non-executive director.

VO |

Remuneration
committee report

MembersS - - pooiicd
= Rllsrael (Chairman) 15 Jul 97
-  BHAsher 15 Jul §7
Z NP Cole 1 Aug 06

DCurng the vear, the commitiee met three times with all members
in attendance and discussed all aspects of the remuneration
of the group. For the year under review, and purely as payment
for hig services as chairman of the remuneration committes,
M Israel was paid US$40 000. Mr Asher was paid a fee for
his rofe as serior independent non-executive director and was
rot paid any additional fees for services to any board commiitiee.

Mr Cole was paid US$12 500 for his service to the committee.
Details of all directors’ fees are contained on page 54,

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The principal function of the remuneration commities is to
determine, on behalf of the board, the ramunaration of the
chairman and non-executive direciors, the senior executive
remuneration policy and the remuneration and terms and
conditions of employment of the company’s executive directors.
Comparative industry surveys are provided to the committee
by the company's human resources executive to assist in
forrnulating remuneration.

The commitiee befieves that it should be able 1o mest informally
without management being in attendance and this has occured
on several occasions during 2006 in addition 1o the formal
mestings. Furthermaore, the commiittee is entitled to call for
independent consultants’ advice on pertinent issues. The
committee continued to employ the services of Bachelder &
Dowling to review executive remuneration, which was dong in
conjuncion with reviews of various mining related industry
surveys, Bachelder & Dowling were paid US$8 000 during
the year, The consultant provided no other senvices to the
company. At certain meetings, the members invited the
chairman and chief exacutive officer to attend,
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COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

i
% . )
. Hotal
L FECT ]
HECS 005
|
~ Executive directors
DM Bristow (CEQ) B0O000 600000 1212584 ©75136 683700 693700 2506284 2268836
RA Williams (Group
finance director) 320000 278208 404195 325045 - 724195 803 253
= Sub-total grO000 B78208 1616779 1300181 693700 693700 3230479 2872089
= Non-executive directors
P Ligtard {Chairman) 136000 135000 - - 30000 30000 185000 165000
8H Asher 120000 120000 - - 30600 30000 150000 150000
J-A Cramer 80 000 &G 000 - - 30 000 3000C 110000 110000
NP Cole 42 500 - - - - - 42 500 -
Rl lsrael 85 000 85000 - - 30000 30000 115000 115000
AL Paverd 80 000 80000 - - 30000 30000 110000 110000
K Voltaire 47 500 - - - - - 47 500 -
= Sub-total 530000 500 000 - - 150000 150000 740000 850000
- TOTAL 1510000 1378208 16816770 1300181 843700 843700 3970479 3522089

* Gther payments to Or DM Bristow in 2005 and 2006 comprise the grant of shares. The award in 2006 of USS30 000 to each
non-executive diractor transiated into share grants which vest over a three year period from the date of the award.

In addition to the total amounts refiected in these columns, the company paid Mr RAR Kebble, who resigned from the board
with effect from 3 Novermber 2004, an amount of US$1 212 584 {2005: USE975 136} This amount reflected the final payrment
in seftermenit of Mr RAR Kebblg's termination agresmert,

The bonus is caiculated on the movement in the company's share price based on a caleridar year to 31 March.  The 2008 bonuses,
as shown above, reflect the amounts paid in Apiil 2006 in respect of the maovement in the share price from 1 Aprit 2005 to
31 March 2006, being US$12.36 to US$18.17. At 31 Decernber 2006, the company accrued USE1.8 mition for bonus payments
in respect of 2006, based on a share price of US$323.46. Based on a share price of US522.42 on 13 March 20 07, the date of
signing off the accounts, the aggregate amount of the bonuses payabie for the period up to that date would be the higher amount
of US$2.3 milion, Bonuses in respect of the 2006 year are expected to be paid in Apni 2007 in terms of the provisions of the
service contracts

During the year. the new remuneration charter was approved by the board and this has heen placed on the website.




LA

REMUNERATION OBJECTIVES

The commitiee’s objectives are to provide senior management,
including directars, with a competitive package which wil
attract and retain executives of the highest calitre and encourage
and reward superior performance. The committee is cognisant
that the market demands that performance criteria be established
which measure an individual's perforrmance and that these
should form a significant proportion of a directors’ remuneration
package. The committee agreed performance criteria with
executive directors and used these in appraising their annual
performance.  The committes believes that the bonus payments,
which are linked to the performance of the company's share
price, together with participation in the comparty's share option
scheme for the finance director and share grants for the CEQ
are sufficient motivation for these executives and that these
align their interests with those of shareholders.

As in the past two years, the committee conlinues 1o believe
that the comect method cof incentivising the CEO and motivating
his performance, but at the same time aligning him with the
interests of shareholders, is t1¢ award him shares which are
only granted upon the achievernent of agreed performance
criteria. The CEO no ‘onger participates in the company's
share option scheme. The company’s finance director continues
to pariicipate in the share option scheme, although no new
options have been awarded to him since August 2004. Other
than the benefits listed above, the company has no other long
term incentive scheme. The remuneration committee believes
the existing schemeas are sufficient to motivate execulive
directors and senior management. Should, howeaver, it be
deemed necaessary to adopt any additional long term incentive
scheme or a new share option scheme, in accordance with
the LK Listing Rules, these would be submitted to shareholders
for approval.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The remuneration of the executive directors comprises:
= Abasic salary.

An annual bonus.

= Participation in the share option schame for the group
finance director.

= Adeferred compensation structure for the CEC.
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The total executive directors’ remuneration for the year ended
31 Decermber 2006, exchuding the additional and final tormination
payment to Mr RAR Kebble was US$E3 230 479 (vear ended
31 December 2006: USE2 872 089). Ful delails are provided
in a table on page 54 of this report.

Details of the varicus components comprising executive
remuneration are as follows:

Basic salary

Executive directors receive a basic salary &s determined by
the committee in accordance with the remuneration policy and
subject to agreed annual performance criteda, Indvidual senice
contracts (details of which are provided hereafter) do not
provide for any pension or retirement payments nor does the
company have any such retirement liability. The company
does, however, provide a defined contribution fund into which
amployees, including directors, may contribute.

Share options

Share options are no longer awarded 1o non-executive direcicrs
or the CEQ. In respect of the non-executive directors, the iast
options were awarded in 1998. Cumently only two non-
execulive directors have not exercised their options,

Awards of share options are determined by the rernuneration
committee guided by indusiry and intemational standards.
The existing share option scheme is not subiect to performance
criteria, which were not a standard at the time the present
scheme was adopted. The board acknowledges that any
future scheme would be performance refated and its adoption
woulld, in accordance with the terms of the UK Listing Rules,
be subject to approval by shareholders, Any options awarded
are subject to an upper limit of two per cent of the company’s
fssued share capital. No share options can be awarded at a
discount because the scheme niles provide that the exercise
price is determined as the closing price of the shares on the
tracing day preceding that on which a person is granted the -+
option. It is not the policy of the company to grant annual
awards of share options to employees.

The scheme provides that all options may be exercised early
in the event of an acquisition of the company that would require
an offer to be made 1o &l shareholders. Detalils of the options
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held by directors are contained in & table on page 58 of this
annual report.

The high and low ordinary share prices for the company for
the year under review were. ordinary shares on the LSE
(trading symbol RRS) and Nasdag frem | January 2006 to
31 December 2008:

High £14.08

z US$26.32
z  Low £8.70

US$15.88

The share price at the year end, being 29 December 2006,
the last day of trading, was £11.95 for the ordinary shares
trading on the LSE and US$23.46 for the ADRs trading on
Nasdaq.

Annual bonus

Execulive diractors’ service contracts provide for the payrnent
of an annual bonus. The bonus is determined on a notional
shareholding and is measured according to the perfomance
of the price of the company's ordinary shares over a 12 month
period ending 31 Merch. The calculation of the annual bonus
tor Dr DM Bristow is based on a notional shareholding of
300 000 ordinary shares, for Mr RA Wiliams the figure is
100 000 ordinary shares, In terms of the termination agreement
with the company's former chairman, Mr RAR Kebble, & bonus
would be paid to him in the event of the company mesting
criteria similar to the CEQ. The last bonus payable to
Mr RAR Kebble was for the year ended 31 December 2005
and was paid in Aprit 2008.

Service contracts

Service contracts have been concluded with the two executive
directors and Mr RA Williams's new agreement, concluded in
April 2008, runs uritil 31 December 2008. Givan ihe size of
tne company and its small management team, the board
considers periods of employment in excess of cne year to be
appropriate. The board has agreed to a roling three year
contract for Dr DM Bristow which has been approved based

on the impartance attibuted to his conitation o he Company's
overal strategic direction and performance. in the event of
unilateral termination, the company would be required 1o
compensate the director concerned for any outstanding
amounts due in terms of the contract. The rermuneration
committee, in drafting and approving the service contracts,
has taken cogrisance of the costs that would accrue on aarty
terrmination.

Share grants

Under the terms of the service contract enterad into with
Dr DM Bristow, the board has awarded the CEO restricted
stock. At the beginning of 2004, cenain parformance criteria
were agreed by the board and the CEQ. Atthe end of 2004,
an appraisal was underiaken and it was agreed that the criteria
had been met. Under the circumstances, an award of
160 000 shares was made to the CEC. The award entitled
the CEO 0 50 000 shares. at the end of cach yeer of a three
year parod commencing 1 January 2005. The final third,
being 50 000 shares accrued to the CEQ on 1 January 2007,
Such an award is not made annually, but the board reserves
the right, on the recommendation of the remunsration
committee, to reconsider this when it is deemed appropriate.

The company’s performance has been measured against the
HSBC Global Minding ndex. The HSBC Glebal Mining Index
is a capitalisation — weighted index calculated in dollars (USH.
The series represents the mining industries of 21 countries for
securities with @ market capitalisation generally in excess of
USE50 milion. The series has a base of 100cn 31 December
1985, with the exception of two Latin American indices which
are based at 100 at 31 December 1989, Acopy of the graph
is includad on page 88 ¢f this annual report.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
In Aoril 2005, following both the recommendations of the
remuneration committee and the board, shareholdars approved
a revised policy on non-executive directors' ramuneration,
This remuneraticn policy was also approved at the 2006 annual
general meeting. No additional changes are proposed for
2007 and non-executive direciors' remuneration will continus
1o comprise:
= Ageneral annugl retainer to al non-executive directors
ol USH4S 0C0.
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= Anannual commitlee assignment fee of US$25 000, assignment fee, to receive an additional US$HO0 000,
with an additional premium for membership of the T Anannual award to each dirsctor of US$30 000 to
audit committee of US$10 000. be translated irto a number of “restricted” shares.

= The chairman of a board commities to receive a The shares are 1o vest over a three year period from
committee assignment fee of US$40 000, the date of the award. Vesting would accelerate on

= The senior independent directar, in adidition to the the following conditions:
general annual retainer but in lieu of any committes = Termination other than resignation or dismissal,
assignment fee, 10 receive an additional US$75 000. = Voluntary retrement after the age of 65, with a
= The non-executive chairman, in addition to the minimum of three years service as a director.

Change in control of the company.

it

generat annual retainer, but in lieu of any commitiee

DIRECTORS' SHAREHOLDINGS

= Executive .
M Bristown* 782 584 732 584 610884 Beneficial
RA Willams 170000 170000 160 000 Beneficial
= Non-executive
P Ligtard 2% 362 27 548 26182 Beneficial
BH Asher 20383 18 569 13248 Beneficial
J-A Cramar*+ 29 500 29 500 782 Beneficial
NP Cole 447 . - Beneficial
Rt Israel 16 428 14615 13 248 Beneficial
AL Paverd 41828 a0 015 38649 Baneficial
K Voltairg 447 - - Beneficial

a5

This includes afl shares issued to Dr DM Bristow in respect of his share award and resticted shares which have vested in the
name of each non-executive direcior. Currently, in terms of the USS30 000 awardsd to sach non-executive director on
1 January 2005, the final 783 shares were issued on 1 January 2007, In terms of the USS30 000 awarded to each non-
exacutive director on 1 January 2006, the second tranche of 584 shares were issued on 1 January 2007 and the remaining
585 shares will be lssuad on 1 January 2008, In terms of the US$30 000 awarded fo 8ach non-executive director on T January
2007, 447 shares were jssued on 1 Jenuary 2007 and ihe remaining 894 will be issued in two tranchies of 447 shares each
on 1 January 2008 and 1 January 2009. .

This is a rectification to Dr Bristow's previous holdings to inchide an additional 4 184 shares registered in his name.

The firal tranche of 50 000 shares for Dr Bristow vested on 31 December 2006. The sharas were only transferred to Dr Bristow
once the closed penod ended upon pubiication of the company’s preliminary results.

For Mr Crarmer, the number of shares heid when he retired on 27 Octobsr 2006 was 2 148,
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DIRECTORS' OPTIONS

= Executive
D Bristow 166 700 - BB 700 - 3.25 1750 12/07/02 11/Q712
RA Wiliams 125 000 - 41657 83 333 8.05 2200 06/08/06 05/08/16
Z Non-executive
BH Asher 25 400 - 25 400 1.65 20/01/01 2801/
J-A Cramer 25400 - 25400 - 1.656 2050 28/01/01  28/01/11
Al Isragl 25 400 25400 1.65 20/01/01  28/01/11

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' SHAREHOLDING

A non-executive director must hoid shares at least squal in
vaiue (as at the beginning of the year) to the general annual
retainer, New directors are granted three years in which to
acquire the required shareholding and this peried could be
extended by the unanimous approval of the disinterested
directors. if the number of shares were to fall below the
threshold due to a fall in the share price, no edditional purchase
of shares would be required. Sava for Mr Cole and Dr Vofialre,
who ware both appeinted 10 the board in May 2006 and onfy
obtained their first “restricted” shares with effect from
1 January 2007, all the remaining non-executive directors hold
shares equal to the value of the general annual retainer.
During the year, Mr Cramer retired and the vestng of
his ‘restricted” siock was accelerated at the date of his
retirerment, being 27 Qctober 2006, bringing his aggregate
shareholding in the company on this date to 2 148 shares as
detailed on the previous page. Directors’ shareholdings in the
company are detalled on the previous page.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ OPTIONS
Previously, non-executive directors were granted share cplions
over the company's ordinary shares. These share options

were awarded 1o non-executive directors at a time when such
cptions were not considered as affecting a director's
independence and with the intention of aligning directors’
interasts with those of sharehoiders, Gurrentty only two non-
executive directors have unexercised share options. Mr Cramer,
who retired from the board on 27 Ociober 2006 exercised his
options and acquired the shares. Details of remaining options
are shown at the top of this page.




Directors repOft

for the vear enieo 31 Dacarmber 2006

1 GHARE OFTION SGHEME 3 ELEGT[ON oF D\RECTORS
The direclors granted options 10 senicr employees in in terms of Aricle 881 of the Articles of Association,
accordance with he provisions ot the Randgod Resources dirsctRs appointed 1o the board Juring the yesr shall retire
Lirrited Share Option Scheme (the sgeheme). The at the next arnua gererd meeling of e cornpary folowing
surmary DEow s inciuded in IS report 85 required i0 their appointment accordingly. Bf Kan Voltaire and
accordance: it the ruies of the Scheme. wir Norbome P Cole do S0 (atire and, 8% reiiring directors

are eligiol, have ofierad {nemseives for re-glection.
A short piography sor sach director i3 coniained on

2 RE—ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
page 5

AL ne last annual genera! meeting of the company.
Or Aubrey L paverd and Mr pernard H Asher were e
giected 25 directors. puring 2006, there were {hree . )
tecl 4
changes 10 ine beard. On 3 May 2006, Or Karl Voltaire Aiter 8 _1ormva! gefection proce;ss and baseC ypon he audit

o4 b Norborn o Cole W ied 1O " commitlee s recommenda’uon, the board 1as decided
@ r o © e were apporn n-executve 1o appoint BDO Stoy Hayward LLP as the company’s

dreclors. Detals relating 10 ineir gection othe poard &re augiors for the year ending 3 December 2007 .
contained in pavagraph 3 hereof- Pricewatemouse()ocpers LLP, who nave acted as e

company's auditors since ¢ listect on e Longon Stock
On 27 October 2006, Mr Jean-Antoine Crarner tetired Exchange in 1007, wil complete e auditof the COMPATY'S
from the poard. N accordance witn Article g0.1 of the 74 December 2008 yeal end, nckuding the Annual Repot
company's Aricles of Associaticn, pessrs PHilpPe Uetard on Form 20-F 10 e fied with he United States SeC and
and Roberd | \grag! retire py rotation and 85 retiing direciors the Management's Atestation Reportin terms of Section
are eligible, have offered inernseives for re-glection. 404 of the Sarbanes Oxley ACt

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Balance at 3
Adiustiment 10 palanc
share capita)

Shares
-  Shares lapsed curi

Balance at 31 December
Adiusiment 10 palance following
increase in share capital 6 394
cised duing thi
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities and
approval of the annual financial statements

The directars are responsible for
the maintenance of proper
accounting records and the
preparatton, integrity and fair
presentation of the financial
statements of Randgold Resources
Limited and its subsidiaries.

The financial statements, presented
on pages 62 to 86, have been
prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) and include
amounts based on judgements and
estimates made by management.
The directors also prepared the
other information inciuded in the
annual report and are rasponsible
for hoth its accuracy and its
consistency with the financial
statements.

The directors also have general respensibility for selecting
suitable accounting policies and applying them congistently,
and for taking such steps as are reasonably open 1o them to
safeguard the assets of the group and prevent and detect
fraud and other irregulariies. The going concem basis has
been adopted in prepanng the financial statements. The
drectors have no reason o believe thet the group and company
will not be a gaing concem in the foreseeable future based on
torecasts and available cash resources. The viability of the
comparnty and the group is supported by the financial statements.

The financial staterments have been audiied by he independent
accounting fimn, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, United Kingdom,
which was given unresticted access to all financial records
and refated data, including minutes of all mestings of
shareholders, the board of directors and cormmittees of the
board. The directors believe that &l representations made to
the independent auditors during their audit were valid and
appropriate. PricewaternouseCoopers |.LP's audi report is
presented cn page 61.

The maintanance and integrity of the Randgold Resources
Limited website Is the responsitllity of the directors, The work
camied out by the auditors does not involve consideration of
these matters and, accerdingly, the auditors accept no
responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the
report since it was initially preseriied on the website. Legistation
in Jersey and the United Kingdom goveming the preparation
and dissemination of the financial information may differ from
other jurisdictions.

The financial statements were approved by the board of
directors on 13 March 2007 and are signed on its behalf by:

Lo .
P Ligtard DM Bristow
Chaiman Chief execulive

Jersey, Channel Islands
13 March 2007




Financial statements

Profitability enables us
not only to reward our shareholders
but to reinvest earnings in our future growth.
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Report of the independent auditors

i the Members of Randigold Resources Limited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Randgold Resources Limited {the ‘company’} which comprise the
standalone balance sheet of the company and consolidated balance sheet of the company and its subsidiates (the ‘group'} as of
371 December 2006 and the consolidated incornz statemenl, consolidated statement of changes in equily and consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The company's directors are respensible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and with the requirements of Companies {Jersey) Law 1991. This responsibility
includes: designing, implementing and maintaining intemal control relevant 1o the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or ermor; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Cur responsibility is 10 express an opinion on these financial statements based on our gudit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial staterments are free from material misstaterent.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the riske of material misstatement of the
financial statemanis, whethar due 1o fraud or eor. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider intarnal control relavant
10 the entity's preparation and far presentation of the financial statements in order to clesign audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
atso includes evaluating the appropriatenass of accounting policies usad and the reasonablenass of accounting estimates made
by the dirgctors, as well as evaluating the overall prasentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

in our opirion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the company and the
group as of 31 December 2006, and of the financial performance and cash flows of the aroup for the year then ended in
accaordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards and with the requirements of Companies (Jersey) Law 1991,

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

Without gualifying cur opinion we draw attention o note 24 1o the financial statements, The recovery of a US$12.1 million loan to
MDM Ferroman (Ply) Ltd {("MDM") (in liquidation), the main contractor responsitle for construction of the Loule mine until the
construction confract was taken back on 30 December 2008, is dependent on the amount which can be recovered from various
perforrance bonds, personal guarantees and other assets provided as security and, if this proves to be insufficient, the outcome
of the liquidation of MDM. In addition, the directors believe the group is entilled to recover US$47.2 million from MDM in respect
of additional costs incured on the Loulo development project and demages arising from the delayed cormpletion of the project.
The uftimate outcome of these matters cannot presently be determined, and the financial statements do not refiect any provision
that may be required if the US$12.1 milion receivable cannot be recaverad in full or any adjustments that may arise from the claim
against MDM referred 1o above.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
Qur respensibiity is to audit the financial statements in accordance with refevant legal and regulatary reguiremeants and Intemationat
Standards on Auditing. This report, inciuding the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the company's members as a body
in accardance with Articie 110 of the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion,
accept or assurme responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person 1o whorm this report is shown or into whose hands i
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

We also, at the request of the directors (because the company applies the Financial Services Authority Listing Rules as if it were a
listed company in the United Kingdom), review whether the corporate govemance statement reflects the company's compliance
with the nine provisions of the 2003 Financial Reporting Council Combined Code speciied for our review by the Listing Rules of
the Financial Services Authority, and we repon if it does not. We are not reguired 1o consider whether the board's stalements on
internal control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the group's corporate governance procedures
or its risk and control procedures.

fresnlecimseloopery L1F

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants

L.onden, United Kingdomn
13 March 2007




Consclidated income statement

for the year endad 31 Decermber 2006

BN 1[G C R 0 00

UBEID |

20056 (Restated)n
REVENUE
Gold sales on spot 274 K7 151 502
Loss on matured hedges {12 180)
Non-cash loss on roll forward of hedges o 4 413) _
Total (everue . 258804 __ 151502

OTHER INCOME

Interest income 7384 2 064
Cther incomg o _ 1168 130G
Total other income .. 8882 3367
Total income . eeB856 104 869
COSTS AND EXPENSES
Mining and processing casts 25 137 6894 687 216~
Transport and refining costs 711 360
Royalties 16 979 10273
Exploration and corporate expendiiure 26 28 805 24 049
Other losses/{gaing) - net 553 {45)
Exchange losses - net 970 2074
Other expenses 705 801
Unwind of discounit on provisions for environmental rehabifitation 541 254
Interest expense 5825 1861
Total costs and expenses . _e2883 1068437
PROF!IT BEFORE INCOME TAX 73973 48 026~
Income tax expense 4 {23 097) (70~
NET PROFIT 50876 _ 478587
Attributable to:
Equity shareholders 47 564 45 507~
Minority shareholders 3312 2349
" 50 878 47 856~
: BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE (US$) 5 .70 074~
FULLY DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE (US$) 5 088 | 071~

~  Restated due to change in accounting poiicy relating to stipping Costs. Refer note 6.

The notes on pages 66 to 86 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




Consolidated and company balance sheets

at 31 December 2006

/72

Gty
BilEC]

N (HEsiaten) s 006}
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 9 241 300 202 636 . -
Cost 297 839 236 331 - N
Accumated depreciation and amortisation {56 539) (33 695) -
Beferred taxation I 2 993 2957~ -
Long term ore stockpiles 8 41 814 22178~
Receivables 7 13 702 - - -
Investments in subsidiaries and joint venture 10 - 5018 6016
Loans lo subsidiary and joint venture 0o - - 150753 112912
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS __299809 227769 156 771 118 §28
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories and ore stockpiles 8 34 200 34 210~ - -
Receivables 7 34 999 47 918 1024 827
Cash and cash equivalents . o - 143356 152452 134781 140359
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS __ 212585 234 580~ 135 785 141186
TOTAL ASSETS 512164 462 349~ 292 556 260114
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Authorised: 80 000 000 ordinary shares of
5 US cents each, for both years presented
Issued: 68 763 561 ordinary shares
(2005: 88 072 854) 3440 3404 3440 3404
Share premium 213 663 208 582 213 653 208 582
Accumulated profit 178 400 130 836~ 69 359 42 389
Other reserves (59 430) (41 00C) 3052. 2135
Shargholders' equity 336 063 301 822~ 289 504 256 490
Minority interest 15 4 707 1395 - -
TOTAL EQUITY 340 770 303 217~ 289 504 256 490
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term borowings 14 25 666 49 538
Loans from minority shareholders in subsidiaries 15 2773 2483 -
Firancial liabilties - forward gold sales 16 39 968 34 1514 - -
Deferred taxation 11 462 -~ -
Praovigion for environmental rehabilitation 13 8 g4z 9480
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 77712 95 652~ -
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities - forward gold sales 16 27 525 8939 - -
Accounts payable and accrued lizbilties 12 39 461 28 813 3052 3 624
Taxation payable 1878 2737 - -
Cument portion: of long term bomowings 14 24 B18 22 991 - -
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 93 682 63 480 3062 3624
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES _ 512184 462 349~ 292556 260114

The notes an pages 66 to 85 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Restated due to change in accounting poficy relating o stripping cosis. Refer note 6.




Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year endied 31 December 2006

IS$000

BALANCE AT 31 DEC 04
{as previously reported) 59 226 694 2061 102342 100213 (34 347) 191168 (954} 180 215
Change in accounting
policy - - - (148841 . (14 884) - (14884
BALANCE AT 31 DEC 04
(as restated) 59 226 694 2961 102342 85329~ (14347) 176285~ (954} 1753317
Nat income - - 45 807~ - 45507~ 2340 47 BSG”
Movement on cash flow
hedges
- Transfer to income

staterment - - - - (45) (45) - {45)
-~ Farr value movemeant on

financial instruments (27 A22) (27 422} - (27422
Total recognised
income/(loss) - - . 455077 (27487) 18040”2349 203897
Share-hased payments - - - - 2243 2243 - 2243
Exercise of employee
stock options 617 260 31 1838 - - 1 869 - 1 869
Shares vested# 103 910 6 1429 - (1429 5 - 5]
Capital raising 8125 000 406 1089 281 - - 109687 - 109687
Costs associated with
capital raising - - (6 308) - - {6 308) - {6 308)
BALANCE AT 31 DEC 06 - -
{as previously reported) " BB Q72 864 3404 208582 138751 (41 000) 308737 1395 311132
Change in accounting !
policy : - - . 7o R A [ S (1 ) o
BALANGE AT 31 DEC 05
(as restated) 68 072 864 3404 208582 130836~ {41000) 3018227 1395 3032177
Net income - - - 47 564 - 47 564 3312 50 8786
Movement on cash flow
hedges
= Transfer to income

statement - - - - 17 266 17 256 - 17 286
= Far value movement on

financig! instruments - - - - (36603 (36603 - (36803
Total recognised

# income/{loss) - - - 47 584 (19347) 28217 3312 31529

Share-based payments - - - - 2 369 2 369 - 2369
Exercise of employee
stock options 633 867 34 38619 - - 3653 - 3653
Shares vested# 56 830 2 802 - {802) 2 - 2

Exercise of aptions

previously expenged under

IFRS 2 - - 650 - (650} - - -
BALANCE AT 31 DEC 06 68 763 561 3440 213653 178400 (59 430) 336 063 4707 340770

Other reserves include the cumulative charge recognised under IFRS 2 in respecl of share option schemes {(net of amounts
transfermed to share capital and share premiurn) and the mark-to-market valuation of derivative financial instruments designated as
cash flow hedges (refer note 20).

#  Restricted shares were issued o directors as remuneration. OFf these shares, 56 830 (2005, 103 910) have vested, while
the remainder of the shares, § 760 (2005: 57 825) are stil held by the company as freasury shares. The transier between
other reserves” and “share premium” in respect of the shares vested represenis the cost calculated in accordance with
IFRS 2.

Restated due to change in accounting policy refating to siipping costs. Refer note 6.

The notes on pages 66 to 86 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Statement of consolidated cash flows

for the year ended 31 December 2006

GIoUbe
[(3estated)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit after tax 50 876 47 BEB
Income lax expense 23 097 170
Profit betore income tax 73973 48 026~
Net interest received (1 559 (203)
Depreciation and amortisation 22 844 11910
Other jossaes/{gains) - net 653 (45)
Effect of roll forward of hedges 4 413 -
Unwing of discourt on provisions for environmental rehabilitation 541 254
Share-based payrnents 2 369 2243
103 234 62 185~
Effects of changes in operating working capital items:
- receivables (9 840} {12 101)
- _inventories and ore stockpiles (19 428) (34 569~
= accounts payable and accrued liabilities g 469 14 408
Cash generated from operalions before interest and tax 83 635 29 923
Interest received 7384 2 064
Interest paid (5 825) (1 861)
Income tax paid (14 784} (330)
MNet cash generated from cperating activites 70410 29736
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions 1o property, plant and equipmernt* (61 508) (r3217)
Repayments fromv(financing of) contractors 24 105 {11 276
Net cash used by irnvesting acthvities (61 403) (84 493)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANGCING ACTIVITIES
Ordinary shares issued 3853 105 248
Lorg tem loang repaid (21 756) {1156)
Long termn loans received® - 24 877
Cash {used byVgenerated from financing activiies (18 103) 128 969
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS (9 096) 74212
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 152 452 78 240
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 143 356 152 452
Cash at hank and in hand 10 948 15 353
Short term bank deposits 132 408 137 099

143 356 152 452

The effective interest rate on short term bank deposils was 4.82% (2005: 2.77%). These deposits have an average maturity of
30 days.

¢ Excluded from the comparatives is the Loulo power plant acquiredt in 2005 under a finance lease agreement of USE6.8 million.
Restated due to change in accounting policy relaling to stripping costs. Refer ncte 6.

The notes on pages 65 to 86 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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Notes to the cones ' oeted dnancis statements
for the vear ended 31 December 2008

1 NATURE OF OPERATIONE

The company and ils subsidiaries (ihe "group”) together wilh its joint ventures carry out gold mining activities and exploration.
Cumently there are two operating mines in Mali, West Africa: the Marila gold mine, which commenced production in October
2000, and the Loulo mine, which commenced production in November 2005, The group also has a porticlio of exploration
projects in West and East Africa. The interests of the group in its operating mines are held through Morila SA (*Morila™y which
owns the Morila mine and Sormilo SA ("*Somilo”) which cwns the toulo mine.  Randgold Resources holds an effective
A0% interest in Moria, following the sale to AngloGold Ashanti Limited on 3 July 2000 of one half of Randgold Resources'
wholy owned subsidiary, Morlla Limited, tManagement of Morila Limiled, the 80% shareholder of Morila, is eflectsd through a
icinl venture committes, with Randgold Resources and AngloGold Ashanli each appointing one half of the members of the
commities.  AngloGold Services Mali SA [“Anser’). a subsidiary of AngloGald Ashanti, is the operator of Monla. Randgeld
Resources hoids an efiective B0% interast in Louto, The remaining 20% interest is held by the Malian govermment.  Randgold
Resources is the operator of Loule. The group has various explaration programimes ranging from advanced to early slage in
Mali West, around Morila and in Senegal, Tanzania, Burkina Faso, Cdte d'voire and Ghana. An updated prefeasibility study
and an extensive driling programme has been completed for the Tongon project in Cote d'hvoire wilh the final feasibility study
planned ic commence in 2007.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIIC 70 T 32
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial slatements are set out below. These poficies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless oiherwise stated. The company changed s accounting
policy on stripping costs in 2006. Reler 1o note 6.
BASIS OF PREPARATION: The consolidated financial statements of Rendgold Resources Limited and ils subsidiaries have
been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (FRS). The consolidated financial statements
and balance sheet for the company have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of avallable-for-sale financial assets and various financial assets and financial liabilties {including derivative instruments) which
are camied at fair value. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. R also requres managerment o exercise ils judgerment in the procass of appling the company's
accounting policies. The areas involving a high degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and astimaies
are significant to the consclidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 3.
The following standards and interpretations which have been recently issued or revised have not been adopted earty by the
group. Their expected impact is discussed below:
- IFRS 8 Operating Segments {etfective for arnual pericds beginning on o after 1 January 2008)
The objective of this IFRS is to require entities 1o disclose infomation to enable users of its financial statements to evaluate
the nature and financial effects of the business activiies in which it engages and the economic ervironments in which it
operates. The company will apply IFRS 8 from 1 January 2008, butitis not expected to have any impact on the accounts
of the company or group.
- iFRS 7 Finangial Instruments Disclosure (effective for annual pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2007}
The objective of this IFRS is to require entities to provide disclosures in their financial statements that enable users 1o
evaluate the significance of financial instruments for the entity's financial position; and the nature and extent of rigks arising
from financial instruments to which the entity is exposed during the period and at the reporting date, and how the entity
manages those rigks. The effect of the adoption of the standard is currently being assessed; however a significant impact
on disclosures is expected.
= IFRIC Interpretation 8 Scope of IFRS 2 (gffective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 May 2006)
The interpretation determines whether IFRS 2 applies to transactions in which the entity cannot identify specifically scme
or all of the goods or services recaived. The company wil apply IFRIC 8 from 1 January 20G7, but it is not expected o
have any impact or the accounts of the comparty or group.
= IFRIC Interpretation 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 June 2006}
The interpretation applies to all embeddad derivatives under IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’
and clarifies certain aspecis of their treatment. The company will apply IFRIC $ from 1 January 2007, but it is not expected
to have any impact on the accounts of the company or group.
- IFRIC Interpretation 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment (effective for annual periods baginning on or after
1 Novamber 2006}
An entily is required 1o assess goodwill for impairment al every reporing date, to assess investments in equity instruments
and in financial assets camied at cost for impairment at every balance sheet date and, if reguired, to recognise an
impairment loss at that date in accordance with IAS 36 and 1AS 39, Howaver, at a subsequent reporting or balance sheet
date, conditions may have so changed that the impaimment loss would have been reduced or avoided had the impaiment
assessment been made only at that date. This Interprélation provides guidance on whether such impaimment losses
should ever be reversed. The company will apply IFRIC 10 rom 1 January 2007, but it is not expected to have any impact
on the accounts of the company or group. :
- IFRIC Interpretation 11 IFRS 2 Shars-based Payment - Group and Treasury Share Transactions {effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007)
This interpretation addresses the classification of a share-based payment transaction (as equity- or cash-settied), in which
equity instruments of the parent or another group entity are ransferred, in the financial statements of the entity receiving
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the services. The company will apply (FRIC 11 from 1 January 2008, but it is not expected to have any impact on the
accounts of the company or group.
= IFRIC Interpretation 12 Service Concession Arrangements (eflective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2008)
This interpretation provides guidance 1o private sector entities on certain recognition and measurament issues that arise in
accounting for public to private service concassion arangements. The company will apply IFRIC 12 from 1 January 2008,
but ftis not expected to have any impact on the accounts of the company or group.
The following standards are not relevant 1o the group and had ne impact on adoption:
= IFRIC interpretation & Liabilities arising from participation in a specific market - waste electrical and electrical
equipment (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 December 2005)
= IFRIC Interpretation 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under IAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2006)
The group has adopled the following standards and interprelations which are effective for the first time this vear without any
significant impact:
= 1AS 19 Amendment - Actuarial gains and losses and disclosures {January 2006)
= IFRIC Interpretation 4 - Deterrining whether an arrangement contains a lease (sffective 1 January 2006)
= IFRIC Interpretation 5 - Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and Environmental
Rehabilitation Funds (sffective 1 January 2006)
CONSOLIDATION: The consolidated financial information includes the financial statements of the compary, its subsidiaries
and the company’s proportionate share in fis joint veritures using uniform accaunting policies for like transactions and other
events in similar circumstances.
SUBSIDIARIES: Subsidiaries are entiies over which the group has the power to govem the financial and operaling policies,
generally accompanying an interest of mare than one half of the voting rights.  Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which contial is transferred to the group.  They are de-consolidated from the date that controf ceases. The purchase
method of accounting is used to account for the acquisiton of subsidiaries by the group. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of
exchange, plus costs directly atibutable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired (including rineral property interasts)
and ligbilties and contingent liabiliies assumed in a business combinaticn are measured initially at thair fair values at the
acquisition date, imespective of the extent of any minority irterest. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of
e group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goadwill. #f the cost of acquisition is less than the fair
value of the ret assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the income stalement.
Inter-company transactions, balances and urrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised Tosses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changad where necessary 16 ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the groun.
JOINT VENTURES: Joint ventures are those entities in which the group holds a long term interest and which are jointty
centrolled by the group and one or more venturers under a contractual arangement.  The group's intersst in such jointly
controfled entities is accourted for by proportionate consolidation. Under this method the group includes its share of the joint
verture's indnidual income and expenses, assets and liabilities and cash flows on a fine by iine basis with similar items in the
group’s financial statements. Inter company accounts and transactions are sliminated on consolidation. The group recognises
the partion of gains or losses on the sale of assets by the group to the joint venture that is attributabie to the other venturers.
The group does not recogniss its share of profits or losses from the joint ventura that result from the purchase of assels by
the group from the joint venture urtil it resells the assets 1o an independent party. However, if a loss on the transaction provides
evidence of a reduction in the net realisable valus of current assets or an impaiment loss, the loss is recognised immediately.
The results of joint ventures are included from the effective dates of acquisition and up 1o the effective dates of disposal.
SPECIAL PURPOSE ENTITIES: Special purpose entities {"SPEs") are those undertakings that are created to satisfy specific
business needs of the group under which the group has the right to the majority of the benefits of the SPE and/or is exposed
to risk incident 1o the activities thereof, SPEs are censolidated in the same manner as subsidiaries when the substance of the
relationship indicales that the SPE is controlied by the group.
SEGMENT REPORTING: A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in parforming mining or other
services that are subject (o risks and retums that are different from thoss of other business segments. A geographic segment
Is engaged in providing products or services within a particular economic environmernt that are subject 1o risks and ratums that
are different from those of segments operating in other economic ervironments. The group has only one business segment,
that of gold mining. Segrment analysis is based on individua! mining cperations. Corporate and exploration income and costs
not direclly related to the mining cperations are not allocated 1o segments.
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION:
(a) Functional and presentation currency
items included in the financial staternents of each of the group's entifies are measured using the curency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates ("the functional cumency”). The consolidated financial staterments are
presented in U3 dollars, which is the company's functional and presentation curency.

b




Notes to the consclidated financial statements

for the year envied 31 December 2008 (coriinued)!

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNT!NG FOLICIES [CONTWUED)
b) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are transiated into the relevant functional curency using the exchange rates pravailing at the
dale of the transaciions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resutting from the settiement of such transactions and frem
the ransiation ai year end exchange rates of monetary assels and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement. Translation differences on equities held at tair value through profit or loss are reported
as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on equities classified as avaiiable-for-sale financial assets are
included in the fair value reserve in equity.
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT:
a) Undeveloped properties
Undeveloped properties upon which the group has not performed sufficient exploration work 10 determine whether
N significant mirgralisation axists are camed at original acquisiion cost.  Where the directors consider that there is little
o fikeiihood of the properties being exploiled, or the value of tha exploitable rights nas diminished below cost, an impairment
is recorded.
b} Development costs and mine ptant facilities
Development costs and mine plant faciiies are initialty recordad at cost. Where relevant the estimated cost of dismanting
the assel and remediating the site is included in the cost of property, plant and equipment. Subsequently they are
measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and impaiment. Development costs and ming plant facilities relating 10
existing and new minas are capitalised. Development costs consist primarily of direct expenditure incured to establish or
expand productive capacity, and are capitalised until saleable minerals are axtracted from the orebody &l which point the
costs are depreciated over the life of the mine.
¢} Non-mining assets
Non-mining assets are shown at cost less accurmulated depreciation and impaimment.
d) Depreciation and amortisation
Long-lived assets include mining properties, such as freehoid land, metallurgical plant, talings and raw water dams, power
plant and mine infrastructure, as well as ming development costs. Depreciation and amortisation are charged over the life
of the mine (or over the remaining usetul fe of the asset, if shorter) based on estimated ore lonnes contained in proved
and probable reserves, lo reduce the caosi to estimated residual values, Proved and probable Ore 18seives reflect
estimated quantities of econormically recoverable reserves, which can be recoverad in the future from known mineral
deposils. Total proved and probable reserves are used in the depreciation caiculation. The remaining useiul lives for Morila
and Loulo are estimated at six and a minimum of eighteen years respeciively. Any changes to the expected life of the
mine (or assel) are applied prospectively in calculating depreciation and amortisation charges. Short-lived assets which
include motor vehicles, office equipment and computer equipment, are depreciated over estimated usefu lives of between
twe 1o five years but limited to the remaining mine fe.
e} Mining property valuations
The camying amount of the property, plant and equipment of the greup is compared 1o the recoverable amount of the
assels whenever events or changes in gircumnstances indicate that the net book value may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amount is the higher of value in use and the fair value less cost o sell. In assessing the value in use, the
expected future cash flows from the assets is delermined by applying a discourt rate to the anticipated pre-tax future cash
flows. The discount rate used is derived from the group's weighted average cost of capital. An impainment is recognised
in the income statement to the exten that the camying amount exceeds the assets' recoverable amourt, The revised
camying amounts are amonised in ling with group accounting policies. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
if the recoverable @mount increases as a result of a reversal of the conditions that originally resutted in the impaiment. This
reversat is recognised in the income statement and is imited 1o the camying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation, had no impaiment loss been recognised in prior years. Assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows {cash generating units) for purposes of assessing impaimment. The estimates
of future discounted cash flows are subject 1o risks and uncertainiies including the future gold price. It is therefore
reasonably possible that changes could occur which may affect the recoverability of mining assets.
STRIPPING COSTS: Al stripping costs incurred during the production phase of a mine are treated as varable production
costs and as a result are included in the cost o inventory produced during the pericd that the stripping costs are incurred.
Refer 1o note B.
INVENTORIES: Include ore siockpiles, gold in process and supplies and spares, and are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The cost of ore stockpiles and gold produced is determined principaily by the weighted average cost methed
using related production Cosis. Costs of gold inventories include all cosls incurred up untd production of an cunce of goid
such as miling costs, mining costs and directly attributable mine genetal and adrministration costs but exclude transport costs,
refining costs and rovalties. Met realisable value is determined with reference to curreni market prices. Stockpiles consist of
two types of ore, high grade and medium grade ore, which will be processed through the processing plant. In the case of
Morila, high grade ore is defined as ore above Ag/ and medium grade is defined as ore above 1.60/t. For Loulo, high grade
are ks defined as ore above 3.7g/t and medium grade is defined as ore above 1 5g/l. Both high and medium grade siockpiles
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are curently being processed and all ore is expected to ba fully processed. The processing of ore in stockpiles occurs in
accordance with the life of mine processing plan thal has been oplimised based on the known mineral reserves, current plant
capacity and ming design. Stores and malerials consist of consumable stores and are valued at weighted average cost after
appropriate impairment of redundart and slow moving itemns.

INTEREST/BORROWING COST: Is recognised on a tima proportion basis, taking into account the principal outstanding and
the effective rate over the pericd to maturity. Bomowing cost is expensad as incumed axcept {0 the extent that it relates to the
construction of property, plant and equiprment during the time thal is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use, when it is capitalised as part of propenty, plant and equipment.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS: These are measured as set oul below. Financial instruments carried on the balance sheet
include cash and cash equivalents, invesiments in subsidiaries and ioint veniture, receivables, accounts payable, borrowings
and derivative financial instruments.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURE: Are slated at cost less any provisions for impairment in the
financial statements of the company. Dividkends are accounted for when the company becomes entitled 1o receive them. On
the disposal of an invastment, the difference between the net disposal procesds and the camying amount is charged or
credited to the income statement,

DERIVATIVES: Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs on the date a derivative contract is
entered into {vade date) and are subsequently remeasured at their far value, unless they meel the criteria for the “nomal
purchases nomal sales” exemption.  On the date a derivative contract is entered into, the group normally designates the
derivative fcr accounting purposes as either a hadge of the fair value of a recognised asset or fiability {fair value hedge) or a
hedge of a forecast transaction (cash flow hedge) - although certain derivative transactions, while providing effective economic
hedges under the group's risk maragement policies, do not quality for hedge accounting.  Changes in the fair value of a
derivative that is highly effective in offsetting changes in the cash fiow of the hedged item, ang that is designated and qualiies
as a cash flow hedge, ara recognised directly in equity. Amounis deferred in equity are included in the income statement in
the same pericds during which the hedged forecast ransaction affects net profit or loss, This applies even if the derivative is
rofled forward on maturity and designated as a hedge of a different forecast transaction so that gains/losses relating to the
original forecast transaction are recognised in the income statement when that transaction affects net profit or loss. Changes
in the: fair value of derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the income statement. The group
formally docurnents alf relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as ils nisk management objective
and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. This process includes linking dervatives designated as hedges to
specific assets and liabilities or to specific forecast transactions. The group formally assesses, both at the hedge inception
and on an ongeing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes
in the: fair value or cash flows of the hedged item. When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge 1o longer
mests the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is
recognised when the forecast ransaction is ultimately recegnised in the income statement. When a forecast transaction is no
longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediataly transferred to the income
statement.  The group does not have any fair value hedges. Derivatives are derecognised when the right to receive or the
obligation to pay cash has expired or has been transferred and the group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership.

RECEIVABLES: Are recognised initially at faiv value. There is a rebutiable presumption that the transaction price is fair value
unless this could be refuted by reference to market indicators, Subsequently, receivables are measured at amortised cost,
less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when there is obijective evidence
that the group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original tesms of receivables. The amount of the
provision is the difference between the asset's camying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognised in the income statement.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: Cash and cash equivalents are camied in the balance sheet at cosl. For the purpose
ot the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held at ¢zl with banks, other short
tern highly liquid investments with & maturity of threa months or less at the date of purchase and bank ovardrafts, In the
balance sheet, bank overdrafts are included in borowings in current liabilities.

REHABILITATION COSTS: The net present value of estimated future rehabilitation costs is provided for in the financial
statements and capitalised within mining assets on initial recognition.  Rehabilitatior: will generally occur on closure or after
closure of a mine. Initial recognition is at the time of the disturbance occumng and thereafter as and when additional

disturbances iake place. The estimates are reviewed annually to take into account the effects of inflation and changes in |

estimates and are discounted using rates that reflect the time value of money. Annual increases in the provision due to the
unwinding of the discount are recognised in the income statement as a finance cost. The present value of additional
disturbances and changes in the estimate of the rehabilitation fiability “are capitalised to mining assets against an increase in
the rehabilitalion provision.  The rehabilitation asset is amortised as noted previously.  Rehabilitation projects undertaken,
inCluded in the estimates, are charged to the provision as incurred.

Erwironmental fiabilities, other than rehabilitation costs, which relate to liabifities arising from specific events, are expensed when
they are known, probable and may be reasonably estimated,

ar




Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for irs vear endad 31 Decerrner 2006 fcontinuedi

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

PROVISIONS: Are recognised when the group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events wherg

it is probable thal an outliow of resources emboodying economic benefits will be required to setile the obligation, and a reliable

estimate of the amount of the cbligation can be mads.

BORROWINGS: Zre recognised initially at fair valug, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequenily stated

at amorlised cost; any difference betwesn the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the rederpiion value is recognised in

the income staternant over the period of the bormowings using the effective imierest method. Borrowings are classified as

current lizhilties unless the group has an uncenditional fight 10 defer settiement of the lability for al least 12 months alter the

halance sheet date.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE: Are stated at cost adjusted for payments made to reflect the value of the anticipated economic

outilow of resources.

DEFERRED TAXATION: Defered tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on termporary differences arising between

the tax bases of asseis and liabiities and thelr carylng amounts in the consolidated financial statements.  However, if the

lemporary difference arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction olher than a business combination that

at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for. Deferrad tax is

determined using 1ax rates (and iaws) that have been enacted o substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are

expected to apply when the related deferred! tax asset is reafised or the deferred tax liability is settled. Delemed iax assets are

recognised 10 the exient that it is probable that future taxable profit wilt be available against which the termporary differences

can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures, except where the

timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is conirolled by the group and it is probable that the temporary difference wil

not reverse in the foresesable future.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:

a} Pension obligations
The group has defined contribution plans. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the group pays fixed
contributions Into a separate entity. The group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employes service in the cument and prior
periods. For defined contribution plans, the group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered provident funds
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The group has no further payment obligations cnce the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are recognised as an employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that & cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is avalable.

by Termination benefits
Termination benelits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The group recognises temmination benefits when
it is demonstrably cormmitted to either: tarminating the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal
plan withcout possikility of withdrawal; or providing terrination benefits as a result of an offer made 10 encourage volntary
redundancy. Benefits faling due more than 12 months after balance sheet date are discounted to present value.

c) Profit sharing and bonus plans
The group recognises a liabilty and an expense for boruses. The group recognises a provision where contractualty
obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

d) Share-based payments
The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant of oplions or shares after 7 November 2002 is
recognised as an expense, The total amount to be expensed rateably over the vesting period is detemmined by relerence
1o the fair value of the options or shares determined &l the grant date, excluding the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions. Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about ihe number of options that are expected 1o
become exarcisable or the number of shares that the employae wil dltimately receive. This estimate is revised at each
balance sheet date and the difference is charged or credited to the income stalement, with a comesponding adjustment
to equity. The proceeds received on exercise of the options net of any directly attributable ransaction costs are credited
1o equity.

FINANCE LEASES: Determining whather an arangement is, or contains, a ‘'ease is based on the substance of the

arrangement and requires an assessment of whether fuliitmenit of the arangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset

or assels and whether the arangement conveys a right to use the asset. Leases of plant and equipment where the group

assumes a significant portion of risks and rewards of ownership are classified as a finance tease. FHnance leases are

capilalised at the estmated present valug of the underlying lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated between the

liabifty and the finance charges to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance oulstanding. The interest portion of the

finance payment is charged to the income statement over the leass period. The plant and equipment acquired under the

finance lease are depreciated over the useful lives of the assets, or over the lease term if shorter.

OPERATING LEASES: Detennining whather an arrangement is an opsrating lease is based on the substance of the

arrangement and requires an assessment of whather fulfiiment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific assat




080

or assets and whether the arrangement conveys a right to use the assal, Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating l2ases
arg charged 1o the income slatement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
REVENUE RECOGNITION: The company entars into contracts for the sale of gold. Revenue arising from gold sales urder
these contracts is recognised when the price is determinable, the product has been delivered in accordance with tha terms
of the contract, the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred io the customer and collection of the sales
price is reasonably assured. These criteria are met when the gold leaves the mine's smelt house. As sales from gold contracls
are subject to cusiomer survey adjusiment, sales are initially recorded on a provisional basis using the group's best estimate
of the contained metal.  Subsaquent adjustiments ara recorded in revenue 1o take into account final assay and weaighl
certificates from the refinery, if difierent from the initial certificates, The differences betwaen the estimated and actual contained
gold have not been significant historically.

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION COSTS: The group expenses all exploration and evaluation expenditures until tha

dlirectors conclude that a future economic benefit is mare likely than net of being reafised, je. ‘probabia”. While the criteria for

concluding that an expendilure should be capitatised is always probable, the information that tha directors use to make that
determination depends on the level of exploration.

a) Exploration and evaluation expenditure on greenfield sites, being those where the group doss nol have any mineral
deposits which are already being mined or developed!, is expensed as incured until a final feasibility study has been
completed, after which the expenditure is capitalised within development costs if the final feasibiity study demonstrates
that future economic benefits are probable.

b) Expploration and evaluation expenditure on brownfield sites, being those adjacent to mineral deposits which are already
being mined or developed, is expensed as incurred until the directors are able 1o demonsirate that fulure economic
benefits are probable through the completion of a prefeasiiity sludy, after which the expenditure is capitaiised as a ming
davelopment cost. A "prefeasibility study” consists of a comprehansive study of the viability of a mineral project that has
advanced to a stage where the mining method, in the case of underground mining, or the pit configuration, in the case of
an open pit, has been established, and which, if an effective method of mineral processing has been determined, includes
a financial analysis based on reasonable assumptions of technical, engingering, operating economic factors and the
evaluation of other relevant factors. The prefeasibility study, when combined with existing knowledge of the minera
property that is adjacent to mineral deposits hat are already being mined or developed, allow the direclors to corclude
that it is more fikely than not that the group will abtain future economic benefit from tha expenditures.

) Expioration and evaluation expenditure relating to extensions of mineral deposits which are already being mined or
developed, including expenditure on the definition of mireralisation of such mineral deposits, is capitalised as a mine
development cost following the completion of an economic evaluation equivalent to a prefeasibility study. This economic
evaluation is distinguished from a prefeasioiity study in that some of the information that would nomally be determined in
a prefeasibility study is instead oblained from the existing mine or development.  This information, when combined with
existing knowledge of the mineral property already being mined or developed, allows the directors 10 conclude that it is
more likely than not the group will obtain future economic benefit from the expendiures.  Cosls relating to property
acquisitions are also capitalised. These cosis are capitalised within development costs.

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION: Dividend distribution to the company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the financial

statemenis in the pericd in which the dividend is declared by the board of directors.

EARNINGS PER SHARE: Is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue -

during the year.

FULLY DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE: Is presented when the inclusion of potential ordinary shares has a dilutive effect

on eamings per share.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Some of the accounting policies require the appfication of significant judgement by management in selecting the appropriate
assumnpiions for calculating financial estimates. By their nature, these judgements are subject to an inherent degree of
unceriainty and are based on historical experience, tenms of existing contracts, maragement’s view on trends in the gold
mining industry and information from outside sources.

Tre estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a materal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed balow:

Future rehabilitation obligations

The net present value of curent rehabiliation estimates have baen discourted 1o their present value at 6% per annum
{2005: 6%) for Morila, being an estimate of the cost of bomowings. A 8.5% {2005: 5.5%) discount rate was used for Loulo.
Expenditurs is expected to be incumed at the end of the respective mineg lives.

Determination of ore reserves

There are numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating ora reserves and assumpticns that are valid at the time of estimation
may change significantty when new information becomes available. Changes in the forecast prices of commoditias, exchange
rates, production costs or recovery rales may change the eccnomic status of reserves and may, ultimately, result in the
reserves being restated.




Notes 1o the consolidated financial statements

for the vear ended 31 Decermper 2006 {continued)

! 3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED]
Gold price assumptions
The fallowing gold prices were used in the mineral reserves optimisation calculations:

Morila USE475 USE425
Loulo: Openpit Usta7s USE390
Loulo: Underground US$H475 UsE420

Uncertainties relating to transactions with a contractor

As explained in note 24 1o the financial statements, there are uncertainties relating to the recoverahility of advances to a
contractor and also a ¢laim relating to the Loulo development.  The financial statements reflect tne directors’ best estimate of
the amount that will be recovered in respact of the advances. No amounts have been recognised i respect of the rest of the
¢clairm against the contractor.

Exploration and evaluation expenditure

The group has to apply judgement in determining whether exploration and evaluation expenditure shouid be capitalised of
expensed, under the policy described in nate 2.

Indirect taxes receivable

Given thair slow maving nature, the group has had to apply judgement in determining when amourts will be recovered with
respect to indirect taxes owing to Morila and Loulo by the Mali Govermment. The amounts reflecled in the financial statements
are basad on the directors' best estimate of the timing of the recovery of these amaunts,

Depreciation

There are several methads for calculating depreciation, i.e. the straight-line method, the units of production method using
ouncas produced and the units of production methed using tonnes milled. The directors believe that the tonnes milled method
is the best indication of plant and infrastructure usage.

Derivative valuation

The company uses valuations obtained from banks for the mark-to-markel valuation of the hedge bock. The banks used the
following key inputs in the valuations:

- UBOR rates 532 -533% 4.39-4.84%
-~ Spot gold prices USHA35.70 USES13.00
-  (Gold lease rates 009-0.17% 0.10-0.14%

Share-based payments
Refer to note 17 for the key assumptions used in determining the value of share-based payments.

4 INCOME AND MINING TAXES

Currenit taxation 22 671 3127
Deferred taxation 11 426 (2857
23 097 170~

Tre tax on the group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical
amount that would arise using the statutory tax rate applicable t¢
the group's Malian operations.

Profit before tax 73973 48 026~
Tax calculated al tax rate of 35% 25 891 16 803
Recenciing items

- Income taxed at 0% 3290 {370)
= Expenses geductible at 0% 8 426 7495
-~ Mali tax holiday permanent differences (9 125) (22 553)
= Cther permanent difierences 1195 21
Taxation charge 23 097 170

Restated due to change in accouriting poficy relating to stnpping costs.  Refer note 6.
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INCOME AND MINING TAXES {CONTINUED)

The company is not subject 1o income taxin Jersey. Morila SA benefiled from a Tive year tax holiday until 14 Novernber 2005,
Somilo SA also benefits from a five year tax holidlay in Mali. The tax holiday commenced on 8 November 2005. Tha benefit
of the tax holiday o the group was 1o increase its net profit by US$2.1 milion (2005: US$22.6 million). Accordingly, had the
group not benefited from the tax holiday in Mali, eamings per share would have been reduced by US$0.14 and US$0.37 for
the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2005 respectively. Under Malian tax law, income tax is based on the greater o 35
per cent of taxable income or 0.75 per cent of gress revenue, The Moarila and Loulo operations have no assessable capital
expenditure carry forwards or assessable tax Iosses, as at 31 December 2006 and 2005 respeclivaely, for deduction against
future mining incoma.

EARNINGS AND DIVIDENDS PER SHARE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Shares outstanding 1 January 2006 68 072 854
Weighted number of shares issued 318 928
Income available to shareholders 47 564 68 391 792 Q.70

EFFECT OF DILUTIVE SECURITIES

Weighted slock options issued to employees - 939 243 -
Futty dilted earnings per share 47 584 69 331 0356 0.69
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 DECEMBER 2005

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Shares oulstanding 1 January 2005 59 2726 694

Weighted number of shares issuad 2475088

Income available to shareholders 45507~ 61 701 782 0.74~
EFFECT OF DILUTIVE SECURITIES

Weighted stock aptions issued 1o employees 2127 214

Fully diluted eamings per share 45507~ 63828 986 0.71~

Although no dividend was recognised as a distibution to equily shareholders, US$5.9 milion (US$0.10 per shars) was
declared on 5 February 2607 for distribution on 8 March 2007 (2005 nil). See note 27.

Restated clue to change in accounting poficy relating to strioping costs. Reler note 6.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

The company changed its accounting policy on stripping costs, under both IFRS and US GAAR, in the curent year. Previousl,
costs of production stage waste slipping in excess of the expected pit life average stripping ratio were deferred and then
charged to production when the actual stripping ratio was below the expected pit fife average stipping ratio. Under the revised
accounting policy, all stripping costs incurred during the production phase of a mine are treated as variable production costs
and as a result are included in the cost of the inventory produced during the period that the stripping costs are incurred.
Under US GAAR, EITF 04-06 'Accournting for Stripping Costs Incurred during Production in the Mining Industry’ is effective for
reporting periods beginning after 15 December 2005, The consensus does not permit the deferral of any waste stipping costs
during the production phase of a mine, but requires instead that they should be treated as variable production costs. The
directors have decided to adopt the same treatment uncer IFRS which wil ensure that the accounting policies applied under
IFRS and US GAAP remain in line.

With regard to the conclusions reached by the EITF, the directors believe the revised policy wil mean that the financial
statements provide reliable and more relevant information about the group's financial position and its financial performance. In
accordance with the requirements of IAS 8 *Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors”, the change in
the IFRS policy has been applied retrospectively and hence the 2005 comparatives have been restated.
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for the vea” enced 31 Deceriber 2006 {continued)

Group, (Group]
fec ;N
2006 200
6 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY {CONTINUED)
The change in the IFRS accounting policy has resutted in the
following adjustments 1o the amounts reported urdler IFRS:
Decrease in deferred siipping asset 2115 3687
Decrease in ore stockpiles 6 324 8 342
Decrease in gold in process 36 51
Decrease in deferred taxation liability 740 1227
Increase in daferred taxation asset 2 966 2938
Decrease in opening retained eamings 7915 14 884
Increase in net profit 3148 5 969
Increase in basic earnings per share {cents per share) 5 12
Increase in fully diuted eamings per share (cents per sharg) o) 1i
[Group) {GIouD) (Gompanyj (Company]
3] 3fhec & e
Notes) 2008 12005] P008] 12005
7 RECEIVABLES
Trade 12 545 11770 - -
Advances to contractors 7.1 12 064 12 169 - -
Taxation debtor 7.2 20 322 20 623 - -
Prepayments 5018 4 837 589 663
Other 1935 352 435 164
51884 49 551 1024 827
Impairment provision (3 183) {1 633 - -
Total 48 701 47 918 1024 827
Less: current portion (34 999) (47 918) {1 .024) (827)
Long term portion 13702 - - -

7.4 Advances to contraclors comprise advances made to a conlractor at Loulp, MDM Ferroman (Pty) Lid (n liquidation)
{(“MDM"). MDM was the contractor responsible for construction of the Loulo mine until the main consiruction contract was
taken back on 30 December 2005. Signiiicant uncertainties exist relating to the recoverabitty of these advances. More
detail is given in note 24 to the financial statemnents.

72 The taxation debtor relates to indirect taxes owing to the group by the State of Mali.

. , Group] (Group)
‘ & Oze 3ijDecy
2006
8 INVENTORIES AND ORE STOCKPILES
Consumable stores 18 739 12 681
Short term portion of ore stockpiles 12 041 19 344~
Gold in process 3420 21857
34 200 34 210~
Long term portion of ore stockpiles B 41614 221767
: 75814 56 386~

~  Restated due to change in accounting policy refating t¢ stripping costs. Refer note 6.

Ore stockpiles have been spiit between long and short term based on current life of mine plan estimates.
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PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Ming propertizs, mine development costs and
ming plant faciliies and equipment.

Cost
At the beginning of the vear 236 331 151 639
Disposals - -
Additions 51 508 84 692
297 B39 236 337
Accumulated depreciation and amontisation
At the beginning of the year 33 695 21785
Disposals - -
Charge for the year 22 844 11 910
o - 56539 33 895
NET BOOK VALUE 241 300 202 636

Long-lived assets

Included in property, plant and equipment are long-lived assets which are amortised over the lite of the ming and comprise the
metallurgical plant, taiings and raw water dams, power plant and mine infrastucture. The net book value of 1hese assels was
USE226.4 million as at 31 Decernber 2006 (2005: USE188.7 million},

Shart-lived assets

Included in propenty, plant and equipment are short-lived assets which are amertised over their useful lives and are comprised
of mator vehicles and other equipment. The net book value of these assets was USES.? milion as at 31 Decernber 2008
(2005 US$4.2 millicn),

Undeveloped property

Included in property. plant and equipment are undeveloped property costs of USHQ.7 milion (2005; US$3.7 million).

Reder to note 14 for assets collateralised and under finance lease. No borrowing costs were capitalised as part of additions
during the year (2005: US$3.2 million).

INVESTMENTS AND LOANS IN
SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURE

Investment in Somilo . - - 5745 5745
Investment in Morila_(joint venture) - - 271 271
Investment in Randgeld Resources iviall SARL - - 2 -

- - 8018 60186
Loan - Morila {joint venture) - - 13¢ 30
Loan - Somilo - - 145 424 192 738
Loan - Seven Bridges - - (157) 144
Loan - Randgold Resources Mall SARL - - 5 347 -

- - 150 753 112912

- - 156 771 118 928

The group's interest in the Morila joint venture
was as follows:

Non-current assals 81 549 63178~
Current assels 35 921 48 156~
Total assets 117 470 111334~
Non-current liabilities 9278 9822~
Current liabilities 2805 12 821

Total liabilities 19 084 22 643~

Restated due to change in accounting policy relating to Stipping costs.  Refer note 6.

Refer to subsidiary and joint venture companies on page 87.
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for the year ended 31 Decemiber 2006 (coninued)

11 DEFERRED TAXATION
Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences under the liability method using a tax rate of 35% (2005: 35%).

The movement on deferred taxation is as follows:

At the beainning of the vear (2 957) -
Incorne statement charge/icredit) . _ 4 . 426 {2 857)
Al the end of the year (2 531) (2 957)~
Deferred taxation assets and liabilities comprise

the following:

Deceleraled tax depreciation 462 -
Deferred taxation liability 462 -
Ore stockpiles and gold-in-process (2 966) (2 938)”
Accelerated tax depreciation (27) {19)
Deferred taxation asset {2 993) (2 957)~
Net deferred taxation asset _ 2 531) {2 957)”

Restated due to change in accounting policy relating to stripping costs. Refer note 6.

USE2.7 milion is expected to be recovered after more than 12 months {2005: US$0.8 million). Temporary differences which
are axpected to be realised during the Loulo tax hoiday are recegnised al 0%.

12 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Trade payables 15 410 16776 34 383
Payroll and other compensation 3301 2887 2514 2578
Accruals 20 598 6 169 376 -
Other 162 2 981 128 663
39 461 28 813 3052 3624
CE 13 PROVISION FOR ENVIRONMENTAL REHABILITATION

Cpening balance 3 4BC 37N - -

Unwinding of discount 541 254 -

Additional disturbances - 5525 -
Changes in estimates (1 179) - - -
B 842 9480 - -

As gt 31 December 2006, USS4.8 million of the provision relates to Loulo (31 Dacember 2005: US$5.5 miliion) wiich is based
on estimalas provided by envircnmental consultants in connection with the Loulo feasibility study. The remaining USH4 million
refates to Morla (31 December 2005 US$3.9 milion). The net present value of estimated future rehabiltation costs is
calculated using 6% (2005: 6%) per annum for Morila, being an astimate derived from the risk free rate. A 6.5% (20085: 5.5%)
discount rate was used for Loulo. Limited environmental rehabilitation regulations currently exist in Mali to govem mines, so
the directors have based the provisions for environmental rehabilitation on standards set by the World Bank, which require &n
emvironmental management plan, an annual environmental repon, a closure plan, an up 1o date register of plans of the facility,
preservation of public safety on closure, camying out rehabilitation works and ensuring sufficient funds exist for the closure
works. However, it is reasonably possible that the group’s estimate of its ulimate rehabilitation liabiities could change as a
result of changes in reguiations or cost estimates. The group is committed to rehabilitation of ils properties. It makes use of
independent environmental consultants for advice and it atso uses past experience in similar situations to ensure that the
provisions for rehabiitation are adequate. Current Life of Mine plans envisage the expected outfiow to occur at the end of the
Life of Mine, which is 2013 for Morita andd 2024 for Loulo.
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4 BORROWINGS

Morila power plant finance lease 14.1 3828 4797 -
Morila oxygen plant finance lease 14.2 718 884 -
Loulo proiect finance loan 14.3 40 800 60 010
Loulo CAT finance lease 14.4 5138 5843

50 484 72 529 o
Less: curent portion (24 818) (22 991)

25 666 49 538

All loans are secured and have variable interest rates, except for the Loulo CAT finance lease which has a fixed rate.

14.1  Morila power plant finance lease
The Morlla power plant finance lease reiates to five generators leased from Rolls-Royce for Morila.  The iease is
repayadle over ten years commencing 1 April 2001 and bears interest at a varigble rate of interest which as at
31 December 2008 was aporoximately 21% (2005 20%) per annum. The lease is collateralised by plant and
eqguipment. the net book value of which at 31 Decamber 2006 amounted to USH4.1 milion (2005 USS4.8 million).
Average annual lease payments of US$1.5 milion are payable in instalments over the term of the lease. The company
has guaranteed the repayment of this lease.

14.2  Morila oxygen plant finance lease
The Morila oxygen plant finance lease relates 1o three oxygen generating units leased from Air Liquide for Morilla, The
lease is payable over 10 years commencing 1 December 2000 and bears interest at a varable rale which as at
31 December 2006 was approximately 3.48% (2005 3.09%) per annum. The lease is collateralised by the production
units, the net book value of which at 31 December 2006 amounted 1o USE0.6 million (2005: US$0.8 miliion).

14.3  Louto project finance loan
The Loulo project finance loan was aranged by N M Rolhschitd & Sons Limited and SG Corporale & Investment
Banking, who have been joined in the facility by Absa Bank and HVB Group, and is repayable belore Septernber 2009
in bi-annual instalments of approximately US$10.6 milion uniil 30 June 2008 and thereafter hi-anrual instaiments of
approximately USE3 million. The loan is collateralised over the assets of the Loulo project with 2 camying amount of
US$209.9 milion {2005: USH161.1 million).  Additionally, the company hag pledged its interesi in Randgold
Resources (Sornio) Limited and related assets, and Randgold Resources {Somilo} Limited has pledged its interest in
Somilo and related assets to secure Somilo's obligations under this lcan. The loan is guaranteed by Randgokd
Resources until economic complefion of the project has been achieved, which is expected before 31 December
2007, The loan bears interest at UBOR plus 1.75% pre-completion of the Loule capital programme, or at any time
when Randgold Resources continues o be a guarantor of tha facility. Post completion until the fourth anaiversary of
signing facility documentation, the interest rate s UBOR plus 2.10% and thereafter | IBOR plus 2.25%. The weighled
average interest rate for the year amounted to 6.83% (2005 5.14%). Undsr the terms of this loan, the company is
required to enter into certain gold price forward sales (refer note 20). 298 075 ounces of gold have been sold forward
over the financial years 2007 to 2009, at an average forward price of US$436 per ounce. The facilities are margin
free.
Various debl covenants apply to the loan, including:
= Umitations on materia! asset disposals and acquisitions.

Restrictions with regards 1o the repayment of intercompany dabt or dividend payments by Somio.

Maintain insurance with reputable insurance companies.

Establish a Notional Debt Service Reserve Account with the minimum aredit balance on all dates equal to the

aggregate principal amount of and interest accruing on the loan and the aggregate amount of premium accruing

in connection with the Palitical Risk Insurance during the six morth period commencing on such date.
= Certain financial ratios need to be adhered to throughout the loan agreement.
The group is in compliance with all these requirements.

14.4  Loulo CAT finance lease
The Euro denominated Caterpillar finance iacility relates to fiftden 35128 HD generalor sets and ancillary equipment
purchased from JA Delmas and financed by a lcan from Caterpillar Finance for Loulo, The lease is payable quarierly
over 42 months commencing on 1 August 2003, and bears interest al a fixed rate of 6.03% (2005: 8.03%) per annum.
The company together with Randgold Resources (Somilo) Limited jointty guaranteed the repayment of this lease. The
average lsase payments of US$0.5 million are payable in quarterly instalments over the term of the lease.

o
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BCRROWINGS (CONTINUED)
145  Maturities
The barrowings mature over the

following periods:

Mot later than one year 24 818 22 991

Later than one year and ngt later

than five vears 25 666 49 304 -

Latar than five years - 234 - -
50 484 72 529 - -

146 Finance lease liabilities - minimum

lease payments

Balance of leases outstanding 12 405 16 320 -

Future finance charges on leases 2721 {3 801} - -

Present valug of finance fease liabilities 9684 12 519

At the date of originaticn, there was no material fair value attributable to the guarantees issued by the company cn behalf of
group entities to third parties, Had the value been recognised, the depreciated camying amount would have been insignificant.

LOANS FROM MINORITY SHARE-
HOLDERS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Somilo

Govermnmment of Mali - principal amount 614 551 -
Defered interest 2 158 1932 -
Loans 2773 2 483 -
Minority interest in accumulated profits. 4707 1395

Tne government of Mali kean to Somilo is uncollateralised and bears interest at the base rate of the Central Bank of Wast Alfrican
States plus 2%. The accruai of interest ceased in the last quarter of 2003 per mutual agreement between shareholders. The
loan is repayable from cash flows of the Loulo mine after repayment of all other loans. In the event of a liquidation of Sormilo
the shareholcer loans and deferred interest are not guaranteed.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - FORWARD GOLD SALES

Forward gold sales 67 494 43 090 - -
LLess: current portion {27 525) (8 939 - -
Non-current portion 39 969 34 151 - -

The financial liabilies relate to the Loulo forwargt gold sales all of which qualify for hedge accounting. These denvative
instrumenits are further detailed in note 20.

EMPLOYMENT COST

The group contibutes to several defined contribution provident funds. The provident tunds are funded on tha “money
accumulative basis” with the contributions of members and cormpany having been fixed in the constitutions of the funds. All
the group's employeas, other than those directy employed by West Adrican subsidiary companies, are entitied to be covered
by the abovementioned retirement benefit plans.  Retirernent benefits for employees employed by West African subsidiary
companies are provided by the slate social security system to which the company and employses contribute a fixed
percentage of payroll costs each month.
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17 EMPLOYMENT COST (CONTINUED)
Total emplovee benelit cost was as follows:

Short term beneiits 3235
Fension contributions 237
Share based payments 2 369
Total 5 841

Share-based payments

The fair value of employee services raceived as consideration for equity instruments (equity settled) of the company is
calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing modal. The key assumptions used i this model for options granted during
Ihe year were as follows:

Expected life 3 years 3 years
Volatility 17.1 48.06% 52.12%
Risk free interest rate 4.64% 3.72%
Dividend vield 0% 0%
Weighted average share price on grant and valuation date 17.2 UsS$22.50 US$12.78
Weighted average exercise price 17.3 USs22.50 USE12,78

17.1  Volatility is based on the thres year historical volatility of the compary’s shares on each grant date.

17.2 Weighted average share price for the valuation is calculated taking into account the market price on all grant dates.

17.3  The weighted average exercise price is calculated taking into account the exercise price on each grant date. Please
refer 1o page 59 for detalls provided on share options, including the number and weightad average exercise price of
share options cutstanding at the beginning and end of each peariod, options granted, exercised and lapsed during the
period,

The table below summarises the information about the options outstancling:

Range of exercise price (US$)
AT 31 DECEMBER 2006

1.25-2.13 B9 456 4.08 1.81

250 - 3.50 43 302 4.34 3.24

5.00 - 8.25 116 556 0.61 8.25

8.05-8.05 974 633 7.5% 8.05

12.78 - 16.15 219600 B.56 13.88

22.50- 2250 192000 9.97 22.50
1634947 7.22 10.09

AT 31 DECEMBER 2005

1.25-2.13 128 756 511 1.81

2.50 - 3.50 283 402 6.25 3.25

500-8.25 182 556 144 7.82

8.05-8.05 1325000 5.59 8.05 \

1278 - 16.15 240 000 0.59 14.17 :

22,60 - 2250 - -

2163714 7.59 771
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18 SEGMENT INFORMATION
The group's mining and exploration activities
are conducted in West and East Africa.
An analysis of the group’s business segments,
excluding intergroup transactions, is set out below.
The group undentakes exploration aclivities in
East and West Africa which are included in the
corporate and exploration segrnent.

A) YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006
PROFIT AND LOSS

Gold sgles on spot 125 951 148 956 274 907

Loss on matured hedges (12 190} (12 180)
Non-cash loss on roll forward of hedges - {4 413) {4 413)
Total revenue 125 951 132 353 258 304

Mining and processing costs excluding T :
depreciation (44 264) (70 586) - (114 850)
Depreciation and amortisation (6_233) geetn . - _.__ _(22844)
Mining and processing costs (60 497) {87 197} . {137 694)
Transport and refining costs (244) (467) (711
Royalties {8 802) B8 177) (15 979)
Exploration and corporate expendiure (2 643} (2 BEB) {23 276) (28 805)
QOther tosses - nel - (653) - {653)
Other income/{expenses), exchange gains/

(losses) - net 169 (3 085) 2 409 {507)
Unwind of discount on provisions for

environmental rehabilitation {237} (304) (541}
interest expense (1 258) (4 567) - 5825
Interest income 137 256 6 991 7 384

Profit bafore income tax B2 576 25273 (13 876) 73973

Income tax expense {23 025) 27 (99) (23 097)
Net profit 39 551 25 300 (13 975) 50 878

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE (1 160) {60 245) (103) (61 508)
TOTAL ASSETS 117 470 258 557 136137 512 164

TOTAL EXTERNAL LIABILITIES 19 084 146 228 3309 168 621

DIVIDENDS (PAIDYRECEIVED {30 400} - 30400 -

NET CASH FLOWS GENERATED BY/

(UTILISED IN) OPERATIONS 32 900 48 482 (10 972) 70410

NET CASH FLOWS UTILISED IN

INVESTING ACTIVITIES {1 180) (60 140) {103) (61 403)
NET CASH {UTILISED INYGENERATED FROM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES (1 130) (20 626) 3653 (18 103)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 30610 {32 284) (7422 (9 096)
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18 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

B) YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005
PROFIT AND LOSS
Total revenue 120 814 30 688 - 151 502
Mining and processing costs excluding
depreciation ' {45 048~ (& 258) - (55 306)
Depreciation and amortisation (7 208) (4 704) - (11.810)
Mining and processing costs (B3 254)~ {13 962) - 67 218)~
Transport and refining costs {288) {72 - {360)
Rovalties {8 398) {1 875) - {10 273)
Exploration and ¢orporale expendiiture {442) (2 193) {21.414) {24 049)
Other gains - net - 45 - a5
Other income/(expenses) exchange
gains/(losses) - net (740) - (832) (1572}
Urwind of discount on provisions for
environmental rehabilitation (254) - - (254}
Interest expense {1180 {681) - (1851}
Interest income o e - 1880 2064
Profit before income tax 56 4327 11950 {20 356) 48 026~
Income tax expense o - - 70~
Net profit . B 56 262~ _ 1185 _(20386) 47 856~
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE I O =) I (-2 ¢ N - (84 632)
TOTAL ASSETS 111 959~ 206 412 143 978 462 349~
TOTAL EXTERNAL LIABILITIES B 22 456~ 130 280 3913 156 6548~
DIVIDENDS (PAIDYRECEIVED (35 880) - 35 880 -
NET CASH FLOWS GENERATED
BYAUTILISED IN) OPERATIONS 33712 9510 (13 486) 28736
NET CASH FLOWS UTILISED IN
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1 742} B2 751) - (84 493
NET CASH (UTILISED IN)/GENERATED
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES {1156) 24877 105 248 128 969
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH ]
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 30 814 (48 364) 91 762 74 212

Restated due to change in accounting policy relating 1o stipping costs. Refer note 6.

19 FAIR VALUE AND RISKS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
. The group's financial Instruments are set out in note 20, In the normal course of ils operaticns, the group is exposed to
: commodity price, currency, interest, liquidity and credit risk. In managing some of these risks, the group enters into derivative
financial instruments. All derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at their
fair value on the balance shest.
18.1  Concentration of credit risk
The group's derivative financial instuments and cash balances do not give rise to a concentration of credit risk
because it deals with a variety of mgjor financial ingtitutions.  its receivables and loans are reguiarty monitored and
assessed. Receivables are impaired when it is probable that amounts outstanding are not recoverable. Gold bullion,
the group's principal product, is produced in Mak. The gold produced is sold to a reputable goid refinery. The group
is not exposed o significant cradit risk, as cash is received within a few days of the sale taking place. included in
receivables is US$18.4 milion net of a provision to reflect the time value of money {2005: US$20.0 million) relating to
indirect taxes owing t0 Moria and Loulo by the State of Mali, which are denominated in FCFA. Receivables also
include advances to a contractor totaling US$11.8 million net of a provision to reflect the time value of money
{2005: USH12.2 million) (see note 24),
19.2  Foreign currency and commodity price risk
In the normal course of business, the group enters into transactions denominated in foreign curencies {primarily Euro
and Communauté Financigre Alricaine Franc). As a result, the group is subject to exposure from fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange rales. In general, the group does not enter into derivatives to manage these cumency risks.
Generally, the group does not hedge its exposure to gokd price duciuation dsk and sells at market spot prices. Gold
sales are disclosed in US dollars and do not expose the group to any currency fluctuation risk.  However, during
pariods of capital expenditure or loan finance, the company may use forward contracts or options to reduce the
exposure 1 price movements, while maintaining signiticant exposure 1o spot prices.
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19 FAIR VALUE AND RISKS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

19.3  Interest rate and liquidity risk

’ Flucluations in interest rates impact on the valus of short term cash investments and interest payable on financing
activities fincluding long term loans), giving rise 1o interest rate risk. In the ordinary course of business, the group
receives cash from its operations and is required to fund working capital and capital expenditure requirements. The
group generally enters into vanable interest bearing bomowings.  This cash is managed 1o ensure surplus funds are
invested in a manner to achieve maximum retuns while minimising risks.  The group has in the past been able
to actively source financing through public offerings, sharehclder loans and Ihird party loans. A 1% change in
interest rates on the group's net cash {cash and cash equivalents less borrowings) would result in a UST0 .G million
{2005: USS0.6 milion} impast on profit before tax. The group holds financial investments with an average malurity of
30 days to ensura adequaie liquidity.

20 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The folowing table presents the carying amounts and lair values of the group's financial instruments  cutstanding at
31 Dacember 2006 and 2005. The fair value of a financial instrument is defined as the amount at which the instrument coutd
be exchanged in a current transaction between wiling parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Sy CEmDE
BE=s L Sloss
RO (56 R (155

Financial assets
Cash and equivalents 143 356 143 356 152 452 152 452
Receivables 43 683 436683 _ 437281 43 281
Financial liabilities
Accounts payable 39 451 39 461 28 813 28 813
Current portion of long term borrowings 24 818 24 618 22 991 22 921
Long temn borrowings (excluding joans
from outside shareholders) 25 666 25 486 4% 538 49 538
Liabilities on forward gold sales 16 67 494 67 494 43 0280 43 090
Govemment of Mali loan 2773 2280 _ 2483 1998

Financial instruments
Details of the group's on balance sheet forward gold sale contracts as at

* 31 December 2006 (aff treated as cash flow hedges):
Maturity dates
Year ended 2007 27 525 132 583 438
Year ended 2008 19 62 80 496 431
Year ended 2009 20 907 84 996 437
Total 67494 288075 436
Financial instruments
Details of the group's on balance sheet forward gold sale
contracis as at 31 December 2005 {af treated as cash flow hedges):
Maturity dates
Loule
Year ended 2006 £ 938 g3 408 431
Year ended 2007 12 532 116 004 438
Year ended 2008 10618 80 498 431
Year ended 2009 ) 1100 75000 430
Total 43000 365000 433

These financial instruments were taken out as part of the Loulo project financing, but some of the contracts which rmatured in
2006 have been rolled forward,
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20 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUIMENTS (CONTINUED)
For cunces delivered into hedges the net cash proceeds from the sales will be limited to the forward price per the contract as
per the previous table. However, the revenue recognised under IFRS in respect of forecast sales hedging using forward
contracts ralled forward in 2007 will be adjusted to exclude the non-cash profit/{loss) rolled forward. These profits/losses have
alreadly been recognised in the income slatement, at the original designated delivery date {ie in 2006).

The hedge took liablity as stated st present wil realise as follows:

Amcunts deferred in equity which will reduce/fincrease) revenue in future periods:

2006 - 8984
2007 23 962 12 532
2008 19 062 10618
200_9 o i S e 19 4@8 o 11001
I o _ 62482 43135

The non-cash losses on rolied forward coritracts for previously designated
dates which have already been recogrised in the income statement:

2006 - -
2007 3078 -
2008 -
2009 1335
o o o 4413
The insiective loss/jprof) partion of hedging contracts previously recogrised 599 (45)
Total fair value T o 67 494 43 080

Movement in the hedging reserve

Opening balance {43 138) {15 668)
Movement on cash flow hedges

= Transfer to income statement 17 256 45)
= __Eem/eyge moverment on financial instruments (36 603) (27 422}
Closing balance ] (62 482) (43 135)

Estimation of fair values

Receivables, accounts payable, bank overdrafts and cash and cash equivalents.

The carrying amounts are a reasonable estimate of the fair values because of the short maturity of such instruments. Long
term receivables are discounted using the effective interest rate which approximates a market related rate.

Long term berrowings

The fair value of market-based floating rate long term debt is estimated using the expecled future payments discounted at
market interest rates.

The fair value for the toans from minority shareholders is based on estimated project cash flows which have been discounted
6.75% (2005 6.5%). 4
Gold price contracts

The fair value of goid price forward sales contracts has been deterrmined by reference to quoted market rates at year end
balance sheet dates. See note 3.
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Capital expenditure contracted for at balance sheet

date but not yet incurred is:

Property, plant and equipment 10 450 5 000

The group's capital commitments refating to the Morla joint veniure, included above, amount to US$D.1 million
(2005: US$0.5 milkon). There are no contingent liabilities for Morila. If the group were to early terminate its mining contract at
Loulo, it would have 1o pay & ump sum compensalion depending on the maturity of the contract. If the contract had baen
cancelled in 2006 then the payment would have baen USES.7 million (2005: US$S.3 milion).

Operating lease commitments
The lease relates to the oxygen plant at Loulo leased from Maligaz.
The duration of the cantract is 10 vears and the coniract is renewable tor additional periods of five years therealier,

The iease expenditure charged o the income statement during the year is disclosed in note 25.
The future aggregate minimum lease payments* under operating leases are as follows:

No later than one year 323 292
Later than one year and no later than five years 1292 i 168
Later than five years 969 1168

2584 2 628

These pavments also inciude paymerits for non-lease elements i the arrangement.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In terms of the oparator agreernent between Morla SA and AngleGold Ashanti Services Mall SA, a management feg, calculated
as 1% of the total revenue of Morla, is payable to AngloGold Senvices Mall SA quarterty in amears. The attributable
management fees for the year ended 31 December 2006 arnouried 10 USE1.3 milion (2005 US$1.2 milion). Purchasing
and consultancy services are also provided by AngloGold Ashanti to the mine on a reimbursable basis. The attributable
purchases and consultancy services for the year ended 31 Decermber 2006 amounted to US$0.1 milion
{2005: US30.4 milion). There were no balances outstanding at year end.

Key management personne! compensation was as follows:

Short term employee benefits 4 863 3853
Share-based payments 1434 2053
Total 6 297 5906

This includes compensation for two executive directors, severn non-executive directors and nine executive management
personnel.

NON GAAP INFORMATION

Total cash costs and cash cost per ounce are non GAAP measures. Totat cash costs and total cash costs per ounce are
calculated using guidance ssued by the Geld Institute. The (ol Institute was a non profit industry association comprised of
leading goid producers, refiners, bullion suppliers and manutactirers. This institute has now been incorporated into the
National Mining Association. The guidance was first issued in 1996 and revised in November 1989. Total cash costs, as
definad in the Gold Institute's auidance, include mine praduction, transport and refinery costs, general and administrative COsts,
maovernant in production inventories and ore stockpiles, fransfers to and from deferred stripping whera relevant, and royalties.
Under the cormpany’s revised accounting policies, there are no transfers (o and from deferred stripping.
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23 NON GAAP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Total cash cosis per ounce are calculaied by dividing total cash costs, as determined using the Gold Institute guidance, by
gold ounces produced for the periods presented. Total cash costs and total cash costs per cunce are caiculated on a
consistent basis for the periods presantad. Total cash costs and total cash costs per ounce should not be considered by
investars as an alemnalive to operating proefit or net profit attributable to shareholders, as an alternative 1o olher FRS measures
or an inclicater of our performance. The dala does not have a meaning prescribed by IFRS and tharefore amounts presented
may nol be comparable to data presented by gold producers who do not foliow the guidance pravided by the Gold Institute.
In particular depreciation, armontisation and share-based payments would be included in a measure of totat costs of producing
gold under IFRS, but are not included in total cash costs under the guidance provided by the Gokl Instiute. Furthermore, while
the Gold Inslitute has provided a definition for the catcutation of total cash costs and total cash costs per cunce, the calculation
of these numbers may vary fom company to company and may not be comparable to other similarty titled measures of other
companies. However, Randgold Rasources believes that total cash cosis per ounce is a useful indicator 1o investors and
management of 4 mining company's performance as it provides an indication of a company's profitabitity and efficiency. the
Irends in cash costs as the company's operations mature, and a benchmark of performance to aflow for comparison against
other companies.
Cash operating costs and cash operating cost per ounce are calculated by deducting royalties from total cash costs. Cash
operating costs per ounce are calculated by dividing cash operating costs by gold ounces produced for the periods presented.
Gold sales and the average price received are non GAAP measures. Gold sales represents the sales of gold at spot and the
gains/losses on hedge contacts which have been delivered into at the designated maturity date. It excludes gains/lcsses on
hedge cortracts which have been rolled forward 1o match future sales. This adjustment is considersd appropriate because
no cash is received/paid in respect of these contracts. Average price received is calculated by diiding gold sales by gold
ounces sold.  These measures do not have a meaning prescribed by IFRS and should not be regarded as an altemative to
tha revenue measures pragented under IFRS,
Profit from mining activity is calculated by subtracting total cash casts from gold sales for all periods presentad.

The folowing table reconciles gold sales, totai cash costs and profit from mining activity, as non GAAP rmeasures, 1o the
information provided in the income statement, determined in accordance with IFRS, for each of the years set forth below:

Gold sales on spot 274 907 151 502
Loss on matured hedges {12 160) -
Gold sales# 262 717 151 502
Mine production costs 115 217 66 612
Maverment in production inventory and ore stock piles (13 373) (18 744)~
Transport and refining costs 711 360
* Royalties 16 879 10273
General and administration expenses 13 008 7438
Total cash costs i32 540 65 939~
Profit from mining activity 130 177 85 563~
Depreciation and amortisation {22 844) {11 910)
Exploration and cormporate expenditure {28 808) {24 049}
Interest and other income 8 552 3 367
Other (losses)/gains - net (653) 45
Exchange losses/(gains} - net and other expenses (2 216) (3 129)
Interest expense (5 825} {1 861)
Non-cash loss on roll forward of hedges (4 413) -
Profit before income tax 73973 48 026~

Restated due to change in accounting poficy relating tc deferred stripping. Refer note 6.
# Gold sales does not include the non-cash foss on the rolled forward hedges amounting to US$4.4 million (2005: USS ni).
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24 QUGHIFICANT UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO TRANSACTICONS VITH A CONTRACTOR
The directors belisve that the group is entiled to recover US$59.3 million from MOM Ferroman [Pty) Ltd {"MDM?) (in liquidation),
the contractor which was responsible for construction of the Loulo mine {'the project”) until the main construction contract was
taken back on 30 December 2005, This comprises payments totaling US$32 million which have been cagitalised as pant of
the cost of the project, US$15.2 millicn in respect of damages arising from the delayed complation of the project, and
advances of USH12.1 million (2005: US$12.2 milion) included in Receivables. Of this latier amount, JSH7 million is secured
by performance bonds and the remainder is securad by various personal guarantees and other assets.
As part of the group's &fforts to recoup the monies owed, MDM was put into fiquidation on 1 February 2006. This resulted in
a South Alrican Companies Act Section 417 investigation inte the busingss and financial activities of MDM, its affiliated
companies and their directors. This investigation is cngaing, and the liguidators are not expected to release a staterment of
MDM's assets and liabilities until it has been completed.
The directors befieve thai the group wili be able to recover in full the US$H12.1 million included in Receivables, However, this
is dependent on the amounts which can be recovered from the perlormance bonds, personal guarantees and other assets
provided as security. Any shortfall is expected 1o be recovered from any free resicue accuing 1o the inschvert estate. The
aggregate amount which wil ultimately be recoverad cannot presently be determined. The financial statements do not reflect
any additicnal crovision thal may be required if the USE12.1 million cannot be recovered in full,
Recovary of the other US$47.2 million is dependent on the extent to which the group’s claim is accepled by the liguidators
and the amount in ihe free residue. The ulimate outcome of this claim cannot presently be determined. The financial
staterents do not reffect any adjustment 1o the cost of the Loulo develepment thai may arise from this claim, or any additional
income that may arise from the claim for damages, or any charge that may arise from MDM's inability to settle amounts that
are determined 10 be payable by MDM to the group in respect of the Loulo development,

95 MIMING AND PROSESSING COSTS AND OTHER DISCLOSABLE ITEME
Mining anct processing Costs Comprise:

Mine produclion costs 115217 66 612
Moverment in production inventory and cre stockpiles (13373} (18 744)~
Depreciation and amortisation 22 844- 11910
General and adminigiration gxpenses, 13006 7438
137 694 67 216~

Restated due to change in accounting policy relating to stripping costs. Refer note 6.

Operating lease payments 323 292
Impaiment of receivables 1 5660 1 009

26 EXPLORATION £:D CORFORATE EXPENDITURE
Exploration and corporate expenditure comprise:

Exploration expenditure 13 859 8723
Coporate expenditure o 14 846 156 326
28 805 24 045

27 POST BALAMCE SHEET EVENTS
On 5 February 2007, the board of direciors declared an annual dividend of 10 cents per share which will result in an aggregate
dvidend payment of US$6.S mifion.
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Subsidiary and joint venture companies

at 21 Degcember 2006

INTEREST OF
RANDGOLD RESQURCES
- Mining Investments

Jersey Limitedt 2 100 - - - -
- Randgoki Resources

{Cote d'ivoirg) Limited ™t 2 100 - - -
- Randgold Resources

Céte d'lvoire SARL™ 835 100
- Randgold Resources

{Mali) Limited™ 2 100 - - - -
= Randgold Resources

Mali SARL™* 2 100 2 - 5347 -
= Randgold Resources .

{Senegal) Limited™ 2 100
= Randgold Resources

(Somilo} Limited* 2 100 -
- Randgold Resources

Tanzania (T} Limited$ 2 100 - - - -
- Randgold Resources

T1 Limited* 1 100
= Randgold Resources

T2 Limited™ 1 100
= Seven Bridges Trading

14 {Proprietary) Limited® 1000 100 - - (157) 144
=  Somilo SA* Q7 407 80 5745 5745 145 424 112 738
- Joint Venture Oxford/

Rendgold SARL* 100 65
= Morila Limited® 2 50 - - - -
= Morila SA™ 14 285 40 271 271 139 30

Aggregate after-tax profits for the year attibutable to the compary from its subsidiary and joint venture companies amount to
USE27 million {2005: US$21.6 million).

MNote:

*  Companies incorporated in Jersey, Channel istands
* Companies incorporated in South Afica
Companies incorporated in Mafi

*** Companies incomorated in Cote d'voire

§ Companies incorporated in Tanzania

#  Joint venture company

-t

1
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Group structure

for ihe vear encled 31 Decerroer 2006

o AADROLD FESOURCES MMDTED

e s e s s s s s e

hMining Randgoid | § Randgoid Randgold% Randgold | | Randgold Seven Randgo'd !Randgo!d Randgoid
kwest- | |Resources| |Resources; |Resources | |Rescwces | {Resources | | Bridges | |Resources | {Resources | iResources
menis {Cote iMal]) (Senega)) | | (Somiio) Tanzania | |Trading 14 | | (Burking) T T2
Jersay d'voire) Limited Umited Lirnitedd (T Limited {(Prop- Limited Limited Limited
Limited || Lmited ; rigtary)
i Limited
(oo [ ] (o |
T I I
Madla | | Randgoid | | Randgold Sociéie
Limited ! Rescurces | |Resowces des Mines
i (Gdte Mzl SARL de
I dhoie) Loulo SA
i SAAL

Société
dos
Mines
de
Morila SA

Total shareholders’ return vs HSBC global gold index

tndex == Volumes (LSE, Nasdag) Pume baded (000)
200 ~ Randgold Resources UK _4500
1804 - Rancgold Resources ADR (US) L

160 —— HSBC Global Goid Index 4000
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Shareholders’ information

Comprehensive, clear and
timely communication with investors
is an integral part of our management style.
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Directory

DIRECTCRS

= Philippe Liétard #

Or D Mark Bristow

Bernard H Asher ~ £ = 9

Norborne P Cole, Jr 1 @

Robert | Israel *

Dr Aubrey L Paverd §

Dr Karl Voltaire §

Reoger A Williams

Y Chairmnan of the rermuneration committee
Chairman of the audit committee

Member of the remuneration committee
Member of the audlit committee

Senior independent

Chairman of the governance and nomination
committeg

Mernber of the governance and nomination
committee

TEAT T L iy ner

Wttt

*
+

[ IS

SECRETARY AND REGISTERED OFFICE
David J Haddon, La Motte Chambers, La Motle
Street, St Helier, Jersey, Channel Islands

REGISTRARS

= Computershare Investor Services
{Channel Istands) Limited, PO Box 83, Ordnance
House, 31 Pier Road, St Helier, Jersey, JE4 8Pw
Channel Istands

UNITED STATES DEPOSITARY
American Depositary Receipts
The Bank of New York, Sharsholder Relations
Dgpartment, 101 Barclay Street, New York, NY 10286
USA

UK TRANSFER OFFICE

= Computershare Services plc
7th Floor Jupiter House Triton Court,
14 Finsbury Square London
EC2A 1BR UK

AUDITORS
= PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP {London)
= BDO Stoy Hayward LLP {from 2007}

RINCIPAL BANKERS
National Westminster Bank plc
Citibank NA

EGAL COUNSEL
Ogier {Jersey)
Fulbright & Jaworski LLP (New York)
Ashurst {London)

Ly i1 ™™

o

T

BRCOKERS
= HSBC Investment Bank plc

LISTING

= Fandgeld Resources Limited was listed on the London
Stock Exchange on 1 July 1997 (trading symbol: RRS)
and the Nasdaq National Market on 11 July 2002
{tracling symbol: GOLD).

INVESTOR RELATIONS
= To obtain additional information about the company or

16 be placed on the company’s distribution Iist, contact:

Kathy du Plessis, Randgold Resources Investor
Relations, PO Box 87388, Houghton, 2041,
South Africa.

Tet: +27 11 728 4701, Fax; +27 11 728 2547
E-mail: randgoldresources@dpapr.com

WEBSITE

= Our website is reguiarly updated to Supply you
with the latest information on the cormpary:
www.randgolfdresources.com

oP

(W]
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ERATIONS

Burkina Faso

Handgold Resources Burkina Faso Limited
Sanmatenga JV,

242, Rue 13.03 "GANDAOGO",

Sectewr 13 Zong Du Bois 01 BP 4771
QOuagadeugou 01, Burkina Faso

Tel: +226 50 36 39 36

Fax: +2268 5036 31 46

Céte d'lvoire

Randgold Resources Cote dfvoire Limitedt

8 Boulevard Carde, Immauble “la Residence”
ler Elage, 01 BP 725, Abidjan - Plateau Abidjan,
Cote d'voire

Tel: +225 202250 12/+225 2022 31 18
Fax: +225 2022 31 43

T Rorhogo office
Tel: 4225 36 86 29 40
Fax:  +225 36 86 29 40

Ghana

inter Afrigue Holdings

21 Bxamination LLoop North Ridge, Accra, Ghana
Tel +23321245672

Fax: +233 2124 56 72

Mali

Randgold Resaurces Mali Limited

Faladié

6448 Avenue de 'OUA, BP E1160, Bamako, Mali
Tel: +223 220 38 55/+223 220 20 06

Fax: +223 220 44 07/+223 220 81 87

o Somilo (Loulo Gold Mine)
Tel:  +223 251 30 00/01/02/03/08/07
Fax:  +223 251 30 04/08

- Monla Gold Mine
Tel: +31 205 40 73/70/1/2
Fax:  +31 205407373

Senegal

Randgold Resources Senegal Limited

67 Ave André Peylavin, BP 887, Dakar, Senegal
Tel: +221 849 17 80/+221 849 49 22

Fax: +221 849 17 84/+221 823 31 44

South Africa

Seven Bridges Trading 14 {Ply) Lt

Level O, Wilds View, Isle Cf Houghton,

Carse O'Gowrle Road, Houghton Estate
Johannesburg, 2198, South Africa

PO Box 3011, Houghton, 2041, Scuth Africa
Tek +27 11 481 7200

Fax: +27 11 481 7248

Tanzania

Raridgold Resources Tanzania (T) Limited
Plot 173, Block D Isamilo, Mwanza, Tanzania
Tel: +255 282 5009 74

Féo: +255 282 50 20 89

United Kingdom

4th Floor, 2 Savoy Court, Strand, WC2R 0EZ, London,
United Kingdom

Tel:  +44 207 857 77 30

Fax: +44 207 557 77 34




United Kingdom 56 17 399 231 25.45
TOTAL UNITED KINGDOM 56 17 389 231 25.45
France 7 1829 734 2.68
Germany 12 1177 728 172
South Africa 2 916 2968 1.34
Switzerland 17 886 069 1.30
Luxembourg 7 707 441 1.03
Ireland 1 77 763 .
Liechtenstein 2 76 242 011
Cypnus 1 15 000 0.02
Austria 2 11 050 0.02
Czech Republic 1 3932 0.01
Netherands ] 1000 0.00
TOTAL BEURCPE 53 5702 927 8.34
United States 89 38 968 400 57.00
Canada 5 5281 726 7.73
TOTAL NORTH AMERICA 74 44 251 126 84.73
Australia 1 837 000 1.22
Japan i 50 000 0.07
TOTAL ASIA PACIFIC/MIDOLE EAST 2 887 000 1.30
Source: Capital Precision
TOP TWENTY INSTITUTIONAL INVESTORS
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Notice of annual general meeting

for tre year anciey 51 December 2006

Netice is heraby given that the annual general meeting of the
company will be held in the conference room of the Atlantic
Hotel, St. Bredale, Jersey, JE3 8HE, Channel Islands on
30 April 2007 &l 08h45 for the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY

1 Toreceive and adopt the company's financial statements
for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2006 and the reporls
of the directors and the auditors thereon.

2 To elect Nobome Page Cole (whose appointment
automatically ends on the day of the annual general
meeting in accordance with the articles of association) as
a director. Mr Cole was appointed to the board during
the vear and is recommended by the board for election.
Mr Cole was initialy appointed to the board on
3 May 2008 and serves as a member of the
remuneration committee and the governance and
nomination committee, I terms of the definitions of the
Combined Code and the Sarbanes Cxley Act, Mr Cole
is deemed a non-executive director. Mr Cole retired after
many years senvice 1o the Coca-Cola organisation as the
CEO of Coca-Cola Amatil, based in Sydney Australia.
Since retirement, Mr Cole has and continues 1o serve as
a director for other listed and non-listed companies.

1 To elect Or Karl Volare [(whose appointment
automatically ends on the day of the annual general
meeting in accordance with the articles of association) as
a director. Dr Voltaire was appointed to the board during
the year and is recommended by the board for election.
Dr Voltare was initialy appointed to the board on
3 May 2006 and serves &5 a member of the audit
committee. In terms of the definitions of the Combined
Code and the Sarbanes Oxley Act, Dr Voltaire is deemed
a non-axecutive direcior. Dr Voltaire, who holds a PnD in
finance from the University of Chicago, served for many
years with the Worlg Bank. Currently, he is the CEO of
the Nelson Mandela Institution based in Nigeria.

4 To re-elect Phiippe Ligtard {who retires by rotation in
accordance with the articles of association) as a director,
as recormmended by the board of directors of the
company. hMr Lidtard was initialty appointed to the board
of directors in February 1998. On 4 November 2004,
Mr Lidtard was appointed the non-executive chaiman of
the compary. Mr Létard joined the board initialy, and
until his retirement from that organisation, as a
representative of the Intemational Finance Corporation,
which he served in the capacity of the director in charge
of the oil, mining and gas divisions. Since his retrement
Mr Lidtard has been an indapendant consultant and
promotor of mining and energy investments and currenily
serves as president of the "Rocheambeau” Foundation.

& To re-elect Robert Indng lsragi (who retires by rotation in
accordance with the anticles of association) as a director,
as recommended by the board of direclors of the
company. M lsrael was initially appointed 1o the board
of directors in 12 June 1997 and serves as the chairman
of the remuneration commillee,  In terms of the
definitions of the Combined Code and the Sarbanes
Oxdey Act, Mr Israel is deemed a non-executive director,

Q2 Rarvionid Resouses Annued Repon 2008

Mr Israel is a partner at Compass Partners LLF &
specialist corporale finance fim in the natural rescurces
sector having 27 years' experience in this sector.

& To receive and adopt the remuneration commillee
report.

7 To approve fees payable to directors as follows:

a A general annual relainer to al non-exacutive
directors of US$45 000,

b) An annual committee assignment fee of USE25 000,
with an additional premium for membership of the
audit committes of US$10 000,

¢) The chaiman of a board committee 10 receive a
committee assignment fee of USH40 000;

d) The senior independent director, in addition to the
general annual retainer but in fieu of any committes
assignment fee, 10 receive an addiicnal USE7S5 000:

e) The non-executive charman, in addilion to the
general annual retainer but in fieu of any committee
assignment fee, 10 receive an additional US$S0 000,

f An award tc each director of USE30 000 to be
translated intc a number of *restricted” shares. The
shares are to vest over a three year period from the
date of the award. Vesting would accelerate on the
fallowing conditons:

i)  Temnination other than resignation or dismissal;

i) Voluntary retirement after the age of 85 with a
minimum of three vears' senvice as a director,
ana

iy Change in control of the company.

4 TJo appoint BOO Stoy Hayward LLP as audilors of the
company for the year ending 31 December 2007.

NOTES

The Register of direclors” interests and conies of all senice
cortracts of the company will be available during normal
business hours at the registered office from the date of this
notice until the conclusion of the mesting. A member entitled
to attend and vole at the meeting may appoint one or more
proxies to attend, vote, speak and act in his/ner stead.
A proxy need not be a member of the company. For the
corvenience of members who are unable to atiend the
meeling but wish to be represented thereai, a proxy form is
attached. Atlention is drawn to the fact that, if it is to be
effective, a completed proxy form  must  reach
Computarshare investor Services (Channe! islands) Limited,
at least 48 hours (Saturcay, Sunday and public holidays
excluded) befors the time appointed for the meeting, being
0Bh45 on Thursday 27 April 2007

By order of the board

‘ J
Cavid J Haddon

Secretary

13 March 2007
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Proxy form

for the annus! general meeting t2 be hatd an Maoriay 30 Agrl 2007 a° Oghas
Randgold Resources Limited o Incomorated in Jersey, Channel lslands = Registration number: 62686

IWe

of

being the holders of ordinary shares
hereby appeint

of

or failing him

of

or faiing him, the chaimman of the meeling as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our behall &t the annual general
eeting of shareholders of the company to be held in the Conference Room of the Allantic Hotel, St Bredale, Jersey, JE3 8HE,
Charinel Islands at 08h45 on 30 April 2007 and at every adjoumment of that meeting.

Please indicate with an "X" or tick in the apprepriate space below how You wish your votes tc be cast.

1 Ordinary resolution - Adoption of the directors’ report and accounts

2 Ordinary resolution - Election of directors Norbome P Cole
{member of the remuneration committes)

3 Ordinary resolution - Election of directors Dr Karl Vollaire
rmermber of the audit committee)

4 Ordinary resalution - Re-election of directors Philippe Listard
fnon-executive chairman)

5 Ordirary resolution - Be-election of directors Robert | Israel
{chairman of the remuneration comimitleg)

6 Ordinary resolution - Adoption of the report of the remuneration
committee

7 Ordinary resolution - Approve the fees payable to directors

8  Ordinary resoiution - Appoint BDO Stoy Hayward LLP as auditars of
the company for the year ending 31 December 2007

Signed al on 2007

Signature(s)

Assisted by me (WHERE APPLICABLE)

Full names of signatory it Signing in a representative canacity. Please use hiock lefters.




Notes to the proxy

for the arnual general mesiing 10 be held on Manday 30 Acrl 2007 at H8hds

Instnuctions for signing and lodging the annual general meeting proxy form:

1

A deletion of any printed matter and the completion of any blank spaces need not be signed or initialled, Any alterations must
be signed, not initialled.

The chaiman shall be entitled to decline to accept the authority of the signatory;

= under the power of attomey; and

= on behalf of the company,

unless the power of attomey or authority is deposited at the office of the company’s registrars being Cormputershare lnvestor
Services (Channel Islands) Limited (ses address details below) not less than 48 hours (Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays
excluded} before the time for holding the meeting.

The signatory may insert the name of any person(s} whom the signatory wishes to appoint as his proxy in the blank spaces
provided for that purpose.

When there ars joint holders of shares and if more than one such joint holders be present or represented, then the person
whose name appears first in the register in respect of such shares or his proxy, as the case may be, shall alone be entitled to
vote in respect thereof,

The completion and lodging of this form of proxy will not preciude the signatory from attending the meeting and speaking and
voling in persen thereat to the exclusion of any proxy appointed in terms hereof should such signatory wish to do so.

i the signatory does not indicate in the approprate place on the face hereof how he wishes to vote in respect of any
resolutions, his proxy shall be entitled to vole as he deems fit in respect of that resolution.

The chairman of the general meeting may reject or accept any proxy form which is completed other than in accordance with
thesa instructions, provided that he is satisfied as to the manner in which a member wishes 1o vole,

Il the: sharehoidting is not indicated on the form of proxy, the proxy will be deemad 10 be authorised o vote the totat shareholding
registered in the shareholder's name.

REGISTRARS

Computershare Investor Services (Channel Islands) Limited
PO Box 83

Ordnance House

31 Pigr Road, St Helier

Jersey JE4 BPW

Channel Islands

Tel: (44} 1534 825 203

94 Ranageld Resowoes Ancual Report 2006




Shareholders’ diary

for the year encled 31 Decaembar 2006

Financial year end 31 December
Annual general mesting Monday 30 Aprit 2007

ANNQUNCEMENT OF QUARTERLY RESULTS

O First quarter Tuesday 8 May 2007
O Second quarter Thursday 2 August 2007
C  Third guarter Thursday 1 November 2007
0 Year end and fourth quarter Monday 4 February 2008

TICKER SYMBOLS

' "Stock Exchange '+ . N :-' IS S Ticker Symbaol

O London Stock Exchange (ords) RRS
0 London Stock Exchange (ADRs) GO
T Nasdag Stock Market GOLD

PlAacimanrcd mod memdy mmri b e e Mlmanie & ammmieeme
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